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Dear Shareholders,

During 2016, it was a challenging year for Sandmartin International
Holdings Limited ("“SMT" or our “Group”), the overall market remained
sluggish in its recovery as the general economy was uncertain, especially
in European market and MEMA (Middle East, Mediterranean, and Africa)
markets, the Group could not be immune from this macro business
environment. Despite this short-term depression in those markets, | am
confident in North American market as its economy is being recovered.

Although the total revenue of the Group is increasing due to the economic
recovery of North America, as well as new business opportunities in

India, however, those business is still in early stage, and huge amount of
capital expenditure is needed. We shall target on new business which is
correlated to our Digital Entertainment Value Chain Business, for example,
we acquired 51% shareholding of MyHD Media FZ LLC ("MyHD") and the
transaction is completed in July 2016, we have launched the GOBX project
with Middle East Broadcasting Center (“MBC"), a renowned Broadcaster in
Middle East since October 2016.

In terms of brand development which is to secure our long-term value in
the midstream business and profit margin, our Dish Home has recorded
substantial growth during the year through expanding our distribution
networks. We are investing further to broaden our product range and
extend sales channel penetration for our house brand products.

SMT has established itself as a trustworthy brand which distributes
quality products and offers professional services for over 29 years. We
will continue to build the reputable brand through enhanced brand
management strategies.

The Board is pleased to recognize our team of talented colleagues for their
dedication and hard work. We look forward to the further growth of SMT
under their leadership.

Hung Tsung Chin
Chairman
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT
HITRME

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Thanks with our frontline colleagues, the Group amidst achieving a good
results in sales, total revenue of our Group for the year ended December
31,2016 is increased 10.66% compared with the year ended December
31, 2015 although our gross profit margin of the Group is decreased from
10.98% to 10.17% compared with the year ended December 31, 2015.

MEDIA ENTERTAINMENT PLATFORM RELATED
PRODUCTS

In 2016, although the market competition was even more fierce than
before and our profit margin is affected, however, the Group’s media
entertainment platform related products saw a turnaround in terms

of revenue, with 17.92% increases in revenue and 9.83% decreases in
segment results as compared with the year ended December 31, 2015.

- Segment turnover of media entertainment platform related products
was approximately HK$379,652,000.

- Segment results from operations was approximately HK$12,325,000.

- Segment margin was 3.25%, decreased by 1.00%.

Outlook

The market competition is remained fierce, therefore we are exploring new
markets for our future development, for example television digitalization in
India would create a great opportunity to us for our television set-top-box,
one of our main products in this segment.

OTHER MULTIMEDIA PRODUCTS

In 2016, the market competition was remain intense, both revenue and
profit margin of the Group'’s other multimedia products were adversely
affected. The revenue decreased by 16.21% and the segment results
decreased by 19.74% compared with the year ended December 31, 2015.

— Segment turnover of other multimedia products was approximately
HK$239,353,000.

- Segment results from operations was approximately HK$23,973,000.

- Segment margin was 10.02%, decreased by 0.44%.
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HITRME (&)

Outlook

We are undergoing our product portfolio enhancement and new business
development, one of our major projects is the business of original design
manufacturing production and distribution arrangement with a multi-
national technology company of computer electronics equipment, we
believe this project can achieve fruitful growth for this segment.

SATELLITE TV EQUIPMENT AND ANTENNA PRODUCTS

Despite the market competition was still fierce in 2016, however, we had
developed a new products and launched in the market in early 2016, then
the profitability of this segment was excellent, with over 14.89% increases
in revenue and 163.27% increases in segment results compared with the
year ended December 31, 2015.

- Segment turnover of satellite TV equipment and antenna products was
approximately HK$1,169,525,000.

- Segment results from operations was approximately HKS$104,407,000.

- Segment margin was 8.93%, increased by 5.03%.

Outlook

Year 2016 is a fruitful year for this segment as our production of new low
noise blocking downconverters (“LNB(s)") has been started in the Group's
Zhongshan and Dongguan production plants. LNBs are receiving devices
mounted on satellite dishes used for reception, which collect radio

waves from the satellite dishes and facilitates the transmission of satellite
television signals, we believe this product is a milestone of this segment.

ACQUISITION OF MYHD

The Company increased its shareholding in MyHD from 11% to 51%
pursuant to a subscription and shareholders agreement dated May 16,
2016 and MyHD became a 51%-owned subsidiary of the Company on
July 5,2016. MyHD is headquartered in Dubai Media City. It is principally
engaged in the business of provision of Direct-to-Home services for
satellite television broadcasting in 22 countries in MEMA, including Saudi
Arabia, United Arab Emirates, Qatar, Kuwait and Bahrain.
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Outlook

With the successful launch of GOBX in October 2016, GOBX will be a
growth momentum for the satellite pay television business of MyHD in the
MEMA.

GEOGRAPHICAL RESULTS
AFRICA

- Segment revenue of Africa was approximately HK$71,794,000,
compared with the year ended December 31, 2015 which was
approximately HK$74,577,000.

- 3.73% drop in segment revenue compared with the year ended
December 31, 2015.

- Africa share 4.0% total revenue of the Group (year ended December 31,
2015: 4.6%).

ASIA

- Segment revenue of Asia was approximately HK$268,484,000,
compared with the year ended December 31, 2015 which was
approximately HK$238,272,000.

- 12.68% growth in segment revenue compared with the year ended
December 31, 2015.

— Asia share 14.9% total revenue of the Group (year ended December 31,
2015: 14.6%).

EUROPE

- Segment revenue of Europe was approximately HK$ 157,281,000,
compared with the year ended December 31, 2015 which was
approximately HK$191,250,000.

- 17.76% drop in segment revenue compared with the year ended
December 31, 2015.

— Europe share 8.7% total revenue of the Group (year ended December
31,2015:11.7%).
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HITRERE (H)

MIDDLE EAST PR

- Segment revenue of Middle East was approximately HK$62,522,000, — PR EUWAL AE62,522,00078 7T BEE —
compared with the year ended December 31, 2015 which was E-AF Tt A=+—HLEFERLDAE
approximately HK$69,755,000. 69,755,000/ 7T ©

— 10.37% drop in segment revenue compared with the year ended — PEBRARBEE_T-—RAFT_HA=T—AH1
December 31, 2015. FREMLLIRKA1037% °

—  Middle East share 3.5% total revenue of the Group (year ended — BFERMHELEEAEENBKAZSY (BHEZT
December 31, 2015: 4.3%). —RAF+ZA=+—BILFE: 43%) °

NORTH AMERICA 3t =M

- Segment revenue of North America was approximately — dbFEM D EURA LD 51,148,707,0008 T ERE &
HK$1,148,707,000, compared with the year ended December 31, 2015 —E-RAF+TZ AT -HIEFEMREAOR
which was approximately HK$953,603,000. 953,603,000/ 7T

— 20.46% growth in segment revenue compared with the year ended - PERAREE-_FT-—AF+_A=F+—H1I
December 31, 2015. F A1 :20.46% ©

— North America share 63.8% total revenue of the Group (year ended — EEMOMNBEREENLBI A% (BEZ
December 31, 2015: 58.6%). E-HF+-_A=1t—BIFE: 586%)

SOUTH AMERICA EEY)

- Segment revenue of South America was approximately HK$90,364,000, — FEMD B A K /90,364,0005 7T - BLE =
compared with the year ended December 31, 2015 which was —E-AF+ZA=t+—HALFEREOE
approximately HK$98,631,000. 98,631,000/ JT °

—  8.38% drop in segment revenue compared with the year ended — PEBRAREE_T-—RAF+A=1T—H1I
December 31, 2015. FE LRk 48.38% ©

—  South America share 5.0% total revenue of the Group (year ended — MEMODEEAEBRNRKAS (HE=
December 31, 2015: 6.1%). E-RFE+T_A=T—HLEFE:61%)°

Outlook A=

As our business in Asia and North America are continued to attain good AR ERME SN ENEREEE R T HRIFAM

performance and share more of our Group's revenue, therefore we shall DMEEZHRMEENRA BB MR ELHE

focus in these regions in future. P RBIIARRNER -

Chen Mei Huei REHE

Chief Executive Officer #HITR
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Liquidity and financial resources

At December 31, 2016, an overall cash and cash equivalent was HK$76.1
million (December 31, 2015: HK$93.2 million). The Group's major financial
resources derived from cash generated from financing activities and
internal generated cash flow.

The Group's current ratio (ratio of current assets to current liabilities) was
0.80 at December 31, 2016 (December 31, 2015: 0.97).

As at December 31, 2016, the Group's total borrowings were HK$402.8
million (December 31, 2015: HK$363.3 million). The gearing ratio (total
borrowings over total assets of the Group) increased from 28.3% at
December 31, 2015 to 30.5% at December 31, 2016.

Placing of Shares

On January 13, 2016, the Group had completed placing of new shares. A
total of 104,500,000 placing shares had been successfully placed at the
placing price of HK$0.50 per share (“Placing 1”). Details of the Placing 1 are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated January 13, 2016.

The net proceeds from the Placing 1, after deducting relevant expenses
incurred in relation to the Placing 1, amount to approximately HK$51.4 million

which is used as general working capital of the Group and business expansion.

On June 14, 2016, the Group had completed placing of new shares. A total
of 75,000,000 placing shares had been successfully placed at the placing
price of HK$0.40 per share (“Placing 2"). Details of the Placing 2 are set out
in the announcement of the Company dated June 14, 2016.

The net proceeds from the Placing 2, after deducting relevant expenses
incurred in relation to the Placing 2, amount to approximately HK$29.1
million which is presently expected to be used for potential promotion
plan of MyHD Media FZ LLC's satellite broadcasting services in the Middle-
East, Mediterranean and Africa after the completion of the acquisition of
additional interest in MyHD Media FZ LLC by the Company.
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Subscription of Shares

On January 21, 2016, 48,000,000 shares have been successfully

subscribed by the subscriber at the subscription price of HK$0.50 per
share (“Subscription 1"). Details of the Subscription 1
announcement of the Company dated January 21, 2016.

are set out in the

The net proceeds from the Subscription 1, after deducting relevant
expenses incurred in relation to the Subscription 1, amount to
approximately HK$24.0 million which is used as general working capital of
the Group and business expansion.

On August 31, 2016, 38,168,000 shares have been successfully
subscribed by the subscriber at the subscription price of HK$0.262 per
share (“Subscription 2"). Details of the Subscription 2 are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated August 31, 2016.

The net proceeds from the Subscription 2, after deducting relevant
expenses incurred in relation to the Subscription 2, amount to
approximately HK$10.0 million which is used as general working capital of
the Group and business expansion.

Charges on assets

As at December 31, 2016, the Group's general banking facilities including
bank loans were secured by the following assets of the Group: (i) bank
deposits of HK$14.9 million, (ii) property, plant and equipment with a
carrying value of HK$44.7 million, (iii) investment properties of HK$146.6
million, (iv) trade receivables of HK$104.6 million, and (v) inventory of
HK$103.1 million.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group's sales and purchases were denominated mainly in US dollars
and Renminbi (‘RMB"). The Group was exposed to certain foreign currency
exchange risk but it does not expect future currency fluctuations to cause
material operation difficulties on the ground that HK dollars are pegged
to US dollars and the recent pressure from depreciation of RMB was
manageable. However, management continuously assesses the foreign
exchange risks, with an aim to minimise the impact of foreign exchange
fluctuations on business operations.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at December
31,2016 (2015: Nil).

LITIGATIONS
HCA 2948/2016

On November 29, 2016, the Company received a writ of summons filed by
Zhi, Charles, as the plaintiff (the “Plaintiff”) against the Company, certain
executive directors of the Company and other parties as the defendants
(collectively “All Parties”) under action number HCA 2948/2016 in the High
Court of Hong Kong. Details of the writ of summons are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated November 29, 2016.

In the writ, the Plaintiff claimed for (i) a declaration that All parties have
committed an offence under section 25(1) of the Organized and Serious
Crime Ordinance, namely they knew, or had reasonable grounds to believe,
that on multifarious and repetitive occasions, and through complex
“layering” vehicles mostly related to investments in the Company, were
dealing with the proceeds of an indictable offence; (ii) a declaration

that All Parties have committed an offence under Part XV of the SFO
which requires directors, chief executives and substantial shareholders

to disclose their interests in the shares and debentures of the Company;
(i) a declaration that Morton Securities Limited, beneficially owned and
controlled by Mr. Akihiro Nagahara, had aided and abetted in money
laundry; (iv) an order for the Company to exert its power under Section 329
of SFO to investigate the holders of interests in its shares and debentures,
and (v) an injunction to restrain the Company to continue its proposed
open offer and specific mandate as announced by the Company on
October 24, 2016.

The Company has engaged legal adviser to handle the action, and filed a
defence to the High Court of Hong Kong on March 29, 2017 and request a
further and better particulars from the Plaintiff.

HREE

R-E—ARE+T-_A=+—0 AEELEERE
AERBBE(ZT—AF &)

B
HCA 2948/2016

RZE-—RE+—-—AZ+hB A2FHKEH

Zhi, CharlestEBIRE A (TREADEARFA
ARABETHTESREMTAESEA (ATEA
[FTEAL]) BEEBSEERFARINAHCA
2948/20165R MBS M - A S AFBE R AR
AAMAZZE—R"F+—HAZTNAAENREAN-

EEASIRT REA: VBBWAEALHEILE
RN B EIEIT IR E25(WIRFTRT M9 3E 1T - Bl
MAME AR EEMAE EEREENER A
FMORBEARREMBENER DB - BRIER 2K
mize s ()VBAMA ATORILREES KM
EGPIEXVIAREES K TRABRIZR
RAFRBEEARARBR D RERERHEE ()2
B ARRELAELEEREENEHNEEESF
RAR MBI REILIEZEE : (Vs S AR AIRIERE
R AEGRPIEDMFITEEES - AEERN RE
RERGFAA  MWERKAZF < MHE AR 4
BETR_T—RETAZTHBEAEERERR
R E RIRE R KR &

ARTEEEERBREREMFL R_F—+
FZA-TARRESBEERRRLAREAR
SRAEH A B K -
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HCA 3346/2016 HCA 3346/2016

On December 22, 2016, the Company received a writ of summons filed by RZE—RF+ZAZ+=8  AAaKE AZh
Zhi, Charles as the plaintiff against the Company, executive directors of the Charles (TER TIREA)EHARQT - RATRHNITE

Company and other party as the defendants under action number HCA EREMA (ERIEEAD) BHEASZ AR

3346/2016 in the High Court of Hong Kong. Details of the writ of summons SRAAR SR A HCA 3346/20165 HYE S AR o ER Sk
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated December 22, HEFBERARRIARA ST —R"E+A=+=
2016. HBORER-

In the writ, the Plaintiff claimed for (i) a declaration that All Parties have EEMSHRP  REA: (VBEHAAEATHEILR

committed an offence under Part XV of the SFO which requires directors, BEFMBEGROIEXVIMETES TaTBA
chief executives and substantial shareholders to disclose their interests BERFERRABRBEERDARMND REREZFH D
in the shares and debentures of the Company; (i) a declaration that Eam (VEBEARTIRNTESERYAAINELE
executive directors of the Company have breached their fiduciary duties 7% (i) 78 Yuming Investment Management Limited
to the Company; (ii) a declaration that Yuming Investment Management WERMEREZRARABHANRAARR-ZZ—X
Limited, willfully and knowingly advised the Company to hide critical FTHAZTHBEREEEA AARERFANREZHAE
information about the connected parties on proposed open offer and BATCZEEZEER: (WaIFLBEBMAERIE
specific mandate, announced by the Company on October 24, 2016; (iv) RAFIEEER BB PRBIENNEERS:

an order for clarification announcement that the Stock Exchange of Hong R W2 AR RIRIEEH R A E BRI E3206&1TE

Kong Limited was not oppressive but not ruled based; and (v) an order for BEEH AEEROLREEEEZER A
the Company to exert its power under Section 329 of SFO to investigate
the holders of interests in its shares and debentures.

The Company has engaged legal adviser to handle the action, and filed a ARREEZFEEEMEREBEBRGFR NT—+
defence to the High Court of Hong Kong on March 29, 2017 and request a FZAZThBEREARFERRERLMEEAE
further and better particulars form the Plaintiff. KIEHIRHET BN E ko

HCMP 284/2017 HCMP 284/2017

On February 11, 2017, the Company received a writ of summons filed by MRZEBE—+FZA+—8 KRGS HZh,

Zhi, Charle, Kim Sungho, Kim Kyungsoo, Lim Hang Young and Joung Jong Charles~Kim SunghoKim KyungsooLim Hang Young
Hyun as the plaintiffs (the “Plaintiffs”) against the Company, executive FJoung Jong HyuntEBRE A ([READ)HAR
directors of the Company, the auditor of the Company and other party as A RNRBHITES NABZ BRI R EAMTT (1F

the defendants (the “Parties”) under action number HCMP 284/2017 in the BIwEAND (EBATHMEALT]) BEAES
High Court of Hong Kong. Details of the writ of summons are set out in the LR SR AR SR B HCMP 284/201 75K R E L 2K ©
announcement of the Company dated February 13, 2017. BEMSRNFBENARRABHAZT—tF A
TZANRAEAR-
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In the writ, the Plaintiffs claim against the Parties for, among others, the
following orders: (i) the Parties produce the copies of all ledger accounts
of the Company, relating to the impairment losses of loans and receivables
of the Company, in its 2015 Annual Report, caused by the operations in
Nepal of the Company, through its subsidiaries, associate companies,
agents or connected parties; (i) the Parties produce the copies of all the
corresponding and related documents in paragraph (i) above; (iii) the
Parties produce the copies of all communications between the auditor of
the Company and the Company regarding among their directors and any
of their agents, pertinent to the alleged connected transactions; and (iv)
the copies of the documents be inspected by the Plaintiffs and Financial
Reporting Council, which will then make necessary complaints as it deems
fit.

As at the date of the report, there is no evidence from any of the Plaintiff to
substantiate such allegation.

HCCW 90/2017

On March 23, 2017, the Company received a petition dated March 23, 2017
filed by Zhi, Charles (“Petitioner”) against the Company, directors of the
Company and other party (“Respondents”) in the proceedings in HCCW
90/2017. Details of the petition are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated March 23, 2017.

Pursuant to the Petition, the Petitioner petitioned for (i) an order that
the Company be wound up by the Court under the provisions of the
Companies (Winding-Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance; (ii)
an order that the Company identify all the shares associated with and
warehoused by the 2nd Respondent and cancel them; (iii) an order
that the Company identify all the loans of the Company used for the
money laundering purposes and have the 2nd to 10th Respondents
to make the loan repayments for the Company; (iv) an order that the
2nd to 10th Respondents make equitable and adequate compensation
to the Company for unfair and prejudicial, in amount no less than
HK$250,000,000; and (v) such other order and costs may be made in the
premises as shall be just.

EEASHRT  REABBAZRK (HHEE) AT
B VMAATETREE_Z—AFFRTHR
EHRMER FRALRRBBHEMNBAR e
NE - RIRRBET B BUR A RV E RN W IR
ERRARENDERKRBE OB (AEALTHTR
an £ BSE ()P P A AR B AR R SRRV RIS : GiFT R
AT HRARBZEBENRA QR ZE A A B b
MEBEHEAMMORBERNEBNAERS K
(VAR E AR W 75 3R B IR AR R S R BIAS - JA
BRI PIRBEERENRF -

BEAREAH TAREALREEBEEEZS

-
HCCW 90/2017

R-B—+FE=A-+=0 AARIZEEAZ
Charles ([REAIVR=F—tF=H—+=HM
AR HARR - ARBRBEEREMS ([HE
AL)BEHEE R EEHCCW 90/2017 < 2EEZ WS
RAEAXRBHAE-_ZT—+t&F=A-+=HHRE
Wo

EEFET BREAEZRKUTHL ()VBZEREXK
AAFMKEBAR (B8 MBSO KFIHNIESNE
B WERRRRSEAMBRE_FEEABTHER
BRI - WAS R M B (W EKA R T PR
BIERABERENARMENR YHEZUARE+#H
EANEBEARRF] (MERKAE_EFE+HEAAT
ANFEBEREMNITE  MEHAFMEEHRE K
84 58 MK 72250,000,00078 7T + M (v)E b 89 B Sk
EREBREERAFAEMNAIR T ETT
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On March 29, 2017, a striking-out summons was filed by the Company RZZE—tF=A=Z+hB ETRREHPHFRA
to apply for an order to strike out the Petition in the Court. Details of the RRXEZ-RASEZNFBEANRARFBEA
striking-out summons are set out in the announcement of the Company TE—tF=ZHZTNHEHBNRAEA-

dated March 29, 2017.

The Company considers that all the above writs are vexatious, frivolous and ARRRBLBFAEEASKRCEEEERE &
erroneous in facts/oppressive. RN IERER -
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at December 31, 2016, SMT employed a total of 2,267 (2015: 3,446)
full-time employees. Employees are remunerated according to their
performance and responsibilities.

SMT offers competitive compensation and benefits to attract and retain
talents, for which annual review held in June for each year is conducted to
maintain their market competitiveness, as well as to motivate employees
to attain company goals and objectives.

Employee wellness also contributes to employee engagement. SMT
continues our efforts in organizing various social, recreational activities for
our colleagues and their family members, including corporate incentive
tour to enrich their work and family lives.

SMT is also committed to employee safety and health. Regular safety
reviews are performed in accordance with the statutory and industry
requirements.

Corporate Governance Practices

SMT is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance.
The board of directors (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance practices are important to promote investor confidence
and protect the interest of our shareholders. We attach importance to
our staff, our code of conduct, and our corporate policies and standards,
which together form the basis of our governance practices. We respect
the laws, rules and regulations of each country and area in which we
operate, we strive to ensure a healthy and safe working environment for
our staff, which is our paramount concern. We endeavour to contribute
to the sustainable development of SMT, with particular focus on our
accountability to shareholders and stakeholders. This report describes
how SMT has applied its corporate governance practices to its everyday
activities.

Throughout the year 2016, SMT has applied the principles and complied
with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Looking ahead, we will keep our governance practices under continual
review to ensure their consistent application and will continue to improve
our practices.

ABEIR

NR-_ZE—-—RF+-_A=+—H EBEFTAHEHR
22674 (ZZ—FRF :3446% ) 2 HES - B B HE
TIREERBRBEET -

B TRHABRF DOHMEENARS| REEA
A UBFNARSAERHETE N AEIESR
BT RBINER

ESTERHEEMNREE  RINBBTIETEIN
TMEHABTEBRENERIRIREL LS B
BEKT NEEREIERRELE

B5 T NE ARERERE - AR 2 REES
THBS LREEENTEERETETHERR
e

EEERER

ERTRNECREATHEREHKY -EFE
(EF2)HEERHNEEXE AT REEMKRE
ENELERRERRERGREE-EFTERE
T sl RBBREAE  WARERTMR

ERMER RMBETEEXRBEMERR LR
HOED] - RARRR R W SRR MM E Tl A
ERERZZHRETIE-RMBINAESTH
ARFEERELER LEZEMRRERFNER
R AREFAEFTNRAEEAEEETEAHE
EEEREMR -

R-ZFE-—A"ER BFTEERBEAHEXSME
BRAR ([BA2Pr]) 2 MR R (T EmRA) K
B4z (REEASTRD ([REEARSTA) AR
A W EERBETHATRIR

RERK BHABHERISEEERAEREER
BATT XN 1 B o
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Corporate Governance Structure
Board of directors
Overall accountability

The members of the Board are individually and collectively accountable
to the shareholders for the success and sustainable development of

SMT. The Board provides direction and approval in relation to matters
concerning SMT's business strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-
day business operations are delegated to the executive management. The
Board is accountable to the shareholders and in discharging its corporate
accountability, directors of SMT are required to pursue excellence in the
interests of the shareholders and fulfill their fiduciary duties by applying
the required levels of skill, care and diligence to a standard in accordance
with the statutory requirements.

During the year, the Board has performed a self-evaluation of its
performance and reviewed the contribution required from a director to
perform his responsibilities. The Board is of the view that all directors have
given sufficient time and attention to the Group's affairs and the Board
operates effectively as a whole.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 5 executive directors and 3 independent
non-executive directors. Independent non- executive directors comprise
38% of the Board of which independent non-executive directors make up
one-third of the Board. SMT believes that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirement of
SMT's business.

ERERRE
EEg
2EME

EEgREERNNREEUEST 2K R FEE
RABKRBE -BEZ2/nERT XHRE BRR
RENBREERETARELIE MBEXRS
BFEARETEEEARE -BEFEHURRAT UL
ERTEMCREER EFTEUESTHARKR
FRHEANGE RBHEBUEREBKE  WIOER
PrERM R EESBEBTHERAGE T

RERN EFCARFEERE IRINESER
THEBERASNHNER -EFER/ MEE
EZONHEAREMETINERERNEBNESL M
E=eEBAMLEE-

EFEaMEK

EFRRMBRHTESFRBIUFNTESH
o SFRITER (BRBUIFMTESR)HhEF A
PXAB38%  HR B IFAITESHLBB=02
—EFTRRETSHADEONREE KERUAR
ZBEH BERAERT EKME -
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As required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, at least one of the
independent non-executive directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. No
independent non-executive director has served SMT for more than nine
years. SMT has received from each independent non-executive director

a confirmation of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all
independent non-executive directors are independent. Brief biographical
particulars of the directors, together with information about the
relationships among them, are set out on “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” of the Annual Report.

All directors, including the independent non-executive directors, have a
specific term of appointment which is not more than three years from
the date of his re-election by shareholders in general meeting. Each
director has entered into an appointment letter with SMT and pursuant
to Article 87(1) and 87(2) of SMT's bye-laws, every director, including the
non-executive directors, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Retiring directors are eligible for re-election at
the annual general meeting at which they retire. Separate resolutions are
proposed for the election of each director. One- third of the directors, or
if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-
third, must retire from office at each annual general meeting and their re-
election is subject to a vote of shareholders.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of SMT, monitors
performance and the related risks and controls in pursuit of the strategic
objectives of SMT. Day-to-day management of SMT is delegated to the
executive director or officer in charge of each business unit and function
who reports back to the Board. Every director ensures that he/she gives
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of SMT. All Board members have
separate and independent access to the management, and are provided
with full and timely information about the conduct of the business

and development of SMT, including reports and recommendations on
significant matters. All Board members are provided with updates of the
business operations of SMT. Should separate independent professional
advice be considered necessary by the directors, it would be made
available to the directors upon request.

B EMRAEIMGRE B2 —BBEILIFH
TEZABEENEXERKABEE NG XA
BNV KEEER BUBYIFRTESTNEST
EESTBBIF -BF T EWBNEIBIIFNTE
FRE LT AR AN B3R BB LN 15 5] A RER K
NHERBENB LT IRRERBILIFNTES
YBBIATL BEEENHEERREZBEREF
BHRAFR [EEREREEBZEE]A-

2REF (BEIFNTES) DERARI TR F
HTSEBNENRRAG LEREERIF-

FEFCREFTRIZEE BREEFT 2E%
ERMANETMETOK BNES (BREIFRT

EX)vARFRIBERE-— R BSERENE
FERENRRBFAS LABEEX -BUES
MBEEEEOUBYEARIARE - =02 —NE
F(RBUEFTABL =B MARKRER
A HEFAR)LARSERRBFAS L
BE AV EABRRREREREEEBEE T

EXgHAETESRTHEBRERE ERAREAE
RENARAEREEEGE AMEHEFT MK
BER- ESTHAREBEERETHATESTH
BEREBEM BRSNS zIE KEFHRES
SER - BUEFRARKRE LT 505 H R BT IA
BREEFTHNRB - ABEESTEKEY A AR MIB
VEEEERE TAUESABRES T EHAAR
ZRNEZEMERNER BREAFENHRE R
BE-MEESEREDNERES T XGEENS
HEBREREH WARE EFARIFREL
BXER BUEERBHEERRERTES-
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The Board has delegated certain functions to Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. Matters specifically
reserved for the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts,
selection of directors, changes to appointments such as company
secretary and external auditor, remuneration policy for directors and senior
management, terms of reference of Board committees, as well as major
corporate policies such as the code of conduct and whistle blowing policy.

To implement the strategies and plans adopted by the Board effectively,
executive directors and senior management meet on a regular basis to
review the performance of the business of the Group, co-ordinate overall
resources and make financial and operational decisions.

SMT has arranged Directors & Officers Liability and Company
Reimbursement Insurance for its directors and officers with a combined

aggregate limit of liability of HKS$50 million.

The attendance of the Board and the Committees meetings during the

year are set out as follow:

EXeRfrTHRERETERZES REZEE
LHWEES HERETESES ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ
EHMHRE  REBR S ERRNERER

BAKN BMEEF EHNR TW$&%%V§%~
EZLmREEBNTHER EFEBETSEE
ENREBENANTZAERRE (MLRTAIRE
BHE) -

BT EMMRITESSAEMOREE RFHE 1T
EENENEEETHAREE  RAAERENE
BRI - HABREER URELETEREE LW
RE
EETEAREEENEREEAEBHEEERS
REBABEERRARIHERR A REEREA
50,000,000/ JT °
EreMNETSLZEeNFRANZZLEFIBEHT
N

Attendance Audit  Attendance  Nomination  Attendance Remuneration Attendance General
Board rate  Committee rate  Committee rate  Committee rate meetings
Name of directors =g HEE BEHRZEEE HEE REZEE HER FHEES HEE REXE
Number of Number of Number of Number of
meetings meetings meetings meetings
attended attended attended attended
in person/ in person/ in person/ in person/ Attended in
by proxy by proxy by proxy by proxy person
Rna/ 58/ Bne/ Rna/
ZRERK ZRARK ZERK ZRERE
HEEE HESH HEER HEEE
HRE N HRE HRB
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin (Chairman) BB 4 (£/E) 7/0 100%  NATER  NATEA 1/0 100% 1/0 100% 2
Ms. Chen Mei Huei REBIL (H77R) 5/2 100% NARER  NATEAR NVANER NATER NATER NATER 0
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liao Wen | BXREE 1/0 14%  NARER  NATER  NANER NATER NANER NATER 0
Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer 5/2 100% NARER  NATEAR  NVANER NATER S NATER NATER 0
K&
Mr. Chen Wei Chun BEHEE 7/0 1006 NARER  NATER  NVANER  NATER NATER NATER 2
Mr. Yip Chung Wai David ZEERE 3/0 100% NATER  NVATER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER 1
(resigned on June 29, 2016) (Z2—X<EXA
(Note 1) —ThBER)

(Bt
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Attendance Audit  Attendance  Nomination  Attendance Remuneration Attendance General
Board rate  Committee rate  Committee rate.  Committee rate meetings
Name of directors Ezg HEE EHNZEE HEE REZEE HEX HMzSE HER BRRAE
Number of Number of Number of Number of
meetings meetings meetings meetings
attended attended attended attended
in person/ in person/ in person/ in person/ Attended in
by proxy by proxy by proxy by proxy person
Bna/ Bng/ Ba/ Ba/
ZERRK EERRK RERRK RERR
HEEE HEES tREE HEEE
KRB R HRE KR
INEDs BYFHTES
Mr. Han Chien Shan BTIL%E 51 86% 2/0 100% 1/0 100% 1/0 100% 1
Mr. Wu Chia Ming RERALE 7/0 100% 2/0 100% 1/0 100% 10 100% 0
Mr. Lee Chien Kuo (resigned on FREEE (ZF—R 5/0 100% 1/0 100%  NATER  NATER 1/0 100% 0
August 1, 2016) (Note 2) FNA—BEER)
(P=E2)
Mr. Ko Yen Hui (appointed on August FIABEE (ZF—7X 1/0 100% 1/0 100  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATEA 0
1,2016 and resigned on September E/\ﬂ AZER
20, 2016) (Note 3) Z-R"ENA
:'I- HEER)
(BizE3)
Mr. Li Chak Hung (appointed on FRELE (2R 1/0 100% NADER  NATER  NATNER NARER  NATER  NATER 0
September 20, 2016) (Note 4) FNRAZTHZHE)
(BizE4)
Note 1:  Three Board meetings were held during the period from January 1, 2016 to June 29, a1 : BZ2E—R"E—A—BE-ZT—X"EF~A=-+NBILH
2016. FaﬁEfj%ﬁ REEEEH-
Note 2:  Five Board meetings were held during the period from January 1, 2016 to August 1, Wa2: BZZE—AR"E—A—HEZE=_Z—<E/\A—BLHHEE
2016. é%fﬂiu\§$§§u§°
Note 3: One Board meeting was held during the period from August 1, 2016 to September 20, M3 B2 —A~"FENA—BEZZS—"FNA=ZTHILHHA
2016. Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ REEGEH-
Note 4:  One Board meeting was held during the period from September 20, 2016 to Mits: BZE—R"FAA=Z+HE=-Z—X"F+=-A=+—H
December 31, 2016. IHRMEBERIT—XEEEEE -
Directors’ Continuous Professional Development (‘CPD") Programme EEREEREYRRE ([HEEZEERE])FAE
SMT has rolled out a CPD Programme for directors with an aim to improve ESETEMAMAESHTHRESERRFE 81

their general understanding of SMT's business, to refresh their knowledge

and skills as well as to receive updates on developments in corporate

governance practices. In addition, directors may also choose to attend

external courses, conferences and luncheons organised by various local

organisations.

&2

&R Y
EEBAFRE

MEBEEHEFTTRENEE T - fH7TAEREFH
URERBREEEARERERBENE
N EET AR B2 N E A S A

eERTEE-
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Reading materials were provided to directors on the latest developments FREACEELRTHEFBABKAMEIANETEER
or updates in corporate governance practices and relevant legal and DREFEROMEMHTRETES E58H
regulatory developments. A record of the directors’ participation in the SEEEBRITIMNCHEALWEHT -

CPD Programme is kept with the company secretary.

Accountability and Audit BEREX

Financial Reporting B 7% B

The Board recognises the importance of integrity of financial information EESRNVBENTENEEZN YAEEEER
and acknowledges its responsibility for preparing financial statements FRBEEBVBRSEL ([HBEHREER]) -2

that give a true and fair view of the Group's affairs and of its results and AGEDI (BB EDIFe228) ([AaMEH]) R £
cash flows in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards RABERBRRERRENEERA T RS
("HKFRSs"), the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong EH FEEURBR R BRER - EFFH
Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”) and the applicable disclosure provisions WRABRERAEEHEE AR SELFE R
of the Listing Rules. The Board endeavours to present to shareholders a SREROTZ - At BEETEESHE SR
balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's performance, KRIWERMEA - MmEEENEERTE 2 HIET R
position and prospects. Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are HREBRENREGE-

selected and applied consistently, and judgments and estimates made
by the management for financial reporting purpose are prudent and

reasonable.

The adoption of relevant new and revised HKFRSs that became effective BN SRR AT E  NEBARMANFNE
during the year has no significant impact on the Group's results of B2 R AT REMEFT 2 BB S AN ME AR E
operation and financial position as disclosed in note to the financial MEERVBRAEEERTE-

statements.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the financial SNEZEMEEBEE T —"F+t=-A=1+—8”
statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 are set out in the IEFENMBERENEEHINNAFIRAOB LZH
Independent Auditor's Report of the Annual Report. BMER 2 A o

External Auditors and their Remuneration MEXEMREEME

The external auditors perform independent review or audit of the financial INEREME BB RN ERERETE Y

statements prepared by the management. BDO Limited (“BDO") has been ERNEZ BRI EEREEHABRA A
engaged as SMT's external auditor. (BB EEREFMER] ) XEREEST

Z INEE A2 B A o
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For the year ended December 31, 2016, the fees charged to the financial
statements of the Group in respect of BDO's statutory audit and other
service amounted to approximately HK$1,560,000 and HK$250,000
respectively. The fees of recurring audit services of subsidiaries performed
by other auditors and the fees of provision of other services were
approximately HK$1,276,000.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control which is designed and operated to provide
reasonable assurance that SMT's business objectives in the following areas
are achieved:

effectiveness and efficiency of operations, including the
achievement of performance and operating targets and the
safeguarding of assets by the management;

reliability of financial and operating information provided by the
management, including management accounts and statutory
financial reports; and

compliance with applicable laws and regulations by each business
unit.

SMT has put and continues to place considerable emphasis on maintaining
and enhancing the effectiveness of its system of internal control. Under
SMT's internal control framework, risk management and internal control
are primarily the collective responsibility of every manager and employee.
For consistent compliance by every person in SMT, the following key
control policies and measures are implemented in the everyday activities,
which are summarised below:

1. Overall control environment, including code of conduct governing
staff conduct within the Group, and whistle blowing policy;

REBE-_ZE—RNE+-_A=1t—HILEEFBILE
EXEMEBRASE R 2 MR ETBEZE
TEEZREERREAMREE RS 5491,560,00078
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2. Management of financial and non-financial risks, including at 2. VBRIV BRERER BIERAGERL
the company level the risk management functions of the Board; EECYRBNETIERE TEKENED
at the business unit level management’s ongoing monitoring of TEREHEERAMRERFELESR k1T
operational and other risks; and throughout the Group, submissions BRESEHET LR R E T RS -
and reviews of risk assessment reports, as well as a variety of LA R E B2 B IRBE L HE A B IR AT AR A B

insurance arrangements to manage insurable risks;

3. Major controls systems and processes, including budgetary and 3. FEZFRGRRE  BEEE KT
cost controls, financial reporting systems and processes for timely Hil - S ERARS R REAREER REE
and quality management reporting, and corporate policies and MERmE URCEREREATEEBRE
procedures for approvals, reviews and segregation of duties in FETHNEN BERLETE S K

everyday activities; and

4. Ongoing compliance monitoring and internal control reviews: the 4. SFEERAMRIBN  WETRIP TR
company secretary undertakes overall monitoring of compliance NEMEERERERY FMRAZET
with the Listing Rules; Internal Auditor is directly reported to the B MBI EEREZZEgERE
audit committee and is engaged to conduct independent reviews MoWBEEHANREERRERERETE L
on the internal controls and risk management. Eizo

5. The audit committee has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness 5. BZEERNEST NS ER (RIEH

7

of SMT's internal controls, including financial, operational and B EERaRENEREIARERE)RS
compliance controls and risk management. It has also considered RHRREN NERGT R BERBER
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of HNER BIEREREBRETEN UK
the accounting and financial reporting functions and their training BETEIREEERERE

programme and budget.

In conducting these reviews, the following reports and activities are ET EoRER BEEEATHREREIE:
considered:
self-assessments made by management of various business units . EEBBMARNBRARZEEEHESLR
and subsidiaries of their material controls and risk management [ERREREETBREEZE 2 HEAEK]
activities undertaken with reference to the COSO (The Committee (COSO)TE 2 [ b B IR HE 2R 3 B K BE 4% 12 3 Bax
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) ERESEL B RNME BRAB /X
Enterprise Risk Management framework. The documentation HERBAFEAMRE &

supporting the self-assessments is subjected to review by internal
audit; and
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self-assessments made by business units and Group Finance of
SMT of the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
accounting and financial reporting functions and their training
programmes. The main conclusions are that:

- the resources in the accounting and finance functions are
adequate;

- the qualifications and experience of the staff of the
accounting and finance functions are satisfactory overall;
and

- the training activities and budgets have been continually
given considerable attention during the year and are
satisfactory.

The Board and management will continue to look into
opportunities for further enhancing the effectiveness of the
internal control system of SMT in the years ahead.

Internal Audit

The Group regards internal audit as an important part of the Board and
audit committee’s oversight function. The principal objective of internal
audit, which is set out in an internal audit charter, is to provide the Board
and the management with useful information and recommendations

on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group. During the year, the Group has an Internal Auditor (IA") to perform
internal audits for the Group.

Authority and Accountability

Under the internal audit charter endorsed by the audit committee, the
internal audit function is authorised by the Board to have access to all
records, people and physical properties relevant to the performance of
internal audit. The IA has unrestricted access to the chairman of the audit
committee and reports directly to the audit committee for direction

and accountability. This reporting relationship enables IA to provide an
objective assurance to the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group.
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Duties

The duties of the IA are described in the internal audit charter. It requires
that (a) internal audits are conducted with proficiency, objectively and
due professional care in compliance with the standards, guidelines, and
the code of ethics of the Institute of Internal Auditors; (b) audit testing
and reviews are carried out at all levels of the Group to provide reasonable
assurance as to whether the system of internal control is adequate;

the assets of the Group are properly safeguarded; the operations are
conducted effectively and efficiently in accordance with the Group's
policies and procedures as well as relevant laws and regulations; and the
accounting records of the audited entities and operations are reliable
and (c) special reviews are conducted by IA when required by the
management, the audit committee or the Board.

Internal Audit Resources and Major Work Done in
2016

The internal audit function in 2016 who are based in Dubai, India and
Nepal to provide audit services to various business units and functions of
the Group.

During the year, IA prepared and submitted the annual internal audit
plan to the audit committee for approval, according to a risk-based
audit priority weighting policy. Pursuant to the approved annual plan,
detailed audit planning for each audit, followed by field visits and
discussions with management, was conducted with the use of a risk-
based audit methodology. Reports to the management were prepared
after completion of the audit work, and were summarised for review at
each audit committee meeting. Continual follow-up work was undertaken
by IA to establish the extent of completion of remedial actions taken by
the management, with follow-up results, audit progress and available
resources reviewed by the audit committee at each committee meeting.
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Business Ethics
Code of conduct

At SMT, we consider ethical corporate culture and employees’ honesty and
integrity to be important assets. We endeavour to comply with the laws
and regulations of the countries in which we operate, and all directors and
employees are required to act responsibly to ensure that the reputation of
SMT is not tarnished. To uphold a high standard of integrity in all aspects
of everyday activities, SMT has adopted a code of conduct which provides
employees with a set of defined ethical standards for adherence. The code
of conduct is posted on SMT's intranet for reference by all staff.

Whistle blowing policy

SMT considers the whistle blowing channels as useful means of identifying
possible misconduct or fraud risks of a particular operation or function

by encouraging employees to raise concerns in good faith. SMT has
established a whistle blowing policy setting out principles and procedures
for guiding the employees of the Group in reporting cases of fraud,
corruption or misconduct in a fair and proper manner.

Inside information/price sensitive information disclosure
policy

The Board has adopted an inside information/price sensitive information
disclosure policy setting out the practices and procedures to (a) monitor
business and corporate developments and events so that any potential
inside information/price sensitive information is promptly identified and
relayed to the Board to enable it to make timely decisions on disclosure, if
necessary; and (b) take appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality of
inside information/price sensitive information until proper dissemination
of the inside information/price sensitive information via the electronic
publication system operated by the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ and relevant employees’ securities transactions

SMT has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. All directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout 2016. The
interests held by individual directors in SMT's securities as at December

31,2016 are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’

Interest and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or its Associated Corporation” in the Report of Directors.

In addition to the requirements set out in SMT's code of conduct, the
company secretary regularly writes to executive management and
other relevant employees who are privy to unpublished price sensitive
information, as reminders of their responsibilities to comply with the
provisions of the Model Code and keep the matter confidential until
announced. They are also specifically reminded not to engage in any
insider dealings as stipulated under Section 270 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Communication with Shareholders

SMT considers effective communication with shareholders essential to
enable them to have a clear assessment of the enterprise performance as
well as accountability of the Board. Major means of communication with
shareholders of SMT are as follows:

Information disclosure on corporate website

SMT endeavours to disclose all material information about the Group to
all interested parties as widely and as timely as possible. SMT maintains
a corporate website at http://www.sandmartin.com.hk where important
information about SMT's activities and corporate matters such as annual

reports and interim reports to shareholders, announcements is available for

review by shareholders and other stakeholders.

When announcements are made through the Stock Exchange, the same
information will be made available on SMT's website.

During 2016, SMT issued various announcements in respect of financing
and inside information, which can be reviewed on SMT's website.
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General meetings with shareholders

SMT's annual general meeting provides a useful platform for direct
communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

Voting by poll

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of SMT (other than on
procedure matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of
the poll are explained to the shareholders at the commencement of each
general meeting, and questions from shareholders regarding the voting
procedures are answered. The poll results are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and SMT respectively on the same day as the poll.

Investor relations

SMT recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to those with a
legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. Investors are regularly
received and visited to explain the Group's businesses. In addition,
questions received from the general public and individual shareholders
are answered promptly. In all cases, great care is taken to ensure that no
price sensitive information is disclosed selectively. When announcements
are made through the Stock Exchange, the same information will be made
available on SMT's website.
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Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, aged 56 HEERE 565

ED, Group Chairman, RC, NC HITEF FEBFE RCNC

the husband of Ms. Chen Mei Hueli, is the founder and the Chairman BREBZTHX K NEBBIMAFRER - Hx4E
of the Group. Mr. Hung founded the Group in November 1989 and is R—RNANE+—RAEINAER BEREED

responsible for the Group's overall management, strategic planning and BEEE RBHERER WHFTABBEERE
development, and formulation of company policies and business strategy. BRE - RAEETEFRETEAFEBRIFH

Mr. Hung has over 27 years of management experience in the electronics ERELR ATARERZEEIBUAKRE FE
manufacturing industry. Mr. Hung graduated from the National Chengchi TEEERESELEM - RITTKEZBURREDRE
University in Taiwan, with a bachelor's degree in business administration. BRI ERIARE

He also completed the executives programme from the Graduate School of
Business Administration, National Chengchi University.

Ms. Chen Mei Huei, aged 55 £D, CEO REBLZL S5BHNTEF TR

the wife of Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, is a co-founder of the Group since HIEXRAENE T AEBEEREINA B
November 1989. Ms. Chen is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, — NN\ NE+—AEREBES Rt ALAEER
responsible for the overall management of the Group including all MEITR BERSENEBEIE BIEMBEIN
overseas offices. Ms. Chen has been actively engaged in the sales and MEE - ML TEB2EAEETEEREET
marketing development of the Group in Taiwan and the international GREEERBRBIF AFHEIRAERER
markets for more than 27 years and has particular focus on new customers MG REZTEXERNEEKXIAE FEAN
and new market development in recent years. Ms. Chen graduated from TEXRERESEE LB -

Tamkang University in Taiwan with a dual bachelor degree in Spanish
Literature and International Trade.

Mr. Liao Wen |, aged 49 £D BXHEE OBHTEF

is a co-founder of the Group since November 1989. Mr. Liao has over 26 AEESHERBIMA -B—IUN\NF+— ARE

years of experience in the cable and connector industries, including 21 BES BAATEESERERITEEERIRBGSF

years of management experience in the manufacturing operations in the KB BENFHEARLME ([HE])RESE
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr. Liao studied electronic device BEBKR BPRESREE—MIEXERIEE

maintenance in a technical college in Taiwan. BT REHEE-
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Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer, aged 57 £D

is the Vice President of the Group. Mr. Fischer joined the Group in January
2008 and is responsible for the global marketing strategy of the Group. Mr.
Fischer has more than 29 years of experience in hardware and software
development for consumer electronic products in Europe and has been
involved in Digital TV technologies since the beginning of Digital Video
Broadcasting Project (DVB) in 1994. He graduated as diploma degree
engineer for automation technology and cybernetics from the Technical
University Leipzig in Germany.

Mr. Chen Wei Chun, aged 39 £D

graduated from National Chengchi University with a master degree in
finance. He is well experienced in accounting and finance industries. Mr.
Chen currently is the Chief Financial Officer of Pro Brand Technology, Inc., a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Han Chien Shan, aged 51
INED, AC, RC, NC Chairman

is an independent non-executive director of the Company since February
2013. He graduated from the National Chengchi University with a
bachelor’s degree and a master’s degree in international trade. He also
holds the doctoral degree in finance from the National Taiwan University.
Mr. Han has extensive finance and teaching experience. He is currently
the associate professor and the department head of the Department of
Finance and International Business, Fu Jen Catholics University.

Mr. Wu Chia Ming, aged 48
INED, RC, NC, AC Chairman

is an independent non-executive director of the Company since December
2014. He has a master’s degree in business administration from the
Institute of International Business, National Cheng-kung University and a
bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering from Chung Yuan Christian
University in Taiwan. Mr. Wu has nearly 22 years of experience in financial
analysis and fund management. Currently, he is the Chairman of Fortune-
Future Investment Co., Ltd. Prior to that, Mr. Wu was a fund manager of KGI
Securities Investment Trust Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Li Chak Hung, aged 52
INED, AC, RC Chairman

is an independent non-executive director of the Company since
September 2016. He is graduated from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and holds a Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration. He is

a practicing Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. He has over 26 years' experience in accounting, auditing,
taxation and financial management. Mr. Li is currently an independent
non-executive director of SkyOcean International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 593) and an independent non-executive director of Dan Form
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 271), and was an independent
non-executive director of Alibaba Pictures Group Limited (formerly known
as ChinaVision Media Group Limited) (Stock Code: 1060) from September
2004 to June 2014, both companies are listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong.

Mr. Su Jow Shi, aged 54
Deputy General Manager of the Group’s digital TV division

is responsible for manufacturing operations. Mr. Su graduated from the San
Diego State University where he earned a Master of Public Administration
degree. Mr. Su joined the Group in September 1995.

Mr. Hsiao Yu Jung, aged 52
Deputy General Manager of the Group's cable division

is responsible for the procurement, manufacturing and development of
the Group's cable products. Mr. Hsiao obtained a diploma in mechanical
design engineering from the National Formosa University in Taiwan. Mr,
Hsiao joined the Group in July 2002.

Mr. Sven Willig, aged 44
General Manager of Intelligent Digital Services GmbH (“IDS”)

has joined the Group since 2005 and is currently responsible for hardware
and software development and sales of Digital Video Broadcasting
Products. He has over 17 years of management experience in the
development and quality control of digital television technologies.
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Ms. Su Wan Ling (also named Ms. Julia Swen), aged 52
Director of Pro Brand

has been working in our Group since 2007 and is responsible for

promoting the cable products and digital television products in the market

of the United States. She graduated from the University of California, with
a bachelor's degree in Biochemistry; a master’s degree in Environmental

Science and a master’s degree of Business Administration. Ms. Su has over

22 years of experience in research of biotechnology field and business
management.

Mr. James Crownover, aged 57
Chief Executive Officer of Pro Brand

has been working in Pro Brand since 2001. Prior to joining Pro Brand, he
was a sales account manager of DIRECT V since its inception in 1994.
He graduated from Old Dominion University with a bachelor’s degree in
science.

ED — Executive Director

INED - Independent Non-executive Director
AC - Audit Committee Member

RC - Remuneration Committee Member

NC - Nomination Committee Member
Chairman - Chairmanship for each Committee
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Principal Activities
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its

principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income on pages 56 to 57.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2016 (2015: Nil).

Financial Summary

A summary of results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 207.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group

during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Investment Properties

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at
December 31, 2016 were as follows:

Contributed surplus 8 A & £
Accumulated losses 2 5t &5 18

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

Subsidiaries

Particular of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2016.

RA T A DK

ARARZE—AF+=A=+—BARHETR
BT

December 31, December 31,
2016
—E—REF
+=-A=+—H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHT FH5T

181,788 181,788

(667,555) (219,790)

(485,767) (38,002)
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Borrowings

Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Hung Tsung Chin (Chairman)

Ms. Chen Mei Huei (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liao Wen |

Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer

Mr. Chen Wei Chun

Mr. Yip Chung Wai David (resigned on June 29, 2016)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Han Chien Shan

Mr. Wu Chia Ming

Mr. Lee Chien Kuo (resigned on August 1, 2016)

Mr. Ko Yen Hui (appointed on August 1, 2016 and
resigned on September 20, 2016)

Mr. Li Chak Hung (appointed on September 20, 2016)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2), Mr. Hung
Tsung Chin, Ms. Chen Mei Huei, Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr. Wu Chia Ming
shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, Ms. Chen Mei Huei and Mr. Liao Wen |, the executive
directors of the Company, each has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from April 1, 2005
and will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party by
three months’ prior notice in writing.
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PRESZZ L (FTBRED)

BXH %A
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Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer, the executive director of the Company, has
entered into a service contract with the Company and for a term of three
years commencing from June 24, 2011 and will expire on the earlier of the
date of the Company’s AGM in 2014 and the third anniversary of the date
of the service contract. The service contract may be terminated by either
party by giving to the other three months’ prior notice in writing.

Mr. Chen Wei Chun, the executive director of the Company, has entered
into a service contract with the Company and for a term of three years
commencing from August 28, 2015 and will expire on the earlier of the
date of the Company’s AGM in 2016 and the third anniversary of the date
of the service contract. The service contract may be terminated by either
party by giving to the other three months’ prior notice in writing.

Mr. Han Chien Shan, Mr. Wu Chia Ming and Mr. Li Chak Hung, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company, have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company and have been appointed for

a period of one year commencing from February 28, 2015, December 1,
2014 and September 20, 2016, respectively. The appointment is subject to
the retirement and re-election provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company
and may be terminated by either party giving to the other three months’
prior notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contract which is not determinable by the Company and any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

KX B 1T 2 FFrank Karl-Heinz Fischert 4 B B 7R
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or its Associated
Corporation

As at December 31, 2016, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares

and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the laws the “SFO") which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions in which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Capacity and
nature of
interests

B RERNEE

Beneficial owner B #EH A
Personal fE A & 2=

Beneficial owner B # #EA A
Personal & A # z

Beneficial owner B z #8 A

Personal & A # z&

Name of director

EEpA
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin £ BR3E 5 4

Ms. Chen Mei Huei FR=E 2+

Mr. Liao Wen | B X 3k 55 £

Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer

Notes:

1. Metroasset Investments Limited is held as to 45.09% by Mr. Hung Tsung
Chin, an executive Director, as to 44.38% by his wife, Ms. Chen Mei Huei, also
an executive Director, and as to 10.53% by Mr. Hung Chih Chun, a son of
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin and Ms. Chen Mei Huei. Mr. Hung Tsung Chin is also a
director of Metroasset Investments Limited.

EERBETHRAEBRADAHHEBEHE
E’Jﬂﬁfﬁ HERORESPHERS KK

RIE—RE+T_A=+—R ARAEFKES
TTHABRARR A EMEEER (E&LIEM
FNEFF MBS ([EHFERAEMEA ) FEXV
BB) BBt  ARBERX D RESF - EARIBEE S MY
EGRPIEXVEET RSN BIAMNERRR RE BB A
RHAARRE (TR MR RAR (B
WEREE S MG GOIEBIE R EERR R
BOEDRSORR)  HIRBEES KB ERGI 35215
B AZIGPIFT A m & R M e LR B SRR
B prag s EmAR R (T EMARA]) Midxk10mE £
METAEFETESFRHHRESTR ([REST
Al AMEARA MER NSRBI T

(i) AXAFEREEI0BITHWEER

Number of

the Company's
shares held

7 ES NN
v 4=

Percentage of
interests

B D

202,875,437  (Note 1) (Ki#E1) 15.47%
2 0.00%
202,875437  (Note 1) (Kf=ET) 15.47%
2,000,000  (Note 3) (i #E3) 0.15%
3,706,812  (Note 2) (Ff5E2) 0.28%
500,000  (Note 3) (Fff&E3) 0.04%
B3

1. Metroasset Investments Limited 2 — 5 12 25 /B B2
TEBERIMEERBRAT E2HEBITRG
R TESLRELE HEREZLL (RAA
WITES) A AERRER L+ 7 7R
5 4 5 BIHE B 45.09% * 44.38% 2 10.53%4 % °

J/




Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T BB 2R B R A 7
2016 Annual Report ]

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

(ii)

2. Wellever Investments Limited is held as to 86.14% by Mr. Liao Wen |, an
executive Director, and as to 13.86% by his wife, Ms. Lin Hsiu Ling. Mr. Liao
Wen | is also a director of Wellever Investments Limited.

3. This represents the ordinary shares of the Company to be allotted and issued
upon exercise of the share options granted to Ms. Chen Mei Huei and Mr.
Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer under the share option scheme of the Company
pursuant to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
on March 17, 2005.

All interests in the Company’s shares stated above represent long
position.

Share options

Pursuant to a share option scheme approved by a written
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on March
17,2005 (the “Option Scheme”) for a period of ten years, the
Company may grant options to the directors or employees, any
business consultants, business partners, suppliers, customers,
agents or financial or legal advisers of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, for the recognition of their contributions, to subscribe
for shares in the Company with a payment of HK$1.00 upon each
grant of options offered.

The exercise price of the share option will be determined at the
highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Company'’s shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

(ii) the average of closing prices of shares on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The share options are exercisable at any time during a period of not
more than 10 years from the date of grant, subject to the terms and
conditions of the Option Scheme, or any conditions stipulated by
the board of directors.

(i)

2. Wellever Investments Limited & — 5K 74 5 & & 2
HERIMIREERAR  HE2HBEETRG
HATEETEXREEREERFRZLTH
F5H86.14% 5% 13.86% M 25 °

3. ERBEAARNBRRR _-_ZETRFE=-A++tEHA
BRHEERZRFEMNNARA R BRESEET
BR3E 2 20+ K Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer 4t A4 B9 B8 A%
ERITERE FREERBITHARAA AL BER-

LRAFRBARBDRDERARTR -

B

REARFBRRNR-_ZTRF=A+LHA
BEMRBRAE SR T FOBRETS
(IBREE]) ARFARARALE
EAMBARMNESZNER (ERXHFHER
A EBEHK HER TP REHMBH
ERERE - RHBREARB AR MR,
ERREFELERNEE RS RERM
REBREA1.00ET

BRETEEERATI=ZENHKS

(i) B BN R B AD RO B AZ PR U T
1B

(i) ZEEREXL BB AERZSBR
MREERATEFH W TE : &

(iii) & 7 & °
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The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may RAT AR EOERERSRDEE LR
be granted shall not exceed 10% of the number of shares of the SHEEAARTRDEITRMNEE A10% °
Company in issue from time to time. Unless further shareholders’ b2 IRIEEIRERT EI TG B ITEE IR
approval has been obtained pursuant to the conditions set out in HESN REZERE B H 1A A28 A 21
the Option Scheme, no person shall be granted an option which, W-HET—BATHAEERE (BFEC
if all the options granted to the person (including both exercised TERERITENBRE) BE2ETHEg8
and outstanding options) in any 12 month period up to the date of BZA ANTESHRO RS E BAEERRF
grant are exercised in full, would result in such person’s maximum BEETROEBE 1% BITAMZAALRD
entitlement exceeding 1% of the number of issued shares of the FEARHE -

Company.

As at December 31, 2016, the number of shares in respect of which RZZE—RNFT+A=+—H REBKRE
options under the Option Scheme had been granted and remained FrEIE ﬁﬁ*f?fﬁmﬁﬁﬂx%}ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁwx
outstanding was 2,700,000, representing 0.21% of the shares of the N8B £2,700,000f - (ER = —RNF+=
Company in issue as at December 31, 2016. A=+—BARRAE 2 ETRMHHI021% °
The following table discloses movements in the Company's share TEREERNFRNARARAIERENES:
options during the year:

Closing price
per share
immediately Outstanding at
prior to the Outstanding at December 31,
grant date January 1,2016 2016
SERE ASA Exercise price R=ZB—RE Lapsed during R-B—RE
Type of grantee Date of grant HERETE TeE —H—H theyear | T=A=+—H
ARAER it AH (HKS) (7E7T) (HKS) (7&7T) i RAT B8 FRERNK ief RAT 68
Directors & %
Ms. Chen Mei Huei FRE = &+ 2010/10/22 205 205 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer 2010/10/22 2.05 205 500,000 - 500,000
2,500,000 2,500,000
Employees == 2007/12/27 1.76 1.76 100,000 - 100,000
2009/04/01 1.10 1.114 100,000 - 100,000
Total 85+ 2,700,000 - 2,700,000
Note: Bt 5 -
The share options are vested in stages as follows: BRESEREBOT
On or after the second anniversary of the date of grant 50% AR ASREE —BAFR 2% 50 %
On or after the third anniversary of the date of grant remaining 50% AEHAMEE=BFR2E £ T50 %
//%
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Options granted on December 27, 2007 are exercisable until
December 26, 2017, options granted on April 1, 2009 are
exercisable until March 31, 2019 and options granted on October
22,2010 are exercisable until October 21, 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2016, none of the
directors and chief executives of the Company had or were
deemed to have any interest, or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which has been
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or which has been notified to the Company
pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing Rules.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interest and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company

As at December 31, 2016, the interests or short position of the following
substantial shareholders in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which have been disclosed to the Company pursuant to Division 2 and

3 of Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Capacity and
nature of interests

St RERMEE
Beneficial owner B 25 # A A

Name of shareholder

BREREH

Metroasset Investments Limited

Note:

1. Metroasset Investments Limited is held as to 45.09% by Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, an
executive Director, as to 44.38% by his wife, Ms. Chen Mei Huei, also an executive
Director and as to 10.53% by Mr. Hung Chih Chun, a son of Mr. Hung Tsung Chin and
Ms. Chen Mei Huei.

All the interests in the Company’s shares stated above represent long
position.
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Number of

the Company’s
shares held
&R E]
R & E

202,875,437

Percentage of
interests

EEED
15.47%

(Note 1) (FfIzE1)

ok

1. Metroasset Investments Limited 2 — 5% 1A 55 8 g L B¥ & FX
VKRB EBRAR ERHEBRTRMBNTE AR
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Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the directors, as at December
31, 2016, there was no person (other than a director or chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest in the shares or underlying shares in
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non- executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent.

Directors’ Rights to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than the Option Scheme as disclosed under directors” and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares

and debentures of the Company of its associated corporation at no time
during the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

bR EXFTHEE N REEFA - 7 —R"E+=
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Related Party Transactions

Detailed of the related party transactions are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report. These related
transactions either did not constitute connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions or constituted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions but were exempt from all disclosure and
independent shareholders” approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Other employee benefits included insurance and medical cover, subsidised
training programme as well as the share option scheme that is set out in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-
laws or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

BEALRS

HEIEA TR ZFRFIBHERN G A MoK M 5E43
NeMZFEEALRZEABR ETRBMIIZ
WERX S,/ FHEREXHUETBREERS
BRERZARERFEH L EMARRIEAT Z BHR
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest
customers comprised approximately 54.4% of the Group's total sales and
the sales attributable to the Group's largest customer were approximately
31.9% of the Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
during the year were approximately 45.0% of the total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders which, to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued

share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the Group’s five
largest customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the

Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules throughout the year.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Tsung Chin
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 31, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A% RS

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

EEE : +852 2218 8288
{5H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANDMARTIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sandmartin
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 206, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in
the “Basis For Qualified Opinion” section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at December 31, 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion
Loan receivables and trade receivables due from two debtors

As at December 31, 2015, the Group had loan receivables and trade
receivables due from two customers (the “Debtors”) with gross amount
of HK$32,023,000 and HK$56,459,000 respectively of which HK$7,363,000
and HK$29,685,000 had been impaired during the year ended December
31, 2015. The Debtors are engaged in the operation of cable television in
Nepal. During the year ended December 31, 2016, no sales were made
to the Debtors and settlements of HK$1,327,000 were received from the
Debtors. Even though the Group was in a net current liabilities position
and had limited financial resources, the Group further advanced a loan of
HK$14,491,000 to the Debtors during the year. We have not been provided
with satisfactory explanation in this regard.

As at December 31, 2016, before the recognition of further impairment
loss in 2016, the net carrying amounts of loan receivables and trade
receivables from the Debtors were HKS$39,155,000 and HK$25,446,000
respectively. For the impairment assessment of loan receivables and trade
receivables from the Debtors as at December 31, 2016, the directors have
considered the financial conditions of the Debtors and concluded that
impairment of HK$39,155,000 and HK$25,446,000 on loan receivables
and trade receivables from the Debtors should be made and recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended December 31, 2016. After the recognition of
the impairment loss, the carrying amounts of the loan receivables and
trade receivables from the Debtors were HKSnil as at December 31, 2016.
However, the directors have not provided us with sufficient supporting
documents in relation to their impairment assessment in 2016.

Due to the circumstances as described above, there were no other
satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to obtain sufficient
audit evidence to understand these transactions and we were unable
to determine whether the full impairment losses on loan receivables
and trade receivables were appropriate. Any adjustments found to be
necessary would have an effect on the net assets of the Group as at
December 31, 2016 and net loss of the Group for the year then ended and
the elements making up the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 49 to the consolidated financial statements,
which described the details of litigations for the Company. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 3(b) in the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$107,358,000
during the year ended December 31, 2016 and, as of that date, the Group's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by HKS$199,566,000. As
stated in note 3(b), these events and conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information set out in the
Company's 2016 annual report. The other information comprises the
information included in the chairman’s letter to shareholders and chief
executive officer report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to
the date of this auditor’s report, and the corporate information, financial
review, corporate governance report, biographies of directors and senior
management, report of directors and financial summary, which are
expected to be made available to us after that date.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. As described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section above, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to understand
transactions with the Debtors and the impairment losses on loan
receivables and trade receivables from the Debtors for the year ended
December 31, 2016. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether
or not the other information is materially misstated with respect to this
matter.

When we read the corporate information, financial review, corporate
governance report, biographies of directors and senior management,
report of directors and financial summary, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to the Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering our legal
rights and obligations.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the “Basis
for Qualified Opinion” section and “Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern” section, we have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Impairment assessment of deposits paid to, loan to and
amount due from an associate

(Refer to notes 5, 15, 20 and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at December 31, 2016, the Group had several deposits and receivables
from an associate, Dish Media Network Private Limited, including (i)
deposit paid to an associate of HK$46,306,000; (ii) loan to an associate of
HK$25,309,000; and (iii) amount due from an associate of HK$78,256,000.

There is a risk that the carrying values of these deposits and receivables
are not recoverable. An impairment assessment judged by management
with reference to, among other things, (i) the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of the associate, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of the associate; and/or (ii) the recoverable
amounts of the associate, by using a discounted cash flow of three to five
years future cash flow forecasts for the associate and applying appropriate
discount rates.

After management'’s impairment assessment, no impairment loss on the
above balances with the associate is considered necessary.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
included:

- Reviewing the aging report and repayment history of the associate;
- Checking, on a sample basis, settlements during the year and

subsequent settlements from the associate to the relevant
supporting documents;
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- Circularising direct confirmations of the associate;

- Visiting and discussing with the management of the associate to
understand its business operations and development;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions of the
forecast based on the discussion with management and evidence
provided; and

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and checking the
mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow.

Valuation of relevant assets and liabilities upon the acquisition
of a subsidiary

(Refer to note 35 to the consolidated financial statements)

During the year, the Group entered into a share subscription agreement
with a shareholder of Ocean Oasis International Limited (“Ocean Oasis
BVI"). Pursuant to the agreement, an amount of HK$87,155,000 which
had been loaned by the Group to Ocean Oasis BVI was treated as a
consideration for the share subscription. After the transferring of loan
receivables into the shares of Ocean Oasis BVI, the Group'’s shareholding
in Ocean Qasis BVI increased from 11% to 51% and since then, Ocean
Oasis BVI and its subsidiaries become non-wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Group (previously recognised as an available-for-sale financial
asset). Management assessed the fair values of the identifiable assets
and liabilities as at the date of acquisition based on the valuation reports
prepared by an independent external valuer.
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The valuation is dependent upon significant management judgement in
estimating:

- The identification of acquired intangible assets; and
- The fair value of assets and liabilities acquired.

Allocation of purchase price consideration to goodwill and to acquired
assets and liabilities involved significant management judgement.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
included:

- Obtaining the share subscription agreement and all relevant
agreements, reading and understanding the terms of the
agreements;

- Analysing the loan capitalisation arrangement to determine
whether terms and conditions contained in the agreements were
appropriately reflected in the acquisition accounting;

- Evaluating management’s and independent external valuer's
assumptions and methodology supporting the fair values of
intangibles and net assets acquired and the useful lives applied to
the intangible assets acquired; and

- Evaluating the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity.
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Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment

(Refer to notes 5, 14, 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at December 31, 2016, the carrying amounts of goodwill, intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment are HK$134,874,000,
HK$21,698,000 and HK$75,365,000 respectively related to the satellite
TV equipment and antenna segment and newly acquired satellite TV
broadcasting segment and are assessed annually for impairment. The
Group made losses for the current and previous year. This situation
increases the risk that the carrying value of these assets may be impaired.

Impairment tests require the estimation of recoverable amounts of the
relevant cash generating units using a discounted cash flow, based on a
value-in-use approach, as detailed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

We identified the impairment assessment as a key audit matter because of
its significance to the consolidated financial statements and as it involves a
significant degree of judgement made by management which includes:

- Preparing future cash flow forecasts for the relevant cash
generating units; and

- Selecting and applying appropriate growth and discount rates
The Group also engaged an independent external valuer to assist

management in assessing the recoverable amount of satellite TV
broadcasting segment.
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Our response

Our key procedures in relation to management’'s impairment assessment
included:

- Assessing the accuracy of management'’s forecast by comparing
previous budgets to actual results;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions of the
forecast based on our knowledge of the industry and evidence
provided;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies;

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and checking the
mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the valuations; and

- Evaluating the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity.

Impairment assessment trade and bills receivables
(Refer to note 5 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements)

As at December 31, 2016, the Group had trade and bills receivables of
HK$297,633,000. There is a risk that these receivables are not recoverable.
An impairment assessment judged by management with reference to,
among other things, the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of
each debtor, including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor.

After management'’s impairment assessment, impairment losses on trade

and bills receivables of HK$17,038,000 have recognised in profit or loss
during the year.
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Our response

Our key procedures in relation to management’'s impairment assessment
included:

- Reviewing the debtors aging report and debtors repayment
history;

- Checking, on a sample basis, settlements during the year and
subsequent settlements from debtors to the relevant supporting
documents;

- Reviewing management's assessment for receivables which are
past due but not impaired and understanding the business natures
and rationale for these receivables; and

- Circularising direct confirmations of debtors, on a sample basis, and
performing alternative audit work on all non-replies by checking to
the relevant supporting documents.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities in this regard.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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B ZHEMRE ()

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Pik Wah

Practising Certificate Number P05325

Hong Kong, March 31, 2017
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2016 2015
ZE-REF —E-AhF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FHERT FAT
Revenue Y 25 6 1,801,501 1,627,889
Cost of sales & AR (1,618,296) (1,449,177)
Gross profit FE A 183,205 178,712
Other income, gains and losses HigA - Wz R EE (50,408) (7,551)
Increase/(Decrease) in fair value of KEWERNLQFE
investment properties i, CRd) 17 26,906 (2,447)
Distribution and selling costs KEE R B AR (45,709) (38,414)
Administrative and other expenses TEREMFAE (155,417) (172,665)
Research and development costs Tt 8% A 7R (41,595) (46,135)
Share of profit of associate FEAG — & 2 7 B 7 20 4,931 -
Finance costs A& B A 8 (14,653) (9,436)
Loss before income tax expense FEHZHATEE (92,740) (97,936)
Income tax expense FIS B = W 9 (14,618) (10,976)
Loss for the year rEFEERBE 10 (107,358) (108,912)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 E W=
Item that will not be reclassified HEET B8 7 B2 Em
subsequently to profit or loss: #JEA -
— Gain on revaluation of properties —EEHWE - 22,523
Item that may be reclassified HiE e B DB E
subsequently to profit or loss: #IE A -
— Release of exchange reserve upon —EEEHRB AR MERK®RE
disposal of subsidiaries i - 4,462
- Exchange differences on translation of ~ — B FINEFSHIIE H =58
foreign operations (6,624) (14,370)
Other comprehensive income rEEHMEEKE
for the year (6,624) 12,615
Total comprehensive income AEETEKRRELE
for the year (113,982) (96,297)
Loss for the year attributable to: THREEERFEERSE:
- Owners of the Company —KRQABIEAB A (77,655) (103,162)
- Non-controlling interests —JE IR i A (29,703) (5,750)
(107,358) (108,912)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
GEeBRmRkEMEERER (F)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE_ZT—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-XREF —E-TE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FTHET FHET
Total comprehensive income THEEEAEZERAZELE:
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company —ARRRHEBA (84,503) (89,670)
- Non-controlling interests —FEIER (29,479) (6,627)
(113,982) (96,297)
Loss per share BREE 13 HK cents HK cents
Al AL
- Basic —& K (6.2) (10.8)
- Diluted —#8 (6.2) (10.8)
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e IR R

AS AT DECEMBER 31,2016
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2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—hF
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
B 5 FBT FETT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB REE 14 142,554 157,046
Deposit paid to an associate B —HEEERRNE & 15 46,306 46,306
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERKIE 16 4,859 5,350
Investment properties LA 17 146,648 124,241
Goodwill EES 18 134,874 8,523
Intangible assets mEEE 19 21,698 26,469
Interest in an associate KRB RN ER 20 4,931 -
Available-for-sale investments AIHERE 21 - -
Loan to an associate ML RATINER 20 25,309 23,269
Amount due from an associate FE U — fE Bt i 2 R 3R I8 22 - 14,685
Loan receivables FEUE 3k 23 - 56,423
Deferred tax assets ?Eﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ 24 9,134 2,263
Total non-current assets ERBEEE 536,313 464,575
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 25 267,095 284,778
Trade, bills and other receivables FEUE R EIREE &
H fth & Y kIR 26 349,892 308,912
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERE 16 152 162
Amount due from an associate U — R & A B Y 3R 22 78,256 53,201
Bond receivables &% FE W IE 27 - 59,971
Pledged bank deposits BEPRITEFR 28 14,925 18,022
Bank balances and cash RITEGFARES 29 76,065 93,236
Total current assets MBEEBTE 786,385 818,282
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade, bills and other payables JENE SRR BNEE R
B JE A 5B 30 575,591 483,438
Tax liabilities MIEAE 18,071 13,402
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 31 390,433 348,739
Obligations under finance leases BhE M E A IE 33 1,856 1,840
Total current liabilities mENBEEE 985,951 847,419
Net current liabilities ;,.LEJEJE;‘%{E (199,566) (29,137)
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBAR 336,747 435,438
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
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AS AT DECEMBER 31,2016
RZE-—RE+-A=+—H

2016 2015
ZE-REF —E-AhF
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
By aE THET FET
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 31 1,288 1,699
Deferred tax liabilities BERAARE 24 44,155 40,998
Obligations under finance leases BB ERIE 33 9,186 11,036
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERRE 54,629 53,733
Net assets EERE 282,118 381,705
Capital and reserves attributable AATHEEAEEREIRFE
to owners of the Company
Share capital [N 34 131,153 104,586
Reserves & 245,435 242,044
Equity attributable to owners RAalEB ANERERS
of the Company 376,588 346,630
Non-controlling interests e AR A 2 47 (94,470) 35,075
Total equity RREE 282,118 381,705
On behalf of the directors RERES
Hung Tsung Chin Chen Mei Huei
Director Director
EF EFE

59



Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T B BR 1= it 5 BR 2 &)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

I':l ﬁ == N\ /
IlV\E*

4=4

Em

EI S

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

HE_ZT—R"F+-_A=+—HIFE

2016 Annual Report & 2§

Non-
controlling
Attributable to owners of the Company interests Total
NG 2-PN;3' FERES @zt
Share Property  Currency
Share Share option  Statutory Special revaluation translation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
nE L
kA ROEE BRERE AERE BIRE ERRE RERE RHER @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Fin T T FEL FEL FEL FET FET FET FET FET
(note a) (note b) (note c)
(Hsta)  (Wab)  (Bidc)
Balance at January 1,2015 R-B-RE-A-RAz&H 83223 349,246 7960 3101 89,175 57,054 33,859 (279,214) 372314 40,009 412323
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - - (103162 (103,162) (57500 (108912)
Other comprehensive income Ht2EkG
- Revaluation of properties -Efing - - - - - 22523 - - 22523 - 2523
- Release of exchange reserve upon -EHENBARAMER
disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) BE G (h30) - - - - - - 4462 - 4462 - 4462
- Exchange differences on translation of ~ ~EBREBINEBMELR
foreign operations ERZE - - - - - - (13493) - (13493) (877) (14,370)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2EKHAE - - - - - 22523 (9031)  (103,162) (89,670) (6627) (96,297)
Issue and conversion of convertible bonds %47 REHA AR EH
(note 32) (3¥32) 4719 13,365 - - - - - - 18084 - 18084
Issue of ordinary shares (note 34) BOTEmR (M) 16,644 29,258 - - - - - - 45,902 - 45902
Contribution for non-controlling RE—HMBAREERER
interest of subsidiary HE R - - - - - - - - - 1693 1,693
Balance at December 31, 2015 and RZB-EF+tZA=1+-BK
January 1,2016 —E-XE-B-Bz&4% 104,586 391,869 7960 3101 89,175 79577 24,828 (382,376) 346,630 35075 381,705
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - - - (77,655) (77,659) (29703)  (107,358)
Other comprehensive income 2 ElE
- Exchange differences on translation of ~ ~EBEBIEBMELR
foreign operations ERZE - - - - - - (6,848) - (6,848) 24 (6,624)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2EKHBE - - - - - - (6848) (77,655) (84,503) (29479) (113982
Issue of ordinary shares, net of BOLRR MREERIAL
direct issue costs (note 34) (3¥34) 26,567 87,894 - - - - - - 114461 - 14461
Contributions by non-controlling RE Rl BARERER
interests of a subsidiary (note 47) HER (M) - - - - - - - - - 21492 21492
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) B - NI EED) - - - - - - - - - (121558 (121558)
Transfer LR - - - 469 - - - (469) - - -
Balance at December 31,2016 BWZB-RE+ZA=+-H2
73 131,153 479,763 7960 31,480 89,175 79577 17,980 (460,500) 376,588 (94,470) 282,118
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SHEZBE (A)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_ZT—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

Notes: Bt 5 -

(@) The statutory reserve is required by the relevant law of The People’s Republic of China (@) EERETDBEARMAPEARLME ([FE])EHE
(the "PRC") applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC. The statutory reserve can be RAIMHREBEAEREZRE A ERETEBERMCELT
applied in conversion into PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of a capitalisation issue. R P BB R R AR

(o) The special reserve represents: (b) BRI R -

(i) the difference between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired (i) PRI B AR R mEEEAD ARG £
subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the AT S EEMARRBEEEMBTHAR
acquisition at the time of a group reorganisation prior to the listing of the A% 15 E{E RAB R B IR R R EBHEE A ( ﬁ%.
Company's shares and the surplus arising pursuant to a capitalisation of BHAN—HBH)MEERBZENERE:

advances from shareholders as part of the group reorganisation;

(i) the difference between the consideration for acquisition of a subsidiary (i) L—EM B AR DR (I EERESN
satisfied by way of partial interest of a subsidiary without the overall gain KEZHD LEWE LR REGIE) B HUKE
or loss of control in the partial disposed subsidiary and the fair value of net —HNBRRREEAKEFEEATENE
asset acquired; and R

(iii) the acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary without the overall gain (iii) Wi — M S A Bl fEsMER (W EEBRERS
or loss of control in that subsidiary. KEZMBR R MZEHE) -

() The property revaluation reserve is frozen upon the transfer of properties from (@] MESERBEREVE BERREEEMEZREDY
property, plant and equipment to investment properties and will be transferred to ERERAE  BREEHEEMEREREZER-

accumulated losses when the relevant properties are disposed of.
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2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—hF
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
s FHET FETT
Cash flows from operating activities REXKBEERE
Loss before income tax expense FMERH X HREE (92,740) (97,936)
Adjustments for: RTVIELFE:
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 4,807 6,371
Depreciation of property, W -WEREETE
plant and equipment 27,851 29,118
Finance cost BE AR 14,653 9,436
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BEMEEEIE
plant and equipment yaee:) 2,103 (2,042)
Fair value loss of bond receivables EHFEWFIERN A T EEE - 4,758
Impairment loss on trade and other FEUE 5 BR 3R B H A JE W 5K IR
receivables B &R 43,901 39,063
Impairment loss on goodwill BB EEE - 14,917
Write-down of inventories FEMR 5,165 2,801
Reversal of impairment loss on bond &5 e W R IE R (B B 1B O
receivable - (24,758)
Impairment loss on loan receivables FE W B FOR B E 18 39,155 48,828
Loss on changes in fair value of AMEESFNAFEZEEE
convertible bonds - 2,393
Interest income HMEWA (1,946) (5,146)
Effective interest income on bond BEHEWFIEN BT B WA
receivables (1,282) (7,992)
Release of prepaid lease payments B EEEERIAE 160 219
(Increase)/Decrease in fair value of WEWENRFE (M)
investment properties V%o (26,906) 2,447
Interest income from an associate H—EEE L amNF B A (2,185) (2,136)
Share of result of associate i — MBS NamNES (4,931) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M B ARl s - (5,241)
Operating cash flows before EELASEDAMNLCERSRE
working capital changes 7,805 15,100
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERL () 11,755 (57,336)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade, JEWE ZEEF - EUNEIE &
bills and other receivables H e saE (gm) R (79,568) 21,535
Increase in trade, bills and other payables [EfT & 5 R BN ZEE R
H A JE - FRIE L AN (169,789) (127,742)
Increase in amount due from associate JE U — B & 2 B B FRIB S 0 (9,559) -

62



Sandmartin International Holdings Limited B2 5 T BB 2 R B R A 7

2016 Annual Report & ¥

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

2016 2015
ZE-REF —E-AhF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FHERT FHET
Cash used in operations KEEBMARS (239,356) (148,443)
Income tax paid BN FED (12,652) (17,255)
Interest received 2 U FIE 3,199 9,017
Interest paid ERFE (14,653) (8,845)
Net cash used in operating activities RS RGBS 2 FE (263,462) (165,526)
Cash flows from investing activities REEKEERE
Deemed capital injection WRBIEE - 1,693
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BRI ROR D 4,115 99,242
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BE RFRERERIEA
plant and equipment 13,361 10,399
Proceeds from disposal of HEGFEEEMSRIA
assets held for sale - 32,958
Net proceeds for disposal of subsidiaries & [} & A B AT 15 R IE T 48 36 - 33,441
Acquisition of subsidiaries I EERKT B & A 35 8,759 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E ¥ % - 5 L& & (33,254) (30,418)
Addition to intangible assets RERTEAE (33) (1,137)
Repayment from an associate — B E QA FER - 3,349
Addition to loan receivables RNERKER - (81,402)
Repayment of loan receivable & Z@JE%ZE/TA 17,266 4110
Receipts from the maturity of & 75 FE WK I8 B HA P 15 3018
bond receivables 60,000 90,000
Subscription of bond receivables REESFEWFIE - (50,000)
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary U & — & Bf B ﬂ mEfME & - (9,301)
Net cash from investing activities KB REBAHTEHE 2 FE 70,214 102,934
Cash flows from financing activities RMETBHHEERE
New bank and other loans raised ERITREMER 597,198 676,645
Repayment of borrowings BEER (554,091) (633,135)
Repayment of obligations under EEmEMEEAYE
finance leases (183) (1,834)
Contributions by non-controlling RE—FEME A TR R
interests of a subsidiary =1 s 21,492 -
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares, BT E BRPTSIE
net of direct issue costs nhREE §§TTW$ 114,461 45,902
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds 277 A] #2 i% {& 5 AT 15 U IE - 15,100
Net cash from financing activities BEZE TR 2 FHE 178,877 102,678
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2016 2015
—E-XREF —E-TE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FERT FAT
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRBELEEY CAL) &
and cash equivalents FE (14,371) 40,086
Cash and cash equivalents FUREERREEED
at beginning of the year 93,236 55,883
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ YMNES[E R 8 & (2,800) (2,733)
Cash and cash equivalents FRASGERCEED
at end of the year 76,065 93,236
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRBReSEYEHI T
and cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash wITHEFRE 76,065 93,236
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR R R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_ZT—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereafter referred to as the
“Group”) principally engages in manufacturing and trading of
satellite TV equipment products and other electronic goods and
satellite TV broadcasting. The details of principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

During the year, the Group has adopted all the amended HKFRSs
which are first effective for the reporting year and relevant to the
Group. The adoption of these amended HKFRSs did not result in
material changes to the Group's accounting policies.

At the date of this report, certain new and amended HKFRSs have
been published but are not yet effective, and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group's accounting

policy for the first period beginning after the effective date of the
pronouncement. The directors are currently assessing the impact of
the new and amended HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
directors have preliminarily concluded that the initial application
of these HKFRSs will not result in material financial impact on

the consolidated financial statements. Information on new and
amended HKFRSs that are expected to have an impact on the
Group's accounting policies is provided below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_ZT—X"F+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on

or after January 1, 2018. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements

for the classification and measurement of financial assets. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the
business model test) and that have contractual terms that give

rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow characteristics
test are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity’s business model

is both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell
the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election at
initial recognition to measure equity instruments that are not held
for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for all
financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred
loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS

39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the
amount of change in fair value attributable to change in credit risk
of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive income unless
that would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.

2.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning

on or after January 1, 2018. The new standard establishes a

single revenue recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS

15 supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4 Allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue related
topics that may change the current approach taken under HKFRS.
The standard also significantly enhances the qualitative and
quantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2019. HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-
of use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies
cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and
an interest portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to

be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an option

to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.
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3.

69

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRS") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
which are measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

During the year, the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$107,358,000 and at the end of reporting period,

the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$199,566,000. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available sources of
finance in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern. In
particular, the directors of the Company have considered
the following measures: (1) As of December 31, 2016,

the Group has unutilised bank loan facilities totalling
HK$150,514,000 available to finance its future operations;
(2) The Group obtained new loan facilities of an amount of
HK$279,000,000 with repayment term of 18 months, which
is pledged by the Group's 59.1% equity interests in Pro
Brand Technology, Inc.; (3) On March 20, 2017, the Company
proposes the open offer of 1,967,295,000 new shares on the
basis of three open offer shares for every two shares held
at HK$0.12 per share (details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated March 20, 2017). The open offer is
conditional upon approval at the Special General Meeting
and if the open offer take place, the Company will receive
gross proceeds of HK$236.1 million; and (4) Although

the winding up petition (refer to note 49 for details) may
potentially have an impact on the open offer, the Company
is of the view the petition is vexatious and has sought legal
advice on making an application to strike out the petition.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group's forecast and projections, after taking into account
of financial performance, operation as well as capital
expenditure and the above financing arrangements of the
Group, the Group is expected to have sufficient liquidity
to finance its operations for the next twelve months
subsequent to end of reporting period. Therefore, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared on a going concern basis.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

71

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

Should the proceeds from the above 4 measures be
excluded, the Group will not be able to continue in
business as a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to adjust the value of assets to their estimated
realisable values, to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities respectively, and
to provide for any further liabilities which may arise. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account

when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment’, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 3. HWRE® (&)
(b)  Basis of measurement and going concern (b) RNEERRFELERS (&)
assumption (Continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value o B BHmEmMS - A FEFE
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based NRE—HF B_RAE=F B
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value ERDIBBEATFEFEHABIE A
measurements are observable and the significance of the BRBEERZER A BB ATE
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which AEEEZEZRREEMmME S KB
are described as follows: K
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in J F— R ANBUIRIRZ B SN ET
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that EHHAREHAREERE
the entity can access at the measurement date; BERERT S 2 WE (REHE
)
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices . B ABUBRIERI B S
included within Level 1, that are observable for the T HEREEXBEME Z%l
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and B (E—RANZBERIN)
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset . F =R ABIEE T HER
or liability. BEIBEMES 28K
(c)  Functional and presentation currency () MWeERZ2IER
The functional currency of the Company is United States RARIKINaEE® BT ([
dollars ("USD"), while the consolidated financial statements 1) EEMBHRERET (18
are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"). As the To1) 25 B A RN BB FT
Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange, R ET WESRABEMNETIER
the directors consider that it will be more appropriate to AEBRAQNGNENEKTIER
adopt HKD as the Group’s and the Company'’s presentation o
currency.
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4.

73

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EAEGFBE
(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations (a) HEEEREBSH
() Basis of consolidation () e RE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies in line with the Group’s amounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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4.

75

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

()

(i)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts

of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for

using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group

to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BRGTEE (&)
(Continued)
(a)  Basis of consolidation and business combinations (a) HMEEEREKRSH (E)

(Continued)

(i) Business combinations (Continued) (i)  REEH (&)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets and RUHE B ER - AT R & E R P
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, EEBERESHATER
except that; R MR FIIE B BR AN

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income

taxes” and HKAS 19 “"Employee benefits”
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related

to share-based payment arrangements

of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS

5 "Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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4.

77

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(i)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of

the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the Group's interest in the fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously

held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at

fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another
standard.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(i)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that

qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the

fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that

is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured

at subsequent reporting dates in accordance

with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate,
with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(i)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period

in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which
the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to

participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events

in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using

the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income

in relation to that associate on the same basis as would
be required if that associate had directly disposed of

the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income

by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon
such changes in ownership interests.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquire over the fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RS RAR 5T (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from

the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit
("CGU") is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication

that the unit may be impaired, by comparing its carrying
amount with its recoverable amount, and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in
the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below

its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its
value in use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
estimated customer returns, rebates, discounts and sales
related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:
the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;
the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference

to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below) are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

87

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost

of items of property, plant and equipment other than
properties under construction less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes

an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of

that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over

their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposals or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RS RAR 5T (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

(i) The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised

in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.
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4.

89

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9) Leasing (Continued)

(i)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised

as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation

so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred. Operating lease payments are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9) Leasing (Continued)

(iii)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as "prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

4.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

91

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the
foreign operation.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's

foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes

a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation on or after July 1, 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

4.

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 28 55 T B BR iZ it 5 BR 2 7]

2016 Annual Report & %}

EREFEE (&)

(h)

S ()

2GR AV BHREMS AEEE
INEBHNEERBEZRREHRD
RITEERBRESAEENERER
(BEL)  mEWRAREZAEFA
e R;mE - BrIERI N IE R KIE R
g RAEBEATARARSE BEA
MIEX -FIEEMERZE (F)RN
Efemkzmm WEmmi
BREBET R (RBRIEERER
(s@Em) ) o

REEFINER (AEEREENE
INETEH 2B e - P R K
ﬁi%%%%%%@?%?ﬂ%mﬁ
BN REZANRTIMABEAR
%ﬁAfﬁM%%%%ﬁEi%%é
FioEEES oI BLHEHB M
JB A FE I £ S| BN & & 2k & T RZ Y
JB a2 R Bkt G RETE
HEBEMH>RETIHEERER BT
EEERNER -

R-ZETRFLA-HAHZERBEBK
BEINRBMELMEEARRIEE
KA ERENEERAFEFHBSR
EZBINRGNEERBERE I
BHREPRNRITERBE EXE
BREM2E R AER -

92



Sandmartin International Holdings Limited B2 5 T BB 2 R B R A 7
2016 Annual Report & ¥

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RS RAR 5T (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

4.

93

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

(J)

(k)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time

to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to

the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying

assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) and the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from "profit before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to

the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will

be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries

and interests in an associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to

the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property

is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)] Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for

on a prospective basis (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale;
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)] Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

97

Research and development expenditure
(Continued)

the intention to complete the intangible

asset and use or sell it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate

probable future economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical,

financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the

intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the

expenditure attributable to the intangible

asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for an internally-

generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the

intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria

listed above. Where no internally-generated

intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period

in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-

generated intangible asset is measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as

intangible assets acquired separately.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)] Intangible assets (Continued)

(iii) Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at the fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

(iv) Derecognition intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured

as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories is determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

99

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets

The Group's financial assets comprise loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined

at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade, bills, and other receivables, loan receivables,
bond receivables, loan to an associate, amount

due from an associate, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sales financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated as available-
for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as available-for-sales financial assets
and are traded in an active market are measured

at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-
sales monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-sales equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sales financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investment revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sales equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's
right to receive the dividends is established.

Available-for-sales equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form

an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators

of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iif)

103

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 60 to 120 days, and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

4.

EREFEE (&)

(n)

TR TR (&)

(iii)

EMEERE (&)
MENEBEEREE:

. BT AREF I HBRR
EMHRE: 3K

. BA - R E R A
BEAE

5 R A 5 R BE B E Sl
TTHFEM -

RETEINSREE (WE
WEZRFK)ME  KRFED

EERIRENEES RTTRE
FHERE - EUBRA AR E
MEBREERNBREANEEAT
H R AL B~ S P B IB60E
120K 1915 F3 B 0 2 32 1+ 5K
IRBUE AN DA Ko BLUR 80 e W R
HABNBERRE LB R
MR R -

LIREER AT SRS M EE
& - B RERR ARl (B 5 1R BN AR
REREAERHSRERSRE
ERBERMNEFTRMETRAIR
TRERMRERNER-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iif)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for

all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes

in the carrying amount of the allowance account are

recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of

amounts previously written off are credited to profit

or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains

or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss in the period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised

cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease

can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses were recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of available-for-sales equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit
or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-
sales debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EBEREFEE (&)
(Continued)
(n)  Financial instruments (Continued) (n) S@TIEE)
(iv)  Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) v) EHEEREZ (&)
Equity instruments EmITA
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences T AAFHEBEERS
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after Eam (KHIBREMBEE) D
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments &4 REBEFTEEITH R
issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds = T BB RTS8 (b
received, net of direct issue costs. BEEBITHAR) AR
Financial liabilities SRAR
Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other tRIEE (RERNE SR
payables and bank and other borrowings are T RN AR K B AN FRIE
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the NRRITREMEET) EBH
effective interest method. FR B PR R 8 UK S e B B AN BT
% o
() Convertible loan notes v) A] 14 R (& 75

Convertible loan notes issued by the Group that
contain both liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is a conversion option
derivative. At the date of issue, the conversion
option derivative is recognised at fair value. Any
excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as liability.
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(v)

NETZA=T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible loan notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible loan notes is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, until
extinguished on conversion or maturity. The
conversion option derivative is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

When the notes are converted, the carrying amount
of the liability portion together with the fair value of
the conversion derivative at the time of conversion
are transferred to share capital and share premium
as consideration for the shares issued. When the
notes are redeemed, and difference between the
redemption amount and the carrying amounts of
both components is recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible loan notes are allocated to the liability
and conversion option components in proportion
to the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the conversion option derivative is
recognised in profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible loan notes using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DR ETEINEENE Y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract
at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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NETZA=T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(Viii)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only

when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(Viii)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than

in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised

in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues

to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between

the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

111

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date

is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,

with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in the share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still

not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will continue to be
held in the share option reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DR ETEINEENE Y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When

a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs

of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4.

113

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets (p)
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset

(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities (q)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow

of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,

the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of key management personnel

of the Group or the Company's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); or

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the reporting entity or
to the parent of the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(i

(i)

(iii)

115

that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

children of that person'’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised

in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that

has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group's investment properties situated in

the PRC with carrying amount of HK$69,648,000 as at December
31,2016 (2015: HKS61,841,000) are held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale; therefore, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
such investment properties are recovered through sale is rebutted.
As a result, the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on
land appreciation tax on changes in fair value of these investment
properties but has only recognised deferred taxes on enterprise
income tax.

The remaining investment properties located in Hong Kong

with carrying amount of HK$77,000,000 as at December 31,

2016 (2015: HK$62,400,000) are held under a business model
whose objective is to recover entirely through sale, rather than

to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied

in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on such investment properties, the
directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a
result, the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of investment properties as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on disposal of its investment properties in Hong
Kong.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the
next financial year.

Impairment loss on receivables, deposit and advance

The assessment of the impairment loss on trade receivables,

loan receivables, loan to an associate and amount due from an
associate of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of accounts and on management's estimate.

In determining whether impairment is required, the Group takes
into consideration the aging status, creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each counterparty. Specific allowance is made
for receivables if objective evidence of impairment exists and is
recognised as the difference between the estimated future cash
flow expected to receive discounted using the original effective
interest rate and the carrying value. If no objective evidence
exists that receivables are impaired on an individual basis, trade
receivables are included in a collective assessment of impairment.
If the financial conditions of counterparties of the Group were

to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.
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—2—AFtZASt—BILFE
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on receivables, deposit and advance (Continued)

As at year end date, the carrying values on receivables are as
follows:

ARSI AE R AT THBEEN
FERF (&)
HEFTABERNEZRIF (F)

JEW AT 5T R 26 o B TR (4E)

RER BURFENREENT

2016 2015

=EB-RF —

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FATT

Trade and bills receivables EWE SRR R EREE 297,633 248,930
Loan receivables eI E X - 56,423
Loan to an associate LY —EEEQAFTNER 25,309 23,269
Amount due from an associate JE Ug — fEl Bt i R R A9 SR IE 78,256 67,886
401,198 396,508

These balances were net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK145,157,000 (2015: HK$102,293,000) and impairment of loan
receivable of HK$59,507,000 (2015: HK$109,515,000). Details of
the movement of allowance for doubtful debts are disclosed in
note 26. No impairment loss has been recognised for loan to an
associate and amount due from an associate in both years as the
directors of the Company considered the carrying amounts still
recoverable.

ZEHF DR RRE 145,157,000

7T (ZZ—F 4 :102,293,00058 7T ) M B UK
B FOR 59,507,000 70 (Z T — R F
109,515,000/ 70 ) o REREEE B FHBF RN
W E AR AR EERANAIKE S
BEmMSH RMEMEFELERSL T —H
LN R E B JE IR — FE B 2 R R B
ERRMERE-



Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T B BR 12 it 5 BR 2 &)

2016 Annual Report & #§

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DR ETEINEENE Y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill, intangible assets,
and property, plant and equipment

Determining whether goodwill, intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment are impaired requires an estimation of

the value in use of the CGUs of (1) the business of satellite TV
equipment and antenna conducted by Pro Brand Technology, Inc.
("PBT") and (2) the business of satellite television broadcasting
conducted by newly acquired subsidiary, My HD Media FZ LLC
("My HD"), to which goodwill, intangible assets, and property, plant
and equipment have been allocated. The value-in-use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected

to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The discount rate represents rate that
reflects current market assessments of the value of money and the
risks specific to the assets for which future cash flows estimates
have not been adjusted. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at December
31,2016, the carrying amount of goodwill was HK$134,874,000
(2015: HK$8,523,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$83,744,000 (2015: HKS$83,744,000) and the carrying amount

of related intangible asset and property, plant and equipment

for these CGUs were HK$21,698,000 (2015: HK$26,469,000) and
HK$75,365,000 (2015: HK$74,236,000), respectively. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 18.

Estimated impairment of interest in an associate and
deposit paid to an associate

In determining impairment of interest in an associate and deposit
paid to an associate, the Group estimate its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the associate. Any impairment loss is recognised by write down
of the investment to its estimated recoverable amount. After
making such assessment, the directors of the Company are of the
view that no impairment loss of interest in an associate and deposit
paid to an associate was necessary during the year. Details are
disclosed in note 20.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Write-down of inventories

Provision for slow-moving inventories is made based on estimated
net realisable value of inventories. The assessment of the provision
amount required involves management judgment and estimates
in identifying obsolete and slow-moving inventories and estimate
relevant market values for those inventories identified. Where

the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value
of inventories and provision charge/written back in the period in
which the estimate has been changed. As at December 31, 2016,
the carrying amount of inventories was HK$267,095,000 (2015:
HK$284,778,000), and accumulated allowance of inventories

of HKS$24,374,000 (2015: HK$28,111,000) was recognised as at
December 31, 2016.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves significant judgement
in determining the amount of the provision and the timing of
payment. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax expense is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the
likely outcome with reference to current tax laws and practices.
Where the final tax outcome of these transactions is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such difference

will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

year in which such determination is made. Deferred tax assets
relating to certain deductible temporary differences and tax losses
will be recognised when management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the originally estimate,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax expense in the period in which such estimate is
changed.
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6. REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold, less returns and discounts, and services provided by
the Group to outside customers during the year. An analysis of the
Group's revenue is as follows:

Wy &=

WaEAEEAFERIIMEEFPHERER
REHREMEWREROFKIE (EHBRRE
Kyri) - AEBER RO T -

2016 2015

=F-RE —T-hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Sales of goods HEEm 1,788,490 1,625,608
Service income AR 7% U A 13,011 2,281
1,801,501 1,627,889

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment information reported externally was analysed on
the basis of their goods and services delivered or provided by the
Group's operating divisions which is consistent with the internal
information that are regularly reviewed by the executive directors
of the Company, the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance.
This is also the basis of organisation in the Group, whereby the
management has chosen to organise the Group around different
products and services.

Specifically, the Group's operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

(i) Media entertainment platform related products
Trading and manufacturing of media entertainment

platform related products
— which mainly used for satellite products equipment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Other multimedia products

Trading and manufacturing of other multimedia products
- components of audio and video electronic products such
as cable lines.

Integration of signal system and traffic
communication network

Integration of signal system and traffic communication
network

- provide installation and integration of signal system and
traffic communication network.

Satellite TV equipment and antenna

Trading of satellite TV and antenna.

Satellite TV broadcasting

Provision of Direct-to-Home services for satellite TV

broadcasting in the areas of Middle East, Mediterranean and
Africa.
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(iv)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEHR(R)
Segment revenue and results TERERESE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by RAZ2REEEDEIMIANEBRE R
reportable and operating segments: BT
Year ended December 31, 2016 BE-_Z—XR"E+-A=+—HLEFE
Integration of
Media signal system
entertainment Other and traffic Satellite TV
platform related multimedia ~ communication  equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna broadcasting Total
RERgTE 2t BARALRER HEER
HEER SREER  REBRSK BRERXE HEBRER @it

HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET FET TER TET TER
Revenue W&
External sales HiMEE 379,652 239,353 1,430 1,169,525 11,541 1,801,501
Results #i2
Segment results AEEE 12,325 23973 (162) 104,407 (69,670) 70,873
Other income, gains and losses A UERER 16,215
Increase in fair value of investment properties 1% & ¥1% M A FEE N 26,906
Research and development costs eI (41,595)
Administrative and other expenses THREMES (155,417)
Share of profit of an associate JE(E B E A AIMRT 4,931
Finance costs BERKA (14,653)
Loss before income tax expense HEHS LABE (92,740)
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HEZ

NETZA=T—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SoEER (&)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) THEWERES (HF)
Year ended December 31, 2015 BE-_ZT—RAF+-_A=1+—HBHItFE
Integration of
Media signal system
entertainment Other and traffic Satellite TV
platform related multimedia communication equipment and
products products network antenna Total
RERRFE B BAMBEHR HEBH
HEEM SEBER RipAAES FERRE @i
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TET THEL FTHEL FET TET
Revenue Yoz
External sales HIMEE 321,959 285,671 2082 1017,977 1,627,889
Results B4
Segment results RS 13,669 29,870 126 39,658 83,323
Other income, gains and losses HiA - =R EE 49,424
Decrease in fair value of investment properties 1% & ¥1% A FER (2,447)
Research and development costs B R (46,139)
Administrative and other expenses AREEMBEY (172,665)
Finance costs BEMK (9,436)
Loss before income tax expense ISR LaTER (97,936)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the accounting policies of the Group described in note 4. Segment
results represent the profit earned/loss suffered by each segment
without allocation of administrative and other expenses, research
and development costs, other income, gains and losses (except
impairment loss on trade and other receivables and loss recognised
on projects in respect of integration of signal system and traffic
communication network), changes in fair value of investment
properties, share of profit of an associate and finance costs. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

RED BN FTBR B 4P AR B &Y
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SoEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by RAZREEEDEINMNAEEBEERE
reportable and operating segments: BT :
At December 31, 2016 R-ZE—XRF+ZA=+—8
Integration of
Media signal system
entertainment Other and traffic Satellite TV
platform related multimedia ~ communication  equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna broadcasting Total
RERAYE 2t BARALRER HEER
HEER SERER RBEAHRK RERXRE  EEERER @it

HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET FET TER TET TER
Assets AE
Segment assets PEEE 151,156 103,549 1,727 502,337 138,326 897,095
Bank balances and cash BOgGERES 76,065
Pledged bank deposits BEARAER 14,925
Unallocated corporate assets AORDAEE 334,613
Consolidated assets GREE 1,322,698
Liabilities BE
Segment liabilities PERE 109,978 98,311 8,205 225,716 101,594 543,804
Bank and other borrowings ROREMREE 391,721
Obligations under finance leases BEHEAL 11,042
Unallocated corporate liabilities AARBAEE 94,013
Consolidated liabilties FaBfE 1,040,580
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

7. DEER (&)
TTREEREE ()

At December 31, 2015 R-_E—RHF+-_A=1+—H
Integration of
Media signal system
entertainment Other and traffic Satellite TV
platform related multimedia communication equipment and
products products network antenna Total
gRE2TE B BARSRLR HETE
HBER SERER BRBEABK RERRE et
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TR TR THET
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 221,906 115414 3,284 435,897 776,501
Bank balances and cash BOEFRER 93,236
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER 18,022
Unallocated corporate assets FOERAEE 395,098
Consolidated assets BEEE 1,282,857
Liabilities =4
Segment liabilities AEAE 113,992 92,425 9,175 233,061 448653
Bank and other borrowings BOIREMEE 350438
Obligations under finance leases MEREAE 12,876
Unallocated corporate liabilities AABRAREE 89,185
Consolidated liabilities maRafE 901,152
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and RERSBRARNSEEIEER:

allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments other than

certain property, plant and equipment, deposit paid to an

associate, available-for-sale investments, bond receivables,

investment properties, loan to an associate, amount due

from an associate, interest in an associate, deferred tax

assets, loan receivables, other receivables, bank balances

and cash and pledged deposits; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than

certain other payables, tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities,

bank and other borrowings and obligations under finance

leases.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 2EER(E)
Other segment information Hthto BEHR
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or HESHEBRRDEEERTANSE:

segment assets:

Year ended December 31, 2016 BE-Z—XR"E+-A=+—HLEE
Media Integration of
entertainment signal system
platform Other and traffic Satellite TV
related multimedia  communication equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna  broadcasting Unallocated Total
45
BRRETE B ARRER HEER &HE
HEER SEERER REBASL RBERAR ERER FAR @i
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TERL TERL TERL TERL
Addition to non-current assets REFRDEE 7,995 610 - 24,121 20 541 33,287
Depreciation and amortisation FEREHR 7,500 749 268 23,137 407 597 32,658
Release of prepaid lease payments ~ HEEFNBEHE 160 - - - - - 160
Impairment loss on trade ERESERRAM
and other receivables EUHEREES 21,901 22,000 - - - - 43,901
Write-down of inventories FEWH 5,165 - - - - - 5,165
Year ended December 31, 2015 BHE - Z—HF+-_A=1+—HItFE
Media Integration of
entertainment signal system
platform Other and traffic Satellite TV
related multimedia  communication  equipment and
products products network antenna Unallocated Total
%éé
BERETE B HAREAR HEER
HEER  SHEER REBAAE  RERRR AHE Fh
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
THBT THBT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Addition to non-current assets REFRDEAE 2608 9,146 - 19612 189 31,555
Depreciation and amortisation FERBH 10819 1,133 301 22,583 653 35489
Release of prepaid lease payments BEENBEENE 219 - - - - 219
Impairment loss on trade receivables EWESEIRESR 39,063 - - - - 39,063
Write-down of inventories T—,\Wﬂ - - - 2801 - 2801
Geographical information i 35 & K}
The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC (country of REBNERDIEBEMNATE (BENE
domicile), Taiwan, Europe, North America, Middle East, Africa and ) =& BN 4 PR FEMREE-

South America.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

The Group's revenue from external customers, based on location
of customers, and information about its non-current assets by

geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

TEEFR (F)
wEER (&)
AEERBINIES (RIEE

Woek I B B IR & E P s 13 85
ERERFWT

Revenue from external customers

}f EE)E’J
7] 1L

il
HIEREE

Non-current assets (Note)

RENBEEHKE ERBEE (KT

2016 2015 2016 2015

“E-RE —-hF ZE-RE —h%F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TET THL TET
Asia D)

- Taiwan -2 33,101 31,286 904 1981

- Nepal L] 71,739 90,327 - -

- PRC (country of domicile) —HE (BEMER) 30,756 27,992 208,236 209,456

- India -HE 91,189 37,920 7,002 -

- Singapore — ¥ 30,992 31,787 - -

- Others —Ef 10,707 18,960 77,061 63,598
Europe BUM

- Germany —{EH 30,102 41,504 67 64

- Italy YN 25,147 30,540 - -

- Spain il ¥ 60,636 67,624 430 12,065

- Portugal -857F 248 1,999 - -

— France & 4,372 7,037 - -

- Poland - K& 9,013 13,09 - -

— Denmark -FE& 8,314 11,541 - -

- Others —Hft 19,449 17,909 - -
North America IS

- United States of America ("USA") —EFIRERE ([XEH]) 1,083,839 881,726 31,342 34,465

- Canada -mgx 23,007 28,060 - -

- Mexico —EHF 38,443 38,646 - -

- Others —Hfp 3,418 5,171 - -
Middle East hR

- United Arab Emirates("UAE") —-MuRBAERE

([Pme]) 53,676 54,908 125,591 -

- Others —Hf 8,846 14,847 - -
Africa e

- Algeria — e J M3 16,569 21,900 - -

— Morocco —ERT 47,943 42,630 - -

- Others —Ef 7,282 10,047 - -
South America EES

~ Brazil -BR 11,280 15,979 - -

- Chile -7 2,355 - - -

- Argentina —FiRE 29,424 14,766 - -

- Columbia —SRitE 37,118 34777 - -

- Ecuador -EN%® 813 12,085 - -

- Others —Hfp 9,374 21024 - -

Other regions Hivip & 2,349 1,801 - -

1,801,501 1627889 450,633 321,629
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SEER(H)
Geographical information (Continued) Mg E R (48)
Note:  Non-current assets exclude interest in an associate, deferred tax assets, Wet: FERDEETEBER—MEHBHELARNET &
deposit paid to an associate and financial instruments. EREEE BN —HBE2R2FNIEEER
TA-
Information about major customers FEEFEH
Revenue from customer in the corresponding year contributing RBEFEAASBENIHEEREARE10%
over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as follows: HEPHIZFENT
2016 2015
—E-XEF —ET—AHF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Customer A BEPA 573,797 532,694
Note:  Revenue from the above customer is from the satellite TV equipment and MiEE: UERPHREREHEERRERREIE -
antenna Segment.
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. & X 24
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Interest on bank and other borrowings BITREMEERS 14,552 8,733
Finance leases MERAE 101 113
Interest on host debt liabilities of the ARBEESFNEIEZEHBEENE
convertible bonds (note 32) (BF#E32) - 590
14,653 9,436
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FIEBXH
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The tax charge comprises: MIEF X B1E
Current tax; ANEAFRIE
PRC s 7,112 1,774
Jurisdictions other than the PRC and REREENINTEER
Hong Kong 10,995 5,688
18,107 7,462
(Over)/Under-provision in prior years: BEFE (BEEE) BETR:
PRC a3 62 28
Jurisdictions other than the PRC and PR BB EEE R
Hong Kong (850) 112
(788) 140
Deferred taxation: IEETIE
Current year KEE (3,113) 2,962
Provision for withholding tax TR 412 412
(2,701) 3,374
14,618 10,976
The tax rates applicable to the Group's principal operating HE_Z—R"ER_Z—RAF+ZA=4+—
subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are AItFE AEEEELENBERATMNER
as follows: WEMT:
(i) PRC (i) H

The applicable PRC enterprise income tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% in accordance with the relevant income
tax law and regulations in the PRC.

RIEFRBEBEASFRIERLER +
BB A AR EAP R EEHMR
R ED5% o
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Hong Kong

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits.

No tax is payable on the profit arising in Hong Kong as the
entity operating in Hong Kong incurred tax losses for both
years.

United States of America

The Group's subsidiaries in USA are subject to United States
Federal Income Tax at 34% and States Income Tax at 6%.

Europe

The Group's European subsidiaries are subject to profit tax
rates at a range of 21% to 33%.

Macau

As stated in the Decree Law No. 58/99/M, Chapter 2,

Article 12, dated October 18, 1999, the Macau subsidiary is
exempted from Macao Complementary Tax since its income
is generated from business outside Macau.

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T B BR 12 it 5 BR 2 &)
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MEHH (8)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

)

BEMNEHIR G ERTUEN D

16.5%5T & »
HRERBEENEENMEFTEE
ERIEEE AL BENKEEFTEN
St ) BN TR I8 o

EFBRERE
AEBRERWE R R AN B1%34%
T2 69%H 75 2= 435 4 3 B Bt S P45 5 S N
FTiSHL o

&M

7N 5= B H) BOM B B X B ZR R F-21%
E33%H B RS

B
B —NLNUNF+ A4\ B E58/99/
MEUESEZEE+IFERT AR

YR PIFT B8 2 B B U AR B R PR SN
R MR HRBRRFIEIEN
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9.

(vi) Others

(vi)

Other subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions are

subject to applicable tax rates in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
income tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

MEHH (8)

Hit

WA B A BLARE R AR & 1O B A fY /BB 2 7]
RIE A R R AR [ B R R B

AREERA A ERS RS R EM2EK
BERONGSHZHABEYRAT

2016 2015
—E-XE —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FATT
Loss before income tax expense FER X AT EE (92,740) (97,936)
Tax at the applicable rate of 25% 123 AT 2 25%
(2015: 25%) —E—RF:25%) (23,185) (24,484)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR A H
for tax purpose ki - 43,065 45,763
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARBIAR
tax purpose k% (16,484) (20,682)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences & 52 BY 7] 305 1 B 2= 58 HY
not recognised MBeE (46) 1,749
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries K EH fh B A 2 48 & 1)
operating in other jurisdictions =Nl RNET R R o
miBE & 10,771 7,347
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERNH BB BN E T E 873 731
Deferred taxation arising from RERSENRE
dividend withholding tax BT IR 412 412
(Over)/Under-provision in prior years BAFE (BRERE) BETR (788) 140
Tax charge for the year REFEMIBZ H 14,618 10,976

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 24.

REEIREEF AN BB FE24 -
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. AFEFE
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHBT FH& T
Loss for the year has been arrived at after ERAFEEERONR
charging/(crediting): (BT A) -
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) EE=We (M) 5,051 4,829
Other staff costs Hh B TAA 193,558 209,227
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RORAE M ET B3R
excluding directors (ZEFKRIN) 9,086 7,701
Total employee benefit expenses EERNMZEE 207,695 221,757
Auditor's remuneration (23 Gl 2,673 3,104
Depreciation of property, W BE K
plant and equipment REIE 27,851 29,118
Amortisation of intangible assets (note i) mICEEENE (M) 4,807 6,371
Release of prepaid lease payments BEEMNHEERIE 160 219
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFENERAEE 1,613,131 1,446,376
Write-down of inventories (note i) FEEMOR (MEE) 5,165 2,801
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses O MR AR X WTF SR A 1,618,296 1,449,177
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, PEME - BEREENEE
plant and equipment (note ii) (Yeam) (BFEN) 2,103 (2,042)
Impairment loss on trade and other FEUE 5 BR 3R I H M FE YR IE /Y
receivables (note ii) AR R B (M) 43,901 39,063
Reversal of bonds receivables (note ii) BBl & F e W sk E (B &Tii) - (24,758)
Impairment loss on loan receivables (note i)  FEUWNE KA R EE B (M 3Eii) 39,155 48,828
Impairment loss on goodwill (note ii) PR R E R B (KT &Eii) - 14,917
Gain on disposal on subsidiaries (note ii) &M B A R e deas (I FEN) - (5,241)
Reversal of loss recognised on projects in REES R RS KA @A
respect of integration of signal system WEEBNIEEPEER
and traffic communication network (note i) 518 & @ ( B 7Eii) - (1,787)
Interest income (note ii) F B A (Bt &Eii) (1,946) (5,146)
Interest income from an associate (note i) e —fEEE R R e A B A
(H&Eii ) (2,185) (2,136)
Effective interest income on bond B FE W R IE 1) B R R B A
receivables (note ii) (B =) (1,282) (7,992)
Property rental income (note ii) EREWA (KD (11,505) (8,925)
Scrap and sample sales (note ii) % G R A AN EH B (B &Ei) (498) (1,460)
Net foreign exchange gain (note ii) HNEEBE 5 Yz SRR (B &) (3,761) (2,997)
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 10. FAFEEFHE (&)
Note i:  Included in cost of sales MIeEi: BEREERERA
Note ii: Included in other income, gain and losses Mk BENEMIA - WEREBRR

Included in the total employee benefit expenses is an aggregate
amount of HKS$9,115,000 (2015: HKS$7,730,000) in respect of
contributions of retirement benefits schemes made by the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS 11.

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors
and chief executive were as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2016

EERAFALABEHBIEAEEFERKEF
HEIPT B 4B 58 59,115,000 0 ( ==
— F £ 27,730,000 7T ) °

EEREENE
(a) EERESTHRAEME

ENRENEERESTRAEBNSE
BEB&mT:

BE_Z-A"F+-A=1t—-HL#F

E
Chief
Director Executive
Ba
g3 TBAR
Mr. Hung Mr. Frank Mr.Yip Mr. Han Mr. Wu Mr.Li
Tsung Mr.liao  Karl-Heinz M. Chen Chung Mr. Lee Chien Chia Mr.Ko Chak M. Chen
Chin Wen| Fischer ~ WeiChun ~ WaiDavid  Chien Kuo Shan Ming Yen Hui Hung  MeiHuei Total
Frank
Karl-Heinz

HRE BX# Fischer REs ER

jit:3 jit3 k& k& %E
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn  TEn  TEr  TEz  TER

FRE  BTL  REM MME FEE RER
i3 i3 i3 i3 i3 Tt it
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000
Tér  TER  TEr  TER  TExr  TER  TEx

(note ) (note i) (note ii) (note iv)
(W) (W) (M) (Wit
Fees we 60 60 60 60 60 35 60 60 8 20 60 543
Other emoluments: Efhie:
- Salaries and other benefits - B REAM BRI 1363 7 1,251 516 - - - - - - 132 4479
- retirernent benefits schemes - BB EIER
contributions 12 8 - - - - - - 9 29
Total emoluments e 1,435 95 131 576 60 35 60 60 8 20 1,391 5,051
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, =
11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EERESMHS
. . . = /= = =
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ ESZERBESTBRAEME (&)
(Continued)
Year ended December 31, 2015 HE-_ZT—AF+-_HA=1T—HIF
=
Chief
Director Executive
5&
% AR
Mr. Hung Mr. Frank Mr. Shou Mr.Yip
Tsung Mr. Liao Karl-Heinz Mr. My Philip Mr.Chen  Chung Wai Mr.Lee Mr. Han Mr.Wu Ms. Chen
Chin Wen | Fischer  YeanTung  Ming-Yung Wei Chun David ~ Chienkuo  ChienShan  ChiaMing Mei Huei Total
Frank
Karl-Heinz
L BB Fischer BHR R RiEH i EE R il 3% 3
b3 b3 i3 i3 i3 pik:d i3 k& %k b3 Rt @it
HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
F#n TiEn TiEn Tin T i i T i F#n Tin Tin
(note v) (note vi) (note vii (note vii)
(Webv) (ki) (OWshii) (ki)

Fees e 60 60 60 3 - 2 30 60 60 60 60 502

Other emoluments: As:

- Salares and other benefits -i¢ 1321 bij 125 - - 165 0 - - - 1305 4298
- retirement benefits schemes - iR
contributions 12 8 - - - - - - - - 9 9

Total emoluments Hewg 1383 % 1315 3 - 18 254 60 60 60 1374 489

Notes: B 5

(i) Mr. Yip Chung Wai, David resigned as executive director of the (i) BEEREER-_FT-—RFAZTN
Company on June 29, 2016. BEEARRRIITES

(i) Mr. Lee Chien Kuo resigned as independent non-executive director (i) FRBEER-ZT - "FNA—B#
of the Company on August 1, 2016. EARRBBLIERITES -

(i) Mr. Ko Yen Hui was appointed as independent non-executive (iii) FARBAENZT—RFE/\A—HE
director of the Company on August 1, 2016 and resigned on ZEARARRBVELERTEETTR S
September 20, 2016. T—RFNA=+BEE-

(iv) Mr. Li Chak Hung was appointed as independent non-executive (iv) FEREXER-_T-AFNLAZ=TAH
director of the Company on September 20, 2016. BEETEARAGBYLIERNITES-

) Mr. Mu Yean Tung resigned as executive director of the Company (v) BOIRAER-_ZE—AFLA+HE
on July 10, 2015. ERRBNITES

(vi) Mr. Shou Philip Ming Yung resigned as executive director of the (vi) SHREEER-_T—AFMNA=1H
Company on April 30, 2015. BERARRITES -

(vii) Mr. Chen Wei Chun was appointed as executive director of the (vii) REHLEERZFT—RAFNAZTN
Company on August 28, 2015, HEZEAARANTES-

(viii) Mr. Yip Chung Wai, David was appointed as executive director of (viii) HREEAENT—RFNANBE

the Company on June 9, 2015.

ZERKRRAMITESE-
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 1. EBREEME (&)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERESTHRAEME (&)

(Continued)

Ms. Chen Mei Huei is a director and also the Chief Executive
of the Company and her emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by her as the Chief
Executive.

(b) Five Highest Paid Individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in

the Group, two (2015: two) were directors and the chief
executive of the Company whose emoluments are included
in the disclosure set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2015: three) individuals are as follow:

(b)

REBLLRARBES RIETH
BE EXFABRBEAME REENE
TRARTIRHERGOHHE -

EEBREMEMEAIAL

AEEREERSMEENAL MH
“E-IF WMEB)RARTES
EEBITBRAR EEMECHRN L
NoHB=F(ZT—RF: =ZF)A
THBEmMT

137

2016 2015

=F-RE —T-hEF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET TAT

Salaries and other benefits e kEMET 7,475 5,812

Retirement benefit schemes contributions &K@ F 5t &I 3 216 207

Total emoluments B & 4858 7,691 6,019
The emoluments were within the following bands e N FLATEER :

2016 2015

—E—-XREF —E—hF

No. of employees  No. of employees

EE®E EEEE

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 2

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T 22,500,000/ 7T 1

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001,% 7T 24,000,000/ 7T 1 -

During each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors and top paid employee as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. No director waived any emoluments for each of the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

HEZZ—RFR-E—hF+=A
=+ HLESFEE AEETERT
MEEERERHFEEXINIE A
FR1E sk B2 B N B2 AN 42 B A B < ok B AR
WE-BE_T—RNER-_ZT—AF
+-A=+-—HLEEFE HMEESE
WEERE% -
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12. DIVIDENDS

12.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the

year ended December 31, 2016 (2015: Nil).

13. LOSS PER SHARE

13.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

g

EFLTRENDE T

2016 Annual Report & #§

—~F+=A

=St BUEFERNRE(ZF—A%F:

') -

BRER

RRABEEANEBESRERNREFEEIIZ

NI BT E

2016 2015
—E-XE —ZT—hF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT FHET
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted REsTESREARRE#E
loss per share EiEmEE
Loss for the year attributable to owners KRR EBANEBRAFE
of the Company &8 (77,655) (103,162)
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—HF
Number of Shares & 1n 8 B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 3 % hn# 7 15 £¢ 1,252,152,266 951,475,865
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BELTARNEEYE
(Note) (BFsE) - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FR{EaT & & EE BN
for the purpose of diluted loss per share T AR N 19 1,252,152,266 951,475,865

Note:  The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of

the Company's outstanding share options and conversion of convertible

bonds as the exercise price of those options is higher than the average

market price for shares and conversion impact of convertible bonds has anti-

dilutive impact.

MieE: MRZFERTENBEENTEESRERN
RFETISE BAMRESNERTEARR
BEYE YETESRIEE RS T ERRITE
AR AT AR A R R AT A R A S
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E—RFE+_A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERRE
Freehold Leasehold Furniture,
land outside  land outside Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor Computer ~ Construction
HongKong  Hong Kong Building  improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  equipment in progress Total
RER RER
BHOKA B &R BR
£Er#  AELH BF HENEEE BERBE LERRR AE EERE  RBIR it
HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tk Tin Tk Tin T T T Tk FiEn Tén
Cost A
At January 1,201 RZZ-RE-A-A 3545 339 121382 15,093 2163974 33486 5305 29549 250 478274
Exchange adjustments EX#E 2 2 (7054) (445) (8054) 259) (283) (1,708) - (20,141)
Additions B - - - - 77 1470 304 157 - 30418
Transfer to investment ERERENE

properties (note 17) (Ksk7) - - (15,080) - - - - - - (15,080)
Transfer fiom construction AR TZEA

in progress - - - - 2522 - - - (2522) -
Disposals & - - - (274) (57453) (7519 (1610) (10812) - (80,136)
At December 31, 2015 RZZ-1%

TZA=1-A 3583 33% 99,48 11,906 28106 24844 373% 18556 - 393335
Exchange adjustments EiRE ) ) (4719 (630) (5468) (1923) (755) (1827) - (15318)
Additions RE - - - 5601 2439 1250 359 1625 - 33254
Acquisttion of asubsidiary ~ REKBAT)

(note 3) (W) - - - - - vl 4 646 - 974
Disposals HE - - (13,778) (1,771 (12324) ©718) (1,250) (4767) - (43,608)
At December 31, 2016 RIZ-R%

TZA=1-A 3,545 339 80751 15,126 4713 14,740 231 14233 - 368637
Depreciation and HERBS

amortisation
At January 1, 2015 R-F-1§-A-H - - 33847 11,749 194401 26391 499% 2,105 - 293487
Exchange adjustments EiEE - - (2669) (1,162) (2704) (2348) (19) (1,486) - (10361
Provided for the year TEEERE - - 6,192 2% 18401 2374 04 1695 - 29118
Himnatedontransferto.~~ ERZRANERHH

investrent properties (Wsk7)

(note 17) - - (3976) - - - - - - (3976)
Eliminated on disposal HERHHE - - - (2742) (51172 (7351) (1581) (8933) - (71,779)
At December 31, 2015 R-Z-1E

T-A=1-H - - 33304 8097 158,926 19,066 3425 13381 - 23689
Exchange adjustments Ei5E - - (1772 (594) (3700 (1618) (634) (1593) - (9913
Provided for the year TERER - - 3673 537 19534 1341 154 2612 - 7851
Eliminated on disposal I E R - - (3162 (1114) (989 (8829) (1022 (4129) - (28,144)
At Decernber 31, 2016 RZF-RE

T-A=1-8 - - 32183 6,926 164,866 9960 1923 10275 - 26083
Carrying values BaE
At December 31, 2016 RIZ-E

TZA=1-A 3,545 339 48618 8,200 69847 4780 208 3938 - 142,554
At December 31, 2015 RZZ-1%

TZA=1-A 3543 33% 65,854 3809 69,180 5778 311 5175 - 157,046
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.

(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at

the following rates per annum:

Freehold land outside Hong Kong  Nil

Leasehold land in Hong Kong 2%

Leasehold land outside Over the term of finance lease
Hong Kong

Buildings 50 years or over the term of

lease or land use rights,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the term of lease,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10% — 33'/3%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment  20%

Motor vehicles 20% - 33'/3%
Computer equipment 20% - 33'/3%

The carrying values of leasehold land outside Hong Kong and
buildings include amounts of HK$3,398,000 (2015: HK$3,396,000)
and HK$9,335,000 (2015: HK$9,368,000) respectively in respect
of assets held under finance leases. Certain leasehold land and
building is pledged to a bank to secure a mortgage loan and
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 44).

ME - BERRE (&)

bt BERRERE (ERIERIN)
BTIFERABEREAERE

REBEING piia
KA FERE T
REBWNHEEL 2%
REBRING MmEHAEHR
HELTi
BF S04F s M & Bk L it
FREFHA
(ARG H BAE)
HEMEEE 20%3K & B
(B & AE)
TR 5 I i =5 10% —33'/3%
R BEEE 20%
B
TE 20%—33/3%
BB 20%—33/3%

REBZIINNHE L RIEFHREED B
£$53,398,0007 7T, ( —ZF — F4F : 3,396,000/
7T) %.9,335,0005 7T ( — & — T4 : 9,368,000
BIT)EBAREREREFRANEENS
H-AEBEEHXHBEL M RIEFER
TERFERITEE MK (Hikad) o
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15.

141

—E-RFT+-_A=1+—"HIEFE

DEPOSIT PAID TO AN ASSOCIATE

On May 10, 2013, the Company entered into a conditional
agreement in respect of the subscription of 6,195,652 new shares in
Dish Media Network Private Limited ("Dish Media"), an associate of
the Group, for a subscription price of US$7,289,002 (equivalent to
HK$56,489,765) (the “Share Subscription”). Dish Media is principally
engaged in the provision of Direct-To-Home service for satellite

TV broadcasting. Details of the transaction are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated May 10, 2013. Directors

of the Company expected that the associate would become a
subsidiary of the Group after issuance of the new shares.

During the year, the Company entered into an agreement with Dish
Media to revise the terms of the Share Subscription (the “Revised
Share Subscription”). Pursuant to the Revised Share Subscription,
Dish Media will issue new shares to all existing shareholders and
the Company will subscribe 5,468,513 new shares by utilising

the deposit paid to an associate of US$5,907,000 (equivalent to
HK$45,802,000). According to the Revised Share Subscription, there
is no change in the Company'’s shareholding percentage and Dish
Media is continued to be an associate of the Group. Up to the date
of approval of the financial statements, the share subscription has
not yet been completed.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group had deposit paid to
an associate of US$5,972,000 (equivalent to HK$46,306,000).

15.

EN-—EBHEQITNITE

RZZE—=FRA+AH ARFFILHIE
1H %% © WA A R EEDish Media Network
Private Limited ([ Dish Media | » 2N & B #Y
%N 7))6,195652F A0 - REE A
7,289,0023 7T (4B & 556,489,765/ 7t) (A%
DRBEEIE]) - Dish Media T B E1RtH
BARGESHEERS XIFBHNAAN
ARBRAE_TE—ZFRATHANRAER-
AAREBTEHRFROBEITER BEQAE
R AR S B R B A A

N AR BB Dish Mediag] M #7% - LMEET
IR 17 3R 88 I8 2 R ([ SRR wﬁ%$
18 | ) o IRIBFLAS T D R EE =78 © Dish Media
R ERERRETHRD  ARFKBE
A A A B & A B 2 A A9 ET £5,907,0003% 7T
(FHE 745,802,000 7T ) 3R HE5,468,513AX 3
f&1n o IRIBESIEFT IR (D REBEIR - N AR
A% EE 5130 4 824t > Dish Mediaf& 48 & AREE 2
BEAR - HEAYBHRERLESEA  KH
REEHEM AT

RIEBE—REN_E—RF+_A=1+—
'M'EIEH—FEJ HENBINE & B
5,972,000 7T (18E #46,306,00078 7T ) °
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16.

17.

—E-RFT+-_A=1+—"HIEFE

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

16. FENHEENRE

2016 Annual Report & #§

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAET
At beginning of the year REH] 5,512 8,835
Exchange adjustment PE W 8B (341) (386)
Released to profit or loss BEiEs (160) (219)
Transfer to investment properties (note 17) EREREWE (MiF17) - (2,718)
At the end of the year RER 5,011 5512
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEFRAEIWA:
Current asset MBEE 152 162
Non-current asset FEMBEE 4,859 5,350
5,011 5512
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BEWHE
HKS$'000
FAET
At January 1, 2015 —T—-RF¥—H—H 105,446
Exchange adjustments E%Eﬂ%‘ (1,832)
Transfer from prepaid lease payments EEATANHEEREA R

and property, plant and equipment B E s (MisE14%16)

(note 14 and 16) 43,853
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEHE AR A ( Mi7E36) (20,779)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss RBRERHN A FELZD) (2,447)
At December 31, 2015 RZE—RF+=A=+—8H 124,241
Exchange adjustments i H 38 % (4,499)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss R I8z ER A A FEE S 26,906
At December 31, 2016 R-E—RFET-A=1+—H 146,648

Note:

Upon transfer of properties from property, plant and equipment to investment
properties, the properties were revaluated to fair value and a revaluation surplus
amounted to HK$22,523,000 was credited to property revaluation reserve during the

year ended December 31, 2015.

F 5t

7 K&

REE-_ZT-—RF+_A=-+BULEENEEME.
CHERERENMER VERSHEQAFE
22,523,000 TR EHRBEFTAMESEFHEE -
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. S: E
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWE (F)
Note: (Continued) MHaE: (&)
The fair values of the Group's investment properties at December 31, 2016 have AEBREVER-_T—XF+_A=+—HHNQFE
been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited (2015: ?ﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁﬁgﬁ HAERAR (REREERERENS
Valor Appraisal & Advisory Limited), an independent qualified professional valuers UEBREEMGER  FEAYIEBE BN Y EEITHEE
not connected to the Group and possess appropriate qualifications and experience B’]L EERKER) (ZE—RF ERFHLEREER
in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. All of the Group's investment REDETHHEEEEE - AEEMBEREMENBE
properties were valued with reference to valuation by the valuer considering the ¥ B (B AP 2 % i B AR AR B9 R LY 2 O T35 AR &2
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in similar locations and ERFHIRBAE (BBERME) EBR -
conditions, or on the basis of income approach where appropriate.
In arriving at the valuation on the basis of income approach, the fair value is RWNEEZEBEER DHRAEEREMEENFA
determined by capitalising the net rental income derived from the existing tenancies SWABEER URMENATEREAENFREE
with due allowance or provision for the reversionary potential of the properties. BEMERAFE.
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the REFZEVENRAFER VENSESREERZD
properties is their current use. HERBRS
Following are the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties as at December RZZE—RNERZT—AF+-_A=+—RHAKREYE
31,2016 and 2015: ETRERMANTIEGAENT:
Fair value at Fair value at Range or weighted  Relationship of unobservable
Category Fair value hierarchy ~ December 31,2016  December 31,2015  Valuation techniques Key unobservable inputs average inputs to fair value
RIB-X% RZZ2-1%
t-B=+-8 tzA=Zt-A
ol RTERA WATE WATE fHERE TEFABRAAE SEAMETHE FIBRBAERATENBE
HK$'000 HKS'000
TER FEL
Office properties in Level3 77,000 62400  Comparison Adjusted transaction price 3.8% (2015: 2.5%) The higher the adjusting factor,
Hong Kong (to reflect location, size, the lower the fair value
age and maintenance)
RERHBAENE E=8 S FAERHE (RBMLE BRE: ARZEHE ATEBE
BRR&E)
Industrial properties in Level3 69, 648 61841  Comparison/Income  Reversionary yield 6% (2015: 6%) The higher the reversionary yield,
the PRC (derived from monthly market rent) the lower the fair value
ReBHIENE ) LEE/MAE  AEBRA (RARTEHE) AEBUAER R TEGE
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17.

Note: (Continued)

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A

reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balance is provided below:

REWE (&)
CESC)

BREMENRATFEREZRARELERTFESE B R
MR R FEHRBEHENT

2016 2015

ZE—RF —T—RF

HK'000 HK'000

FERT FET

Opening balance Hi ¥ sREE 124,241 44,546

Exchange adjustments T 5 7% (4,499) (1,832)

Reclassification* B o - 60,900
Transfer from prepaid lease payments and property, BREENEEREUARDE

plant and equipment (Note 14 and 16) = K& (MizE14%06) - 43,853

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) HEW B AR (KFE3e) - (20,779)

Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss RERERNQTEE 26,906 (2,447)

Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) HRBE (E=REEHATHE) 146,648 124,241

There was transfer from level 2 to level 3 for office properties in Hong Kong
due to decrease in market transactions with key unobservable inputs during
the year ended December 31, 2015. The transfer between levels of the fair
value hierarchy was deemed to have occurred at the end of the reporting
period.

Investment property is pledged to a bank to secure a mortgage loan and general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 44).

HE-Z-AF+-_A=+—HLFE #HR
FTEHRBAENTER IR  RESHNN
REVERE _REBEE-—FH - AFEER
ZHEOERHR AN RERRE L

BREVEFCERTRT ERARTAKEERER R —
RMERITE R AR (M 5E44) -

144



Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T BB 2 R AR A 7
2016 Annual Report & ¥

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

HE-T - AFT-A=T-ALEE

18.
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GOODWILL 18. B8
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—HF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAET
cosT R
At beginning of the year RE A 92,267 93,880
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) W BB B B8 A /) (B 5E35) 125,004 -
Exchange adjustments b 5 Fa & 1,347 (1,613)
At the end of the year RER 218,618 92,267
IMPAIRMENT BE
At beginning of the year RE A 83,744 68,827
Provision for impairment loss BB EERE - 14,917
At the end of the year RER 83,744 83,744
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREEEE
At the end of the year RER 134,874 8,523

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the following CGUs and the carrying amounts of

SBEARNES BEESEEATREE
B - DHRAZERCELEVNEHEDN

goodwill allocated to these CGUs are as follow: FE2BEAT:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT FHT
Satellite TV equipment and antenna HESREBERLRG
- PBTCGU -PBTER G EA B 9,870 8,523
Media entertainment platform related products % 8% 4% 44 7 = #8 B8 &
- IDS CGU - IDSREEE BN - -
Satellite TV broadcasting HEEEERE
- My HD CGU - My HD3R & B 4 B {7 125,004 -
134,874 8,523
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18.

— =
=

HEZ

NETZA=T—HILFE

GOODWILL (Continued) 18.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the management

assessed the expected recoverable amount based on the higher of
value in use and fair value and determined that the higher amount
would be based on the cash flow projections of the relevant CGUs.

No impairment loss is recognised for the year ended December 31,
2016 as the recoverable amounts of the relevant CGUs based on
value in use calculations are higher than their carrying amounts.
During the year ended December 31, 2015, impairment loss of
HK$14,917,000 had been made for IDS CGU with decrease in
operating profits generated.

The recoverable amount of these units has been determined based
on the value in use calculations, covered a detailed budget plan,
followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flows at the growth
rates stated below. The key assumptions used for value-in-use
calculations are as follows:

BE (&)

REBEZEZE_ZE—RNF+_A=+—HLFE"
EEEBRBEREEMAFENRSE TG
TEHAR B &5 WR AR REIEIEE
HeELEMNMNRESRETRNASER-

HARREBFERABETENHEBECELS
ke eEaRNERESE HEEZT
—RNF+-_AZt+—BIEFEVERRRE
EE-RNEBEE-_Z-AF+-_A=+—H1t
FE -AREERMRD WHIDSHESESE
B 1E 5 014,917,000 JT HY k(B 85 18 1
G

pESHNTkDSEDREMBEETEY
EEE  ROTARERANAEIE LR
TREERGEEEA RS RE - BEE
H AT EREMT -

PBT CGU My HD CGU IDS CGU
PRBTREE4LEN My HDE £ E4 Ef IDSRE&ELEN
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-1F ZEBE-RE C—T-hf ZB-RE —T-1%
Budget plan BEEE 5 years 5 yearstF Syears® | NATHEA | NATEA 4 yearsF
Growth rate BRE 2% 2% 3% | NATER | NATER 0%
Discount rate HRE 15% 17% 22% | N/ATER | NATER 1%

The growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. The cash flow projections are from the most
recent financial budget approved by the management. Other key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are budgeted gross
margin and budgeted revenue, which are determined based on the
unit's past performance and management’s expectations regarding
market development.

ZIBREHBITRNIERENAER T
SHEBHEBTENTOREERX-HRER
ERANEEEHENROHYBREAERE
E-EREEFENENEMIERRARE
BEMKRAEWS  WRIETNIREHEEMN
MBERRANEEBUMSERNANE
5o
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19.

147

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BFEE
Product Customer
technology relationship Others Total
EmBil BEFBER Hit et
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FAT FAET FAET FAT
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(FzFa) (FfI5EDb) (P 5EC)
Cost [N
At January 1, 2015 R-—T—hE—F—H 28,841 35,247 5,728 69,316
Addition NE 1,137 - - 1,137
Exchange adjustments [ i, 55 %8 (491) (24) 1) (516)
At December 31,2015 RZ-ZZT—HF
+=-A=+—H 29,487 35,223 5,727 70,437
Addition NE 33 - - 33
Disposals & (877) - - (877)
Exchange adjustments  [& 5 3% (45) 20 1 (24)
At December 31,2016 R T —X4F
+-—A=+—H 28,598 35,243 5,728 69,569
Amortisation and #E RRE
impairment
At January 1, 2015 RZFE—RHF—H—H 25,461 9,271 3,596 38,328
Exchange adjustments  [& 5 3% (716) (108) 93 (731)
Provided for the year REERAE 2,004 4,173 194 6,371
At December 31,2015 HRZ-ZT—AHF
+—-A=+—8 26,749 13,336 3,883 43,968
Exchange adjustments  [& i, F§ %& (33) 5 1 (27)
Provided for the year NEERME 522 4,178 107 4,807
Eliminated on disposals 1 & B ¥ 44 (877) - - (877)
At December 31,2016 RZZT—XF
+=-A=+—H 26,361 17,519 3,991 47,871
Carrying values FREE
At December 31,2016 RZZT— X F
+=-A=+—H 2,237 17,724 1,737 21,698
At December 31,2015 RZ-ZZT—HF
+=-A=+—H 2,738 21,887 1,844 26,469
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19.
Notes:
(a) Product technology represents software acquired from independent third

parties for the development of TV set top box. Amortisation is provided on a
straight-line basis over 3 years.

(b) Customer relationship represents contracted and non-contracted customer
relationship arising from the acquisition of Pro Brand International, Inc (‘PBI")
during the year ended June 30, 2013. The amount is amortised over its
estimated useful life of 7.5 years on a straight-line basis.

(c) Other represents the fair value of the research and development team of PBT,
a subsidiary of the Group acquired during the year ended June 30, 2013. The
mature research and development team is separately recognised based on
the fair value at the date of acquisition. It can support the Group for further
expansion. Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over 7.5 years.

BREEE (&)
L

@ EmBiiErsREERgEammBLIE=S
WENEG - BEN=FNUNERE R

(b) EEFHEGRERBE_Z—=FA=1+HLHF
[ MU B Pro Brand International, Inc ([PBIJ)
EENEGHRIEEHNEPBEAR - ZEREURTS
FREAAERTHRLER RS-

(© HitigAEERBE—T—=F R A=THLLF
FE RSB PE A RIPBTR R B BB A F1E -
RANFEERDREEBEANATFEES
BRZMEBBF A AREE SRR
HR7SFALAEBIERTR

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN 20. H— Fﬂﬁﬁ%‘% NENERS BT —
ASSOCIATE BEHE RARHNER
2016 2015
—ARE —E—FhF
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAETT
Share of net assets of associate )’Eﬁﬂ_— L NTIEEE 4,931 -
Loan to an associate BT —BEBEATNER 25,309 23,269
30,240 23,269
Note: M E

Loan to an associate is unsecured, repayable on demand and bearing fixed
interest rate at 4.75% (2015: 4.75%) per annum. It is classified as non-current as the
management expected the repayment of loan from an associate will be over one year

from the end of the reporting period.

BT HBYERRNERAERRE BREREER
B EEMR475E (ZF—RF 475B )t B - ANEIE
BREMBERNAERNREHREBB—FHEEER
MG T EBERARNERESPEAERS -

PEis
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20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN 20.

ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group had interests in the following associate:

R—EBEARNERS KT8
BMENRAWER (&)

B aE - (48)

RZE-—REFR-ZZF-AF+-A=+—B FTEER
THIE S AT R

Form of business Place of held by
Name of entity structure incorporation operation Class of shares the Group Principal activities
BEREE XBRBERX MR R PR i R 40 5 R AEBFE TEXER
Dish Media Limited company Nepal Ordinary 47.12%  Provision of Direct-To-Home
service for satellite TV
BRAF IENEL L REEBRIEHEEAERS

As at December 31, 2015, the Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses

of the associate. The amounts of unrecognised share of the associate, extracted from

the relevant management accounts of associates, are profit of HK$2,754,000 for the

year ended December 31, 2015 and accumulated unrecognised share of losses of
associate of HK$11,847,000 as at December 31, 2015. The Group recognises its share of

profit of the associate for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Summarised financial information:

RZE—RF+A=+—RA AEECKRIERHLE
HEE AR ZEE RERELEE AN Mk
BEERRAMEEEERE ARE-_T—RF+_A
=+ —B I EEMRFI2,7540008 T RN —E—RE+ =
A=+—H R RERE(REZ QR A EE11,847,000%
T AEERBEZZ—AE+_A=-+—HALFER
REMEEHE RANHEF -

IS AR R -

2016 2015
—E-XEF —ET-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FiBT
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8

Current assets MBEE 53,293 59,556
Non-current assets EMENEE 272,871 190,779
Current liabilities mEAE (314,667) (287,664)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (1,033) (851)

Year ended 31 December BE+-—A=+—HLFE
Revenue & 117,520 114,330
Profit for the year REFHA 48,598 5,844
Total comprehensive income for the year REEE2EKREHE 48,644 7,663
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20.

21.

— =
=

HEZ

NETZA=T—HILFE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount

of the interest in an associate recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

20.

R—EBEARNERS KT8
BMENRAWER (&)

B aE - (48)

BB ENREREAM B REMERR —MHER
B804 5 ) BR T 2 B A BB

2016 2015

—B-xE —T-H%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHT

Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AE)FH 10,464 (38,180)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest NEEHEAEEROLLA 47.12% 47.12%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in an associate TEBER—HBE QRN ERNEEERE 4,931 -

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The Group acquired unlisted equity securities of Ocean Oasis
International Limited (“Ocean Qasis BVI"), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Island, at a consideration of HK$40,573,000
satisfied by transfer of trade receivables of the same amount during
the year ended June 30, 2014. This investment was recorded as
available-for-sale investments. It was initially measured at fair value
and subsequently measured at cost less impairment at the end of
the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that its fair value cannot be reliably measured. It was
fully impaired during the six months ended December 31, 2014.

During the year, as set out in note 35, the Group entered into an
agreement with a shareholder of Ocean Oasis BVI to subscribe
8,165 newly issued ordinary shares of Ocean Oasis BVI by
transferring a loan of US$11,237,000 (equivalent to HK$87,155,000)
owed by Ocean QOasis BVI to the Group as its consideration. The
transaction was completed on July 5, 2016 and the Group’s
shareholding of Ocean Oasis BVI increased from 11% to 51%. Since
then, Ocean Oasis BVI became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group and there is no available-for-sale investment at year end
date.

21.

AHHERE

REBEE_ZT—NFA=ZFTHLEFE XK
& B3% X 840,573,000/ 7T YL i Ocean Oasis
International Limited ([ Ocean Oasis BVI | * —
MRRBREZHSFMK L BRAR)IE
LR AES BREERSHENERE S
RENT - ZWEEATHBEEREAR - R
MIXHERE  HIEAFEGE MEEZAR
ERAFEMAHEEREN AAAEERA
AR ST E R VE WA RS HRIZKAR
R EFE-ERNEHE-Z2—OF+ A
—F+—HLEAEARAEZEERE

RER - a0 sE35FTi - AN 2 B B Ocean
Oasis BVIH) — B R R A] L — 7 Wik - B M)
R EE# 2 Ocean Oasis BVIE R —E BE
11,237,000 7T (A& 787,155,000/ 7T ) U E
THEAERE  ARIES 1650 #1317 H) Ocean
Oasis BVIZ @ - Z R HR T —~F+t A
F H e B AR B 5 Ocean Oasis BVIH % 1
F11%EE51% It 1% * Ocean Oasis BVIFX &
AEEIFE2EWBRR BRNFRILET[ A]
HEERE-
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22.
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AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

FE iy — BB & D B B KA

2016 2015

—E-RF —E—HF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FAT

Non-current (note 1) SERE) (MI5ED) - 14,685
Current (notes ii and iii) ) (M sk ii B BT s ) 78,256 53,201
78,256 67,886

Amount due from an associate include:

(i) amount of Nil (2015: HK$14,685,000) is unsecured, bearing
fixed interest rate at 4.75% per annum. It is classified as

non-current as the management expected the repayment

of loan from an associate will be over one year from the end

of the reporting period;

(ii) amount of HK$63,419,000 (2015: HK$53,201,000) being
unsecured, interest-free and the Group allows a credit
period of 360 days to its associate which is trade in nature;

and

(iii) amount of HK$14,837,000 (2015: Nil) is unsecured, bearing

fixed interest rate at 4.75% per annum.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables from an

associate, which is trade in nature, presented based on the invoice

fEY — B2 R BN RIBERLRE

(i

(i)

(i)

T (ZZF—FH % :14,68500087T)

TERFIRE T FFR475EFED
HEARERE RRASEEBEHBERN
HEREBBE—FHEENRS M

B ATM RN

63,419,000 (ZE—HF :
53,201,0007 70 ) JH 1R R AT B
BASEBEGTFEBEARNEESRA
360H  BESHE &

14,837,000 L (ZE—HF &)
IR IRIL B E F R R4 75BF B o

U —EitE R ARNEREZRR (BES
HE)RBEHRIZEZ QM2 0RE

date at the end of the reporting year: ST :
2016 2015
—B-RF —
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET THET
0 - 30 days 0&30H 5,409 -
31 - 90 days 31290H 7,003 12,485
91 - 360 days 912360H 51,007 25,561
More than 360 days BiE360H - 15,155
63,419 53,201
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22. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 22.

(Continued)

Included in the Group's amount due from an associate, there is no
trade debt (2015: HK$15,155,000) which was past due at the end of
the reporting period but for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss because management is of the opinion that the
amount is recoverable taking into account repayments during the
year and after the end of the reporting period.

Aging of trade receivables from an associate which are past due
but not impaired:

B —EBE QT NRE (&)

A £ B JE R — R Bt 2 R ) B9 3R 08 AR AT ()
ZEHER (ZZF—RF :1515500087T) ' B
FBRERREHAD AL AR EEER
BREITRFARREPRENERE BH
FRIEI AT YR [B] - B 2 LA B B AT B R E
BB A -

18 HAME SRR (B B B U — e Bt i 12 ) R UK
B RAREINT

2016 2015
=F-RE —T-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
31 - 90 days past due #H312 908 - 1,794
91 - 180 days past due #3912 180H - 13,361
- 15,155
23. LOAN RECEIVABLES 23. EWRER
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Loans receivables (note i, i and iii) FEWCE R (M T~ i Kziii ) 59,507 165,938
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (note iv) B REREE (BIREiv) (59,507) (109,515)
- 56,423
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NFTZA=+—RHIEFE

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes

0}

(i)

(iii)

As at December 31, 2015, loan receivables included unsecured amount of
HK$120,926,000 due from MyHD in which amount of HK$72,941,000 borne
interest rate at 1.2% per annum, repayable by annual instalments up to

2018 and amount of HK$47,985,000 borne interest rate at 3-month Libor
plus 100 basis points per annum, repayable on demand and classified as
non-current assets as the management expected the repayment of such
amount would be over one year. During the year ended December 31, 2015,
impairment loss of HK$41,465,000 was recognised in profit or loss, which was
determined by the management of the Group based on the creditworthiness
and the past collection history of the borrower. As at December 31, 2015,
accumulated impairment losses of these loan receivables were amounted to
HK$89,163,000.

During the year, as set out in note 35, after the transferring of loan
receivables of HK$87,155,000 into the shares of Ocean Oasis BVI, the holding
company of MyHD, the Group's shareholding in Ocean Qasis BVI, increased
from 11% to 51% and since then, Ocean Oasis BVI and its subsidiaries
become non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group. The remaining balance
of loan receivables from MyHD was eliminated in the consolidation as at year
end date.

As at December 31, 2016, the Group had another loan receivable amounting
to HK$12,989,000 (2015: HK$12,989,000) granted to a third party. The amount
was unsecured and borne interest at 1.2% (2015: 1.2%) per annum. This loan
receivable was fully impaired as at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

As at December 31, 2016, the Group had loan receivables amounting to
HK$2,715,000 (2015: HK$2,715,000) and HK$43,803,000 (2015: HK$29,308,000)
granted to two customers (the “Debtors”). The Debtors were engaged in

the operation of cable television in Nepal. Even though the Group was in a
net current liabilities position and had limited financial resources, the Group
further advanced a loan of HK$14,491,000 to the Debtors during the year.
These loan receivables borne interest at 5% (2015: 5%) per annum. These
loan receivables are unsecured except for the amount of HK$43,803,000 was
secured by all the shares of the borrower and all of its shareholding in its

subsidiary.

23.

FERWERR (&)

Bt ex

U}

(i)

(iii)

R-E—RE+_A=+—H0 BREZBRE
JRE U MyHD &Y £ 45 1 X 781 20,926,000 7T+ H A
72,941,000 LR FFE12%5HE - BF D HE
BEZE-ZT—/)\F 47985000/ TiZ31E A &
HIRITRI R B EH100E B EF R 8 A
REREEE ARNEEEEHERZLEE
HBE—F BRI AERBEE-BHE-_T—1
F+_A=+-BLFE A£EETEERE
BEANEARBEYKELHER FBEER
82 P TEE YR B E51841,465,0008 Lo R =&
—RFE+ZA=+—HB ZERKRERNRFF
LB 5 18 489,163,000/ T ©

F R A FE3SFT L - #8 & 187,155,000 T
2 FEUE FR a8 AMyHDA) 2 i A &) Ocean Oasis
BVIHI AR 19 1 + A2 B 72 Ocean Oasis BVIEY i% #E F
119%35 Z51% & B Il Z & * Ocean Oasis BVI& E
WMBRRKAAEENIEZENBRF - EI
MyHDEY B XA RE DR F R AR & ABRBF 48 -

RZE—XRE+-A=+—8 FEEFEES—
B T % = 77 6 FE W B 5112,989,000 7T (=&
— R4 12,989,000/ 7T ) © &K IH AEIER 1%
FRE12% (ZE—RF:12%) 18 B
BERER T ANEN_T-—RAF+-_A=+—
AE2mEE -

RZZE—RNE+-_A=+—8 AEEEKH
2RFE ([BBA]) ZEKE R A2,715000/% T
(ZZ—RF: 27150007 T ) K43,803,0007 7T
(ZZ—A%F: 293080007T) - BEBHANRERE
HRBRERNEE RARNEFBENFRBE
BERARFEERER EREERFRE—F
EER AR EF14,491,0008 70 - xS RN E
RIRFRER% (ZE—RF:5%) T B %F
FE U B TR A K - 143,803,0008 TTIAE B A
KIFTAERG RREWE QR REE R
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(Continued)

During the year, impairment loss of HK$39,155,000 (2015: HK$7,363,000) was
recognised in profit or loss, which was determined by management of the
Group based on the creditworthiness and the past collection history of the
Debtors. As at December 31, 2016, accumulated impairment losses of loan
receivables due from the Debtors were HK$46,518,000 (2015: HK$7,363,000).
As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, it is classified as non-current as the
management expected the repayment of such amount will be over one year

from the end of the reporting period.

The Group also had trade receivables due from the Debtors at the end of the

reporting period. Details are set out in note 26.
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23. BWER(E)

feE (&)

(iii)

(#)

RER AEEETREREESANEARBE
W 3R B 5P 7 E VB IR (B 5 4839,155,000/8 7T ( —
T —FF 17,363,000/ 7T ) WHRNIB I RFER ° IR
—E-RNFETZA=+—B BREBANE
W E R 2R E E181246,5180008 T (=T
—ARF:736300087C) HRZE—RFRZE
—RE+_A=+t—H BRNEEEERZE
e BEEAARERLBTRBE—F B
BIERB -

RS R A KB IR A BURER A IR
B 5 R FBHIIR KT ©

Allowance for doubtful debts (iv) REREE
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At beginning of year REF] 109,515 60,687
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B8 B BB A 7] (89,163) -
Allowance for impairment loss VERENSEE A 39,155 48,828
At the end of year RER 59,507 109,515
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24, EEFHE

AT RAEERAFEZHERN T BREEHRE

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

155

recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the year: BE/ (BE)ARAEEZ
Fair value Provision
adjustment Revaluation forPRC  Accelerated
on intangible of investment  withholding tax Provision
asset Tax losses properties tax  depreciation and others Total
BYEE G ik
NYERE HEBR RENRER BIORER RERE BEREM @t
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TER TEL TEL TAL TAR TAL TAL
At January 1, 2015 R-E-RF-A—H (11,239 1669 (15,880) (5,704) - - (31,154)
Exchange adjustments EHEE 7 ) 623 30 - - 951
Credit (charge) to profit or loss RAFRBERA
forthe year (k) 1,089 (1,668) (3.964) (412 (682) 2263 (3374)
Disposal of subsidiary (note 36) HEMB AT (H3E36) - - 2350 - - - 2350
Charge to property revaluation ROEERER
reserve nk - (7,508) - - - (7,508)
At December 31, 2015 R-Z-0F
+ZA=1+-H (10,143) - (24379) (5,794) (682) 2,263 (38735)
Exchange adjustments ERAE (5) - 1,043 - 32 (57) 1013
Credit (charge) to profit or loss REEEBRIA
for the year (i) 1,670 - (5485) (412 - 6928 2701
At December 31, 2016 RZE-A%
+-A=1-H (8478) - (28821) (6,206) (650) 9,134 (35,021)




Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T B BR 12 it 5 BR 2 &)

2016 Annual Report & #§

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

24,

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 24.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

IEERE ()

TS 2 B B E B IR E T IR A B
T

DTN

2016 2015

=EB-RF —

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Deferred tax assets REETIEE E 9,134 2,263
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIEAR (44,155) (40,998)
(35,021) (38,735)

At December 31, 2016, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of
HK$111,678,000 (2015: HK$99,420,000) available for offset against
future profits due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Included in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$12,027,000
(2015: HKS12,048,000) that will expire between 2032 and 2035
(2015: expire between 2031 and 2034). Other tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, withholding
tax at 10% is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by PRC subsidiaries from January 1, 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has been provided for in full in respect of undistributed
profits retained by PRC entities in the consolidated financial
statements.

At December 31, 2016, the Group had deductible temporary
differences of HK$28,824,000 (2015: HK$22,624,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

MN-B—XRE+-A=1+—0 @RKEE
ATARREMBR AL A R ERTIER
#111,678,00058 7T ( == — T £ : 99,420,000
Y5 7T) Al 88 AR SR A o

FERHBBEAEBER T _FE2_%
—hHFE(ZE—hE: Z_SE=—FE=_F
—VFEME) fEmAE1E12,027,0008 T (ZF
— R 112,048,000/ 70 ) o H AT IE B8 7]
EIR AL

RIEFECEMAENE A-—FTN\E—A
— BEHE A B PMB A RIEREREY 4 M FT B R A
P BB EAN0%IEIN - B BB RE M
Ao IENAREEERIAC 280456 8
TR R o

MNoB—RE+-A=1+—8 KXEFETH
THE B 250 528,824,000 7T ( ZE— R
22,624,000 7T ) © AR A AT 8% 3R A B) 3
AR TR EBENERR G R ERA
A NB SN EERERAREREEE -
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25. INVENTORIES 25. ®FE

2016 2015

—E-RF —E—HF
HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FAT
Raw materials Rt 45,892 38,488
Work in progress TR 58,756 52,532
Finished goods 2K 162,447 193,758
267,095 284,778

26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. EWESRIN EBREERHEMER

MIE

2016 2015

—B-RF —

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FTAT

Trade and bills receivables (note) EWE SRR R ERER (M) 442,790 351,223
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W RERE A (145,157) (102,293)
297,633 248,930

Other receivables H A fE W 1B 52,259 59,982

Total trade, bills and other receivables EWE SN EWRE R

Hth e R IR 42 7R 349,892 308,912

Note:  Included an amount due from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary of Wit: R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—H BEEK—H

HK$15,850,000 as at December 31, 2015. It was fully settled during the year. B /B8 A &) B9 FE 458 IR 4 %5 B9 FXIE15,850,00078 7T ©

IHRIERFRAE 2 BIE -
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26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26.

(Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 60 to 120 days to its
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills
receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the year:

EWE 5 RR  BRREREAEK

R (8])

AEBEGTRESEFPNEENFHR60A
E1N0R -NFER BEESERRERFEE
(MR REEBR)RERAHMZIINE

oM

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—HF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

0 - 30 days 0%30H 133,369 124,420
31 - 90 days 31E90H 117,738 81,568
91 - 180 days 912180H 33,368 22,793
More than 180 days Bid180H 13,158 20,149
297,633 248,930

During the year ended December 31, 2016, 67% (2015: 78%) of the
trade and bills receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
are due from diversified customers with no recent default payment
history.

Included in the Group's trade and bills receivable balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$96,648,000
(2015: HKS54,045,000) which was past due at the end of the
reporting period but for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss because management believes that the
fundamental credit quality of the relevant customers has not
deteriorated.

HE—_S—XF+-_A=+—HItEE"
67% (ZZ—RF : 78%) KRB AR RE FE
B 5 B8R 5k N FE IR = B P o5 2 P 3 4 R A<
P

AEBEREZERREREREHRBIERN
WEHIRE @ E - R 4883 96,648,00078 7T
(ZZF—F % : 54,045,000/ 7T ) H) FE U BR X -
HHENREEERAFRREFAFNALAEEE
I B AL - BN S B A B BB S 1R
e
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26.

159

TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Aging of trade and bills receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

26.

EWE 5 RR  BRREREAEK

R (8])

EEHERRENERE SRR EREER
R BRI 0T -

2016 2015
—EB-XE —E-REF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT FHET
Less than 3 months past due 8 HY D = & A 57,984 42,686
3 to 6 months past due B == XA A 17,313 3,866
More than 6 months past due BEZ RIS E A 21,351 7,493
96,648 54,045

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: RERBEE
2016 2015
—E-XEF —E-TE
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Balance at beginning of the year F U4 102,293 147,376
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHE AT - (2,555)
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 42,484 39,063
Bad debt written off 12 AR 85 (2,452) (78,053)
Exchange realignment PE W 8B 2,832 (3,538)
Balance at the end of the year FREERR 145,157 102,293

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting
policy stated in Note 4(n)(iii). The allowance for doubtful debts

at the end of the reporting period represents allowance on
individually impaired trade and bills receivables with an aggregate
balance of HK$145,157,000 (2015: HK$102,293,000), which have

been outstanding for more than one year. Management considered

they are unlikely to be collected. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

AN S BAR I B 5 4(n) (1) BT 71 By 2 51 B SR W 7R
BEEE - NREBRRERERE N E
N E ZERF R BN E R R ERE -
{AT 4584 5145,157,0008 L (2 — R F
102,293,000/ 70) ' B EEBR —F - BEE
REZEEFREER TS ERD  KNEEH
WEpZEEBEEEEWERR-
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HE-Z—F+-A=1t—HILEE
26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Included in trade and bills receivables, as at December 31,

2015, the Group had trade receivables due from the Debtors

(as stated in note 23) with gross amount of HK$56,459,000 of
which HK$29,685,000 had been impaired during the year ended
December 31, 2015. During the year ended December 31, 2016, no
sales were made to the Debtors and settlements of HK$ 1,327,000
were received from the Debtors. As at December 31, 2016,

before the recognition of further impairment loss in 2016, the

net carrying amounts of trade receivables from the Debtors were
HK$25,446,000. For the impairment assessment of trade receivables
from the Debtors as at December 31, 2016, the directors have
considered the financial conditions of the Debtors and concluded
that impairment of HK$25,446,000 should be made and recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2016.
After the recognition of the impairment loss, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables from the Debtors were HKSnil as at December
31, 2016.

26.

EWE 5 RR  BRREREAEK
R (8])

BEREWREZERRERZEF
—hAF+=ZA=+—8" $ElﬁWﬁﬁ
AR FELRE 5 8RR (WP sF23pal ) 485 i
56,459,000/ 7T, E 129,685,000 7T B A &l

TR+ -_A=+—HIEFERR
%ﬁ@i_7 NE+ZA=+—HIFE
E-UWEREBAELREE  THEBAYK
E1,327,0008 L& R R ZE—R"F+=
A=4+—H BR-_ZE— A "FE—TRER
B fWEﬁAmﬁWT%% K AR EF
B 525,446,000 70 e N ZF— NEF+ = F
=+— HE%E%AME%E%% 70PN
ERRENTI $27§$E%%%%Amw
BRAW EmEREBANERE S
ﬁM@m%EmﬁﬁﬂﬁIﬁ@i—; ﬁ
F+Z A=+ ALEFENGEBEREM
PEHNEERER BERBEERXE R
T-RF+ZA=+—8 BREBKANE
WESEFNEEEAS -
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27.

161

—E-RFT+-_A=1+—"HIEFE

BOND RECEIVABLES

The balance as at December 31, 2015 and the movement for the
year ended December 31, 2016 was related to 2015 Bond. The
movement for the year ended December 31, 2015 was related to
2012 Bond and 2015 Bond. The details of these bond receivables
are as follows:

2015 Bond

On January 12, 2015, the Group entered into bond subscription
agreement with National United Resources Holdings Limited
("NUR"), a company with its shares listed on the Main Board of

the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to the subscription agreement,

the Company conditionally agreed to subscribe for the bonds

to be issued by NUR (“2015 Bond") in the principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 for a term of one year with a coupon rate of 6% per
annum, payable quarterly in arrears. The Company may, (i) on or
after September 30, 2015 serving at least two days’ prior written
notice in writing to NUR, request NUR to redeem HK$20,000,000 of
the 2015 Bond at 1
January 11, 2016 serving at least four days’ prior written notice in
writing to NUR, request NUR to redeem HK$30,000,000 of the 2015
Bond at 100% of its principal amount. Unless previously redeemed
or cancelled, NUR shall redeem the 2015 Bond at 100% of its
principal amount together with any accrued interest and unpaid
interest calculated up to (and including) the maturity date. The
subscription had been completed in April 2015. 2015 Bond was
fully repaid during the year.

00% of its principal amount; and (ii) on or after

27.

B EWRE

R-B-—RF+-A=t+—BREHREE
ZEAETZAZtT-HLEFENE
BE-_E-AFEEHEM- @g:%—ﬂg
+-A=+—HILEEHE - _

ERE-_T-—hFEEFHEB- %#ﬁﬁ%%
REMFROT:

—E-HEEH

RNZZE—RAF—A+=8" $%IEEH*
e RERERAR ([BAXRBEER]
ERODREBERAER ETHAQ 7)J4%%
REWHZ - REREDSE 5B BKY
7] &= 72 1% 74~ & %8 480,000,00078 7T » — 4F Hf
LEREZE Emiéiﬁmﬁi LR 6%
HERBMEERETZESR ([ ZE—AF
BHE]) - AEEAILA: VD RZZE—HFNIA
—THIAERBE RS ERE DT DR
E"]%ﬁL%ﬂ KSJZ%{%H: \/JT??LM,%\%%K
% 58 2 100%& [£120,000,000/8 2 —E—H
FEEHE NP ZE—RE—AT+ -8Bz
BEEREEERELTORURHNERB
M BRERBEERAESEARESEE Z2100%
B [8130,000,00008 T2 —E—HEEAE B2
BIEEENEHEIN BREEERSZNE
HHERASREIN L —E—HAFEHFUARL
@é(&@%ﬁW@EtEﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ
B-ZRABEHER _ZE—HFNAEMK-
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—E-RFT+-_A=1+—"HIEFE

BOND RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27.

2012 Bond

On December 27,2012, a bond (“2012 Bond") was issued by Heng
Xin China Holdings Limited ("HXCH"), a public limited company
with its shares listed on the Growth Enterprise Market Board of the
Stock Exchange, with principal amount of HK$100,000,000. The
2012 Bond was unsecured, bears a coupon rate of 6% per annum,
coupon payable quarterly in arrears, with its maturity on December
29, 2014. Pursuant to an agreement entered into with HXCH

on January 12, 2015, the repayment deadline of the 2012 Bond

BHEEWRE (&)

—E-—FEH
RZE——F+-_A=-+tB BEEHEH
TR AERAR ([MEGPEER] - EikGH

REEZFTEIER EARABR AT ) 3
T—BRESF ([ ZF—=FE5]) X8

7%100000000/%750*:=*_$1s%‘<7%£ﬁf§
HREMTE 16%.:1’5'535%\/5\5/‘#—7—
HEREIN BHBAE-ZE—NF+_A

“TABRRER-FT— £$ At-—H#&

extended to June 30, 2015. The 2012 Bond was fully repaid during (ERN: .?ﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬂiﬁjﬁzﬁﬁé E-_FEB%H
the year ended December 31, 2015. ZEFHRERE ﬂ@/\ﬂ +H-
:;*_Efaﬁﬁﬁﬁ_i RFE+ZA
—t+t—BLFEEEEEE-
The movement of bond receivables is set out below: BEFERFIENZESHHI N
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E-RF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THET T
As at beginning of year REH] 59,971 75,242
Repayment settlement during the year FRERGEE (60,000) (120,000)
Initial recognition of 2015 Bond (note) %)] PHAZZE—RAFES (M) - 75,242
Effective interest income credited to BERMEBAREA
profit or loss %Eﬁﬁ 1,282 7,992
Coupon interest received/receivable Bl e = EFE (1,253) (3,263)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised —E-—FEHFERE
for 2012 Bond Eﬁazﬁéﬁ - 24,758
As at end of year RER - 59,971

Note: The principal amount of 2015 Bond was HK$80,000,000. At initial recognition,
the amount of the 2015 Bond was measured at fair value at HK$75,242,000
with fair value loss of bond receivables of HK$4,758,000 recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended December 31, 2015. The fair value was
calculated based on the present value of the contractually determined
stream of future cash flows discounted at the required yield which was
determined with reference to the credit rating of the 2015 Bond issuer and
remaining time to maturity. The effective interest rate of the 2015 Bond is
13.74% per annum. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the 2015 Bond is
measured at amortised cost less identified impairment losses at the end of
the reporting period.

MizE: Z—T—RAFEHFOESEEAS0,000,000/% T
ROFERE —E—hEEF2ERATE
752420008 LEtE  HEZZT—HF+=A
=+ —BHLEE BFEUFENAFERE
4,758,000/ TN BT R EER - A FEIRENETE
HARBE S RELRE RS RNENRETE -
MRERSEENBE_T—RAFEHFEITARL
PR MEHIPANG THEREE S5
EEENBERENRE1374% - RYI L HERIE
T -RFEFRMEPRIRE K ARE #
B EEIE = -

162



Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T BB 2 R AR A 7
2016 Annual Report & ¥

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DR ETEINEENE Y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to secure short-
term bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 44). The deposits
carry fixed interest rates ranged from 0.3% to 1.65% (2015: 0.3%

to 1.65%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits will be released
upon the settlement of short-term bank borrowings.

29. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash of the Group comprise bank balances and
cash held and short-term bank deposits that are interest-bearing at
floating interest rate and are with original maturity of three months
or less. The remaining bank deposits carry fixed interest rates of
0.05% (2015: 0.3% to 2.35%) per annum.

As at December 31, 2016, cash and bank balances denominated

in RMB amounted to approximately HK$21,713,000 (2015:
approximately HK$20,331,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies in the PRC. Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.
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28.

29.

EEFRTER

FERIBE A RN ERITEED
W FRITOER (ME44) - ZEFHIIE
NTF03EBEEI16SE(ZFE—RHF:03EZE165
BE)zHrEEFFHEFBE B IEMRITT
HAEREHRIRITER S EERER-

RITEERE®

AEBMETHEFEMRBEMBFRITET
RBESURIRZHFRFERFER=MEA K
PR=ZEAB BN EHHRITER  HRIER1T
FRIR0.05E (—E—HE : 03EE235E)
B EE FF R B

MN-B—RE+-A=1+—80 UARE:t
ENR e RIRTTEFLA21,713,0008 7T (=
T — A4 4920,331,00056 ) - AREES
BISE AW T EEE A K RAINE < RIEH R A
HNE B I G 191 0 45 65 T FNOME & 1) i 1l 9 =2
NER AEEATBEERBERITHBAR
W B SN B R N BE RS o
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30. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. BNESFRIN BENRBRAMEN
MIE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-TEF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
Trade payables FEfTE FER 424,264 374,626
Bills payables B EE 11,089 895
Other payables and accruals (note) HihEARIAERERTERS (W) 140,238 107,917
575,591 483,438
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables, RMEHR BENESRFRENZERIRE
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting ERHAMZYMERESTHT
periods:
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—FHF
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
0 - 30 days 0230H 239,087 210,396
31 - 90 days 31290H 67,798 116,450
91 - 360 days 91%360H 121,082 47314
More than 360 days B iE360H 7,386 1,361
435,353 375,521
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. EEEMMTFHEERARWA -
Note:  An amount due to a director of HK$14,254,000 (2015: HK$15,157,000) Misk: HMENREEE—FEMNEFRIA4,254,000
which included in other payable whose term is unsecured, interest free and Bt (ZZT— A 115,157,000 70) © WWHIAA
repayable on demand. mER 2L BT REREE-
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—E-RFT+-_A=1+—"HIEFE

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 31. TRHEMEE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—AEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHBT FHET
Bank loans RITER 328,246 292,438
Other loans HaER 63,475 58,000
391,721 350,438
Analysed as: DR
Secured HHEM 308,683 260,375
Unsecured 42 4 4 83,038 90,063
391,721 350,438
Carrying amount repayable: AR T EFE RN REE:
On demand or within one year BERKIR—FA 330,712 286,726
In more than one year but not more than BRE—FETZAWE
two years 1,288 1,699
332,000 288,425
Carrying amount of bank loans that contain &8 B2 B E B G EIT
a repayment on demand clause BEROEREA 59,721 62,013
391,721 350,438
Less: Amount due within one year shown BRRBBEE IR —FA
under current liabilities B HAFRIE (390,433) (348,739)
Amount due after one year —F 1B B RIR 1,288 1,699
The range of the effective interest rates on the Group's bank and AEEBRITREMEENERF X E a0
other borrowings are as follows: I
2016 2015
—NE —T-AF
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FAET
Variable interest rate borrowings FEEE | 1.90% - 12.00% | 1.42% - 12.00%
The security of bank borrowings is set out in note 44. RITEE R E M4 -
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 32.

Pursuant to the announcement dated August 13, 2015, the
Company completed placing of Hong Kong dollar denominated
convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) with a principal
amount of HK$15,100,000. The Convertible Bonds borne interest

at 5% per annum and would be matured in 12 months from
August 13, 2015. Holders of the Convertible Bonds shall have

right to convert the whole or part of the principal amount at the
conversion price of HK$0.32 per share. During the year ended
December 31, 2015, the Convertible Bonds were fully converted by
the holders.

As the Convertible Bonds was issued in Hong Kong dollar other
than the functional currency of the Company in United States
dollars, the conversion feature was recognised as derivative
liabilities and estimated at HK$4,252,850 at the date of issue using
binominal valuation method with reference to valuation by an
independent valuer. The difference between principal amount
received and fair value of derivative liabilities which represented
the host debt liability at the date of issue is approximately
HK$10,847,150.

R E

BEEHA-_ZT—AFNA+T=ZHHQE "
RARERKEEE T BN RERES
([P ESH]) - NeEA15,100,000/8 7T ©
AR ERFIEFERN Rt 8 B -E—H
FNA+T=ZBEH T @ ARBEIE - AR
EEHEABEATRBRDERE0328T
e INASBE - REE-_T—1F
+ZA=+—BLEFER FEALARES
HIBAT R E 5 o

R A AR E A AB T TT MIFUAARD
AIMIIBE MR T 31T IR R W RER
ABUTETAREaE WRAZBAAGBEL
DEBLHEMMNGE  RETHBGA
42528508 L WRIM ARG RBEITETER
BERNAFEZHANZESE BERNETHH
FEEBHAELAE10847,1508 T
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32.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 32. AEgREZ (&)
The Convertible Bonds recognised in the statement of financial EFBARRBMEPERATRRESVTAES
position was calculated as follows: AW
2015
—E-R%F
HKS$'000
FATT
Derivative liabilities TTETARE
Fair value of derivative liability of conversion options MRETEHRERENITAET A
at date of issue BENATE 4,253
Fair value changes recognised upon conversion during FRNAERMBERN A T EES
the year recognised in profit or loss RiEmEPER 2,393
Conversion during the year FAEIR (6,646)
Balance as at December 31, 2015 R-_ZE—HF+_A=+—HBH&E#H -
Host debt liabilities TEBEBKERE
Fair value of the host debt liability at RETHHREIZEHAED
date of issue NEE 10,847
Interest expense (note 8) B (F5Es) 590
Conversion during the year F IR (11,437)
Balance as at December 31, 2015 RZE—RF+-A=+—H&#® -

Interest expense on the Convertible Bonds was calculated using

the effective interest method by applying the effective interest
rate of 39.85% to the host debt liability during the year ended

December 31, 2015.

AR ESOF B R ABERN X ETE -

WRE-F-BE+-A=+—AILEE
e BB R 30,859 T B (A5 8 18 -
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OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

33. WMEHERIE

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—AEF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEFRAEIWA:
Current liabilities mEEE 1,856 1,840
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 9,186 11,036
11,042 12,876

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its land and buildings
under finance leases. The average lease term is 10 years. Interest
rate underlying all obligations under finance leases is fixed at the
contract date at 5% per annum. These leases have no terms of

renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses.

AEBHNBRAREREHEHERLS T
WhEF - FHEBA/F-FEREEE
AEENHBANERSOBEMERTFE - %
FHENREHIGET IR B MR EX -

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

BEEERE BERERERE
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE _Z-1f ZE-XRE _T-If
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAEL TER THET
Amounts payable REREESENOFR
under finance leases within one year R—FR 1,939 1,938 1,856 1,840
In more than one year but BRA—EETERME
not more than two years 1,939 1,938 1,871 1,855
In more than two years but BBAMFETEZRAE
not more than five years 5,816 5813 5,706 5,656
In more than five years HBRAF 1,616 3,553 1,609 3,525
11,310 13,242 11,042 12,876
Less: future finance charges W RRBETH (268) (366) - -
Present value of lease obligations MEAREE 11,042 12,876 11,042 12,876
Less: Amount due for settlement within i, : FA—F R E|E/E ERFIE
one year (shown under current (RRBBREETIT)
liabilities) (1,856) (1,840)
Amount due for settlement after one year A —F 1% 5| 5)5 EH)FUE 9,186 11,036
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SHARE CAPITAL 34, RAE
Number of
shares Amount
Ko &R Kok |
HKS$'000
FAET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEIE L E B
Authorised: ERE
At January 1, 2015 R-ZE—RF—H—H 1,000,000,000 100,000
Increase in authorised share capital (note a) 3 A TR A (FisEa) 2,000,000,000 200,000
At December 31, 2015 and 2016 RZFB-—AFER-FT—RHF
+=-A=+—H 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAE:
At January 1, 2015 R-ZE—RF—A—H 832,228,862 83,223
Issue of shares upon placing (note b) H A& i E1TAR 5 (MaEDb) 166,445,772 16,644
Issue of shares upon conversion of E R nl AR B 5 M
convertible bonds (note ) BITRR D (BMisEc) 47,187,500 4,719
At December 31,2015 N _E-HF+_-_A=t+—H 1,045,862,134 104,586
Issue of shares upon subscription (note d) EREmETRD (MFEd) 86,168,000 8,617
Issue of shares upon placing (note e) B & M 21T AR (0 (B 5Ee) 179,500,000 17,950
At December 31, 2016 RZE-RF+-A=+—H 1,311,530,134 131,153
Note: Bt 5 -
(a) Pursuant to the ordinary resolution approved by the shareholders on (@) BERIARZZE—RAFANAN\BBBANIERER
June 8, 2015, the authorised share capital of the Company increased HE BRI EEYN500,000,0008% 7 E @AY
from HK$100,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares to 7R B Y% TE % AN F2100,000,00078 7T * 5 B
HK$150,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares by the creation of 1,000,000,000/% & 378 A% 1 i 2 150,000,000/ JT *
an additional 500,000,000 new ordinary shares. % %31,500,000,0000% & i@ A%
Pursuant to the ordinary resolution approved by the shareholders on REBREN -_Z—HF+ - ANHBBRLER
December 4, 2015, the Company further increased its authorised share o F BB R EEIM 500,000,000 08 H7 @AY -
capital to HK$300,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares by the NRA R H)VE TE BR AN — #2538 51 300,000,000
creation of an additional 1,500,000,000 new ordinary shares. JC 93 /3,000,000,000% & i %
(b) On May 7, 2015, the Group had completed placing of new shares. A (b) RZZE—AFHAALRH AEBEERKEEH
total of 166,445,772 ordinary shares had been successfully placed at the BRI o & 2£166,445,7720% L@ AR B IR B RSB
placing price of HK$0.28 per share. Details of the placing are set out in the 028 T NELE - Il ERHE Z HBHN AR A

announcement of the Company dated May 7, 2015.

HER-ZT-—RAFRALHNRE -
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(0)

During the year ended December 31, 2015, convertible bonds of the
Company with an aggregate principal amount of HK$15,100,000 were
converted into 47,187,500 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the conversion
price of HK$0.32 per share (note 32).

On January 21, 2016, 48,000,000 shares have been subscribed by the
subscriber at the subscription price of HK$0.50 per share. Details of the
subscription are set out in the announcement of the Company dated January
21, 2016.

On August 31, 2016, 38,168,000 shares have been subscribed by the
subscriber at the subscription price of HK$0.262 per share. Details of the
subscription are set out in the announcement of the Company dated August
31, 2016.

On January 13, 2016, the Group had completed placing of new shares. A
total of 104,500,000 placing shares had been placed at the placing price of
HK$0.50 per share. Details of the placing are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated January 13, 2016.

On June 14, 2016, the Group had completed placing of new shares. A total
of 75,000,000 placing shares had been placed at the placing price of HK$0.40
per share. Details of the placing are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated June 14, 2016.

All new shares issued rank pari passu in all respect with the then existing

shares.
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BeE: (48)

()

HE-_Z-—AF+-_AZ+—HLEFE &

#FE15,1000008 T AR R A RREFBIRES
AR EEHA(E0.328 7T - 30 547,187,5000% & /%0.174
TOH) L AR (PR EE32) -

RZE—RNF—A-+—8 REARDRE
48,000,0008% B 17 - FREE B AT ARAR190.508 7T
REFENFBEEHEARARAFTBHAR=F—
F—A=Z+—B0MRER-

RZZ—RNENAZ+—B REAKNRE
38,168,0000 ix 17 + RIEE B EF R AR 19026278
ToRBEEMNFBOHEHAAARBRSEAZ
T-RFENA=ZT—HHRAER-

RZZE—ARF—A+=B FAEBEEZKEE

IR - AL E AR S EZRRD0S0B TR
it & & 3£104,500,0000 Bt & A& 15 - BR & FIEAIF
BEAERARRBSHAE-T—~"F—A+=
ARREA-

RZZ—ANFAA+TNA AEEEZKEES
FAR - AR E AR & B S IRARD0.407E TR I
fid & & #£75,000,0008% B & I 19 © BL & FIBH) 7
BEAERARABHA-T— A "FA+H
ARREA-

FACETNMENEARERNESTEZE
[l S o
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BUSINESS COMBINATION

On May 16, 2016, the Group entered into an agreement with a
shareholder of Ocean Oasis BVI to subscribe 8,165 newly issued
ordinary shares of Ocean Oasis BVI by transferring a loan of
US$11,237,000 (equivalent to HK$87,155,000) owed by Ocean
Oasis BVI to the Group as its consideration. The transaction was
completed on July 5, 2016 and the Group's shareholding of Ocean
Oasis BVI increased from 11% to 51%. Since then, Ocean Oasis BVI
became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Ocean Oasis
BVI and its subsidiaries, Ocean Qasis International Limited and

My HD Media FZ LLC ("My HD"), limited companies incorporated

in United Arab Emirates, engaged in the business of provision of
Direct-to-Home services for satellite television broadcasting in

22 countries in Middle East, Mediterranean and Africa (“MEMA”).
The directors consider that the subscription will enhance the
chance for the Group to recoup its investments in My HD by (i)
strengthening My HD's financial viability by reducing its debt
burden; and (ii) enable the Group to consolidate its control over
My HD, in particular its future development strategies. In addition,
the subscription will also provide a strategic platform for the Group
to explore and develop the market of set top boxes and other
digital media equipment in MEMA, which is in line with the Group's
strategy to continue investing resources for the transformation
from an integrated device designer and manufacturer to a
multimedia platform owner.

35.

EBEH

RZZE—R"FRA+T/E AEEBEEOcean
QOasis BVIE) — B RR R AT L — 1 Wik - B 8 1)
AN 2 B8 #2 Ocean Oasis BVISE K K] —E B#
11,237,0003 7 (48E 7287,155,0008 7T ) B E
FHIEERB  ARIES 1650 #1317 Ocean
Oasis BVIZ R - Z R HR T —~F+ A
F H 5K B AR E B Ocean Oasis BVIAY A% #
F11%E E51% © It 1% * Ocean Oasis BVIAX &
AEBIEREKIBAF] ° Ocean Oasis BVIRE
B B /2 B ~ Ocean Oasis International Limited
KMy HD Media FZ LLC ([MyHD ) (55
R A EEEE REGEMK L2 AR R
R E R IEM (TMEMA ) 2218 B
REHEZANEGESREERB -EFR
A REEEBE)DREEEBL S EEEMy
HOEYEBA TS RI 1T + R (iNE A EEER & H ¥ My
HORIEE  CHEARKERRE 125
SEYEE MMy HDIR B B R o it o) - R
FIAT G RN E B R &R MEMAR #
TE& R H At B 7 K B 2R B /0 T 5 IR (LB R T
Bt EAEE ABRENRBHRIE RE
EEESALEBETaREEMEBIRAE
TRE B RS AR — B e
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 35.

Details of fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired at

date of acquisition were as follows:

EBE o (&)

PRz IR B E M B ERKERRHNA
FEFBOT:

HKS$'000

FAT
Property, plant and equipment M WE REE 974
Inventories FE 3,169
Trade, bills and other receivables FEUE 5 8RN - B IR R R I EL A0 B GR IR 11,577
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 8,759
Trade and other payables FE T B 5 AR SR 1% B A JE A 5K IE (132,677)
Amount due to shareholders FE - IR B Tk T8 (138,364)
Net liabilities acquired Frik s & E 55 (246,562)
Non-controlling interests FE1E R A 121,558
Net identified liabilities acquired Frik B ] 34 Bl B B F 58 (125,004)
Goodwill on acquisition LAt fi ey g 125,004
Total consideration wRAE -
Satisfied by: LALAT A= 41
Available-for-sale investments* A ERE -
Loan receivables capitalised* BE Rz Y E R -
* The original amount of the available-for-sale investments and loan * AHHERERBERMLZERERNRERE

receivables capitalised are HK$40,573,000 and HK$87,155,000 respectively,
which were fully impaired as at December 31, 2015 and date of acquisition.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries was as follows:

% Bl £40,573,0007% 7T 587,155,000 7T * %25 4
ER-_Z—AF+-A=+—HARKEAHE
TERRIE

WEHBARMNES MREEEMHRAF
BT

HK$'000
THET

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

Cash and cash equivalents paid

BB REMRECEEY
EXNZRENREEEY

8,759

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

RekBReSEMRAFE

8,759
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 35.

Since the acquisition date, Ocean Oasis BVI and its subsidiaries
have contributed HK$11,586,000 and HK$87,065,000 to Group's
revenue and loss. If the acquisition had occurred on January 1,
2016, Group revenue and loss would have been HK$1,812,890,000
and HK$165,985,000 respectively. This pro forma information is
for illustrative purpose only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on January 1, 2016, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
performance.

The goodwill arose from the acquisition of Ocean Oasis BVI and
its subsidiaries represented future prospect of My HD and synergy
effect of the newly acquired business with the existing set top
boxes and other digital media equipment business.

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36.

(a) During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Group
disposed of the entire equity interest in Weblink Group. The
net assets of Weblink Group at the date of disposal were as

EBE o (&)

B Uk B Ef - Ocean Oasis BVIR EM B ATE
MmN & [ A U 25 I B 8)E B 11,586,00078 7T
1287,065,000/ 7 MBS IHE RN T — X
F-—A—HBE AEBWREKEERES R
#$1,812,890,0007% 7T K 165,985,0007% TC © 3% &
EERHEERPB R WIIEAMKEEE
ERZZE—RF—A—HEK AEBEEE
BRER WS RSB 2 IRIR MESE
BARREKIE ZTEA -

B W BB Ocean Oasis BVIN W B R B FrE £
K2 T) AMy HDREY R 2R BT 5 LA K 53 W i
XGHRERBEE R KM T HBREES
FiT B 22 #9173 [B) R0 o

HEHE A H

(@) B2 -_Z—AF+-_A=+—HL*F
€ AEEE HEWeblink&E B /2350
A% A HEZS o WeblinkE B 7 H & B HIRY
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follows: FEENT
HKS$'000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment L ESN N 3,852
Prepaid lease payment FENHEERE 2,469
Bank balances and cash RITHETFERS 1,109
Trade and other payables FEAT B 5 BR 3R B B At JE A 3R IE (1,262)
Net assets disposed of FTEEMFEE 6,168
Releases of exchange reserve BERE#E 989
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries included in HEMNBRARMNKNEBRERERZN
profit or loss 6,843
Total consideration wR(E 14,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEEMBSRAFE
Cash consideration REeERE 14,000
Bank balance and cash disposed of FTEERITHEFRRS (1,109)
12,891




Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T B BR 12 it 5 BR 2 &)
2016 Annual Report &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
BE-_Z—X"F+A=+—RHLFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Group
disposed of the entire equity interest in Moment Track

36. HEMHBLAT (&)

b #HEZZ-—AFE+-A=+—H
IHFE AEEE HEMoment

Limited and its subsidiary (collectively referred to “Moment Track Limited &2 M B A 7 (5518 5
Track Group”). The net assets of Moment Track Group at the [Moment Trackfs B | ) & 2 &6 AR 2N 1
date of disposal were as follows: 25 ° Moment TracksE @ A H & A i
FREWMT:
HKS$'000
T
Investment property (note 17) wEME (Ks17) 20,779
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR 3R B H i R IR 250
Bank balances and cash WITHF RS 80
Deferred tax payables (note 24) FERHRERLIE (P 7E24) (2,350)
Net assets disposed of FTEERFEE 18,759
Releases of exchange reserve BOMmEFE 3473
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries included in HEMBRARAMNEERERERN
profit or loss (1,602)
Total consideration BRAE 20,630
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEENBRSRAFE
Cash consideration BeRE 20,630
Bank balance and cash disposed of FTHEHRITEFRRS (80)
20,550
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—E-RFT+-_A=1+—"HIEFE

OPERATING LEASES 37. BMEMEESE
The Group as lessee EEBERAEBEA
Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during the FAEMKLHENNRKEBERIEA:
year:
2016 2015
=F-RE —T-hEF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FAE T
Premises FE 3,823 3,684
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RBEER AREBEBRKBET ] ZHEEEH
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable g HEEEEER THHBEZHHRRE
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as EHEERBAEZENT
follows:
2016 2015
—E-KRF¥ —T—hF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —F K 538 2,718
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEEERTF (BREEEMT) 62 1,256
600 3,974
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37. OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 37. BMEMAE (&)
The Group as lessor AEBEAEEA
Property rental income earned during the year was HK$11,505,000 FRRIAYERE S WA A11,50500%8 7T
(2015: HK$8,925,000) with negligible outgoings. All of the (ZZ—FF 8925000/ 70) » M2 H Jh 14
investment properties held have committed tenants for the next TREBE -FIFHEHREMERRK—ERF
one to five years. EAFTHNAE-
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with REBRR RNEB D HBHETITNNRRE
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: EAEREBLOT
2016 2015
—EB-KRF —_T—AF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
THET FHET
Within one year —F K 3,887 5,521
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEELF (BEEEME) 2,924 4,943
Over five years BilAF - 16
6,811 10,480
38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. EAREIE
2016 2015
—B-AF —E—-AhF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BT ARRERE I &
provided in the consolidated financial BENEARMX
statements in respect of:
Investment in an associate R—EBE R RNRE - 10,184
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39.

40.

177

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 31, equity reserves attributable to
owners of the Group, comprising issued share capital and various
reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through new share issues
and the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40.

(a) Categories of financial risk management

EXERER

AEBEEBHEEARURRRNEE A ARE
e RBBICEEREREREBIRE
o NERE B BERALHE EFE BRI T

L=4

=

A S 0 A R SRR (RIER IS
P4 8 0 ) A SR L A A M A 2
iR (BB BTRAR S BRI RRE
) -

RRAREETE W EARERE - F R
—&MD ARBEFEBEAKA R EEZE
BIERHEEOER REEFNES &K
BB B A ) BT KRBT ES S EE R
BEHVFEEBEBENERE

HRERER
(a) HHKEAMRBEENER

2016 2015
—E-RF —ZT—-AhF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FERT FE&T
Financial assets cRMEE
Loans and receivables (including B R EBGIAE (B
cash and cash equivalents) ReMREEFEEY) 492,340 594,015
Financial liabilities cREes
Amortised cost - $ )N 978,354 846,752
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 40. HHEEMERE (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)

The Group's major financial risk management include
trade, bills and other receivables, loan receivables, bond
receivables, available-for-sale investments, loan to an
associate, amount due from an associate, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade, bills and other
payables, obligation under finance leases and bank

and other borrowings. Details of these financial risk
management are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial risk management and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Company'’s subsidiaries have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to

foreign exchange risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency (as in relation to the functional currency of

BERBREEBERBEX

AEENTEMHGEREEREE
WE 5 85K IR R 1B I B A FE UK
H - EWER  BEHENFIE - AT
ERE BT HEBERARNER:
FEY — M2 R R M IR R
TEX ROTEEFRRES ENES
BRAR - B SRR I EL A FE AN R - B
BHEEAEARRITREMER %
FHBRRE B BRAERE M E R
B TXHEHINEAZEMBRREER
2R ) L B e o ] B 4K 2 55 B B B9 TR
R-BEEBEEMEEZZER A
FEIR I B RO IREUE S M 7 ©

w5 s

(i) B R R

REE IR - AL B AN
(RN EREEERESE

the relevant group entities) denominated monetary BKms ) AtENEBEERE
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the BEEMREABERT:
reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE g8f
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RE —E-nF —E-RE “E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT TR TAT
Renminbi (‘RMB") AR (TAR¥]) 579 191 61,855 44,761
HKD BT 669 60,848 - -
usb e 40,545 49915 185,195 209,621
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 40. MHEARER (&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HERBREEBZERBE (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) e b (4E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) EEAR (£)
Sensitivity analysis BRED
As HKD is pegged with USD, the Group's currency FR A8 JT BASE T 8 - N TE HR
risk relative to USD in relation to the monetary REEBNB T ENEEEE
assets/liabilities denominated in HKD is not S BEMSRNETEERR
expected to be significant. WHEK-
The Group is mainly exposed to USD and RMB AEBFZEEHHEEEEEE
relative to the functional currency of the relevant BOMREEE (FE9RRA
group entities, which are mainly RMB and USD RERET)EBEBHETRA
respectively. The Group does not have a formal R = e o 8 A AN 52 B 30 % 1
foreign currency hedging policy. But management HIMNEE A HEK - BEEEEE
monitors the Group's foreign currency exposure BE % 7N 5 (B 1) SN B R B 3 A BE
and enters into forward contracts when movements TG R B B E TR A 80 B
in the exchange rates are outside management's ISR RS XY - DARE (K EE X @
expected range in order to minimise the exchange i o
rate risk.
The following table details the Group's sensitivity TRANAEEGREERERE
to a 5% increase and decrease in functional et EE R ETRARE EF
currency of respective group entities against K T FE5%H) UK © 5% FT
USD and RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used and RANGRE KXEEEYH
represents management's assessment of the HINEETE KK ] BE A 32 BB i /E
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange HE) ET Al o §URE S AT R £
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes both USD ERMEARAETRARKE
and RMB monetary assets and liabilities at the end JENEEEEREBE - TX
of the reporting period. A negative number below FIRBEEETRARKER
indicates an increase in loss where USD and RMB NEeE M EF sl - S E5EE
strengthen 5% against the functional currency. Mm-ERETRARE LG
For a 5% weakening of USD and RMB against the BN %5%E - Bl Al g ¥ AR E
functlgna! currency, there would be an equal and EEREERERERSE.
opposite impact on the loss for the year.
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT-N1F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT T
Increase in loss for the year: NEEEIBEM:
- RMB —AR¥ (2,292) (1,671)
- Usb —%7T (5,424) (5,989)
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 40. MEBEEBRERE (K)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HMBEMEEESERBE (&)

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate loan to an associate, loan
receivables, bond receivables and pledged bank
deposits set out in notes 20, 23, 27 and 28.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
bank and other borrowings as set out in notes 29
and 31 respectively. It is the Group's policy to keep
the majority of balances and borrowings at floating
rate of interest so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy in relation to interest rate risk. The
directors of the Company monitor the exposure

on an ongoing basis and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of LIBOR arising
from the Group’s USD borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The bank balances of the Group carry floating-rates
of interest and have exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk. The directors of the Company consider the
exposure is insignificant and therefore no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

w5 (&)

(i)

) = L

A& B AR EE20 - 23 ~ 27528
Frakss 7 — B & R R E B
BER - ERER - EHEURK
EREERBRITHERMEE A
FEFERR -

REBI D BB 5220 K% 31F7
B RRTAFHERITRE
=N E B Aoy e
o AEBRBEREEZHE
FEREFEMEENREATE
F & @B -

A ERE L AT R AR
BB EAFIREEE AR
AEFBEERARLNEE
SEE) RY PRIES-IE

AEERSRENXERER
SPRAKEWERTEEMRE
ERBIRTTREIFEHKE)

AEBRITETFRFBHF R
AR YEHRERENEE
B ARBEERR  ZAR
WAER - I E 2 FHEFB
REDHT
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

181

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank and other borrowings.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A

50 basis point change is used and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

A summary of the Group’s monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period that carried variable
interest rate is as follows:

MHRERER (&)
BHEABREEEEREE (&)

w5 (&)

MxEE (F)
BREIM (&)

TSRS T ER T B IR
R o BRI E AR T

T o AT TS BRAR TR 4 R
FREEABLEARERE
ESEMIELR - SOEE A
RRNEHE REEEEY
RIS AT B TR B BT 1
GIEE

RBEEHPR AREFZEER
BEMRMT

2016 2015

—RF —E—hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTEx FHEIT

Liabilities Bf& 391,721 350,438

Based on the above summary, if interest rates had
been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's loss for
the year ended December 31, 2016 would increase
or decrease by HK$1,469,000 (2015: HK$1,314,000).
The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has
decreased during the year mainly due to decrease in
bank and other borrowings.

R4 it 2 - i ) 2= 38 ol R
SOME B AT A HMAT R
=18 AXEBEEZEC

—RNE+_A=+—HIEE
m;gﬂé@ijjujz;ﬁ/b 1,469,000
/ETE( =z — j‘i$ 4000
m@@§m9'$£%mmﬁ
TREMEERDFAR-
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
December 31, 2016 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures

to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. During the year ended
December 31, 2016, impairment losses of HK$42,484,000
(2015: HK$39,063,000) had been made for the long
outstanding customers, representing the full irrecoverable
amount of those customers. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group's credit risk in other
debts is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of loan
receivables. As at December 31, 2016, the loan receivables
were mainly provided to several overseas customers who
have long business relationship with the Group. During

the year ended December 31, 2016, impairment losses

of HK$39,155,000 (2015: HK$48,828,000) had been made
for the loan receivables. The management of the Group
continuously monitors the level of exposure to ensure that
follow up actions and collection actions are taken promptly
to lower exposure.
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40. MHEARER (&)

(b)

BHEABREEEEREE (&)

EEmE

RZE—RE+-_A=+—80 &&
BfAHNSEAEERRAEBSED
BREMEENHFHIRERITE
T RARESEAGEUBHEMRRARAM
EBEENEREE - BREEER
B AEBEEEECHERER—HAESR
EETEER EEHEZREMER
R AREREREUR 3 77 ) Uk Bl 780 2
B o b o NEE R RS BHRIGE
FEERESHEEHTHESEE A
AR JWE S EEL B R ER
B-BE_ZT—R"F+-A=+—H
HEFERN fRBAREEEFPIELD
B E1E 542,484,000 T ( — & —H
F 139,063,000 70) ' ERZE
FHE2I e W e RIE - it s
RRREFEREASENEMEBLE
B RS KIERE-

HRHFTHREERFNRIT &
AEENRBHESEERRER-

REBREKEREAHEFEER
oM —_E—R"F+_A=+—H"
FEWERTIEB4 THEANEE M
BERBESFHEENBDGINEE - B
E-E-RE+A=+—HILFE
A B U E ZE 39,155,000/ 7T
— T — 4 48,828,000/ 7T ) Z
BEER NEETEEEELEER
K ARER R B SRR 1T 2 UK
B SRR R R B o
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

183

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to concentration of credit risk
through its loan to an associate, amount due from an
associate and deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary.
Because of the Group's involvement in the management
of the associate, the Group is in a position to monitor its
financial performance. Accordingly, management believes
that the Group's exposure in this regard is significantly
reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 21% (2015:
17%) and 55% (2015: 45%) of the total trade and bills
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer

and the five largest customers respectively. The directors of
the Company considered that the receivable balance from
these customers do not represent a significant credit risk
based on past collection experience and no bad debts have
been recognised against trade and bills receivables due
from these customers. Other than that, the Group has no
other significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

40.

MEERREE (&)

(b)

BEEREERREREGK ()

FEmE (&)

AEETRGE T —HBLERANE
R PR U — [ B = 2 R O SRR K W BB
—HMBARNE N2 ME S LS
EERR ARAEE2EZBER
AIMER MAKEAERERHE
HoHit BEEBREAREILE
BEERE XERE-

REBEREKE ZERREREE

BREHNEPEERRA21% (ZF

—RHF17%) M55% (ZE—HF:
45%) - IR RIRB AR EENEAE P
MARKBF -ARAEERE BE
BEWERSS  BRZEEFHER
RIBEHRWEENEERRE QO E
MERZEZEPHNERE SRR RE
I = PR W R AE AR ER o BRI 2 51 - R
EEVTEABEREFEERR -

RBEEER

REBRDESER T E  NEHE
EREREEER/EAKTINES
EREEEY UWBRNAKEEER
BNRSRERBNTE -

TRFANAEEFTESRABNE
BREDIHBER - TRERAKEA
ERARERNFNEZFAH HER
BENARTRASRERR - EMIF
TS R B ER 2 B TR 6 5 #
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 40. BERERE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HMBEMEEESERBE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEELRER (&)
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. ZEVNRBENERAEHERE
To the extent that interest flows are variable rate, the WFEmERLOEBFIERGTE  BIR
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the MRS EENRERARNFIERGTH -
end of the reporting period.
Liquidity risk tables mEE e RRE
Weighted Less than 1 Total
average month or 1-3 3 month undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand months to1 year Over 1 year cash flows amount
il —-EAUT =f8R AHBERS
THRE IRERE  -Z=fER E-f BB-F HEBAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000
% FHL FAL TAR TFATL FHL THL
December 31,2016 ZE-RETZAZt-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTELRERE
Trade, bills and other payables ENEZER ENEER
HipEfFE - 379,325 67,798 121,082 7,386 575,591 575,591
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEE 568 141,717 191,344 75,033 - 408,094 391,721
Obligation under finance lease RERERE 162 323 1,463 9,645 11,593 11,082
521,204 259,465 197,578 17,031 995,278 978,354
December 31,2015 “E-EFT-AZ1-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTELRHARE
Trade, bills and other payables ENESET ENEER
LY ANE - 300,213 111,205 71877 143 483438 483,438
Bank and other borrowings BAREMEE 439 161,257 112857 81,097 1,746 356,957 350438
Obligation under finance lease BAMERE 162 33 1453 11,304 13,242 12876
461,632 204,385 154427 13193 853,637 846,752
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

185

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “less than month or on demand” time band
in the above maturity analysis. As at December 31, 2016, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank
loans amounted to HK$59,721,000 (2015: HK$62,013,000).
Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
payment. The directors believe that such bank loans will

be repaid within one year and one year after the end of
the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
will amount to HK$59,721,000 and HK$ 1,862,000 (2015:
HK$62,013,000 and HKS$1,736,000) respectively.

40.

MEERER (&)
(b) HMBEMEEEEREX (H&)

RBEE AR (E)
nBELERRK (B)

BEREREREREXNRITERR L
MEHAD T ARETAT—EA TR
TR MBHBEE R_T—XF
+ZA=1+—H ZFROTERHK
IR AR 4858 /559,721,0008 7T (=
—HF 62,013,000 7C) - K ZEAR
SEMNPBEMR  ESTHRERTE
AIRETTIF H B SR BB R BY 1B AE ©
EZHE REERBEMSBIHEEE
B ZERTEFENR—FA
FRIERRE—FAEBE -ER-
rehMERERBDBERD A
59,721,0007% 7T} 1,862,000 7T (==
— A4 162,013,000 7T & 1,736,000/
JL) °
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial risk
management

This note provides information about how the Group
determine fair values of various financial assets and
liabilities.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities recorded
at amortised cost have been determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on a
discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant
inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.

For disclosure of the investment properties that are
measured at fair value, please refer to note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 41.

Pursuant to a share option scheme approved by a written
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on March
17,2005 (the "Option Scheme”) which has a term of 10 years, the
Company may grant options to the directors or employees, any
business consultants, business partners, suppliers, customers,
agents or financial or legal advisers of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, for the recognition of their contributions, to subscribe
for shares in the Company with a payment of HK$1.00 upon each
grant of options offered.

The exercise price of the share option will be determined at the
highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Company'’s shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

(i) the average of closing prices of shares on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The share options are exercisable at any time during a period of not
more than 10 years from the date of grant, subject to the terms and
conditions of the Option Scheme, or any conditions stipulated by
the board of directors.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted shall not exceed 10% of the number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. Unless further shareholders’
approval has been obtained pursuant to the conditions set out in
the Option Scheme, no person shall be granted an option which,

if all the options granted to the person (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12 month period up to the date of
grant are exercised in full, would result in such person’s maximum
entitlement exceeding 1% of the number of issued shares of the
Company.
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The following table discloses movements of the share options of

41.

URODRERGRORS (F)

TREEFARNRREFHREREMEARF

the Company entitled by the Company's directors or employees BRENS:
during the year:
Number of share options EBREHE
Lapsed Lapsed
during the during the
Exercise Outstanding year ended Outstanding year ended Outstanding
price atJanuary 1,  December31, atDecember31, December31, atDecember 31,
Date of grant (Note b) (Note a) 2015 2015 2015 2016 2016
REZE REZE
RZZ2-1% ZE-1F  RIE-EF ZE-RE RIB-RE
TfeE -B-8 f+ZA=t-R t=ZA=t+-B t=A=t-H t=A=t-H
it A8 (MaEb) (Mzta) HATE LFEESAN HATE LFEBX¥ i RATE
Type of grantee
ERARR
Directors July 30,2005 HK$1.02 500,000 (500,000) - - -
3 “ZTRFLA=1H 1028 7T
Directors October 22, 2010 HK$2.05 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000
Ex “E-ZETAZTZH 2058 7T
Employees July 30,2005 HK$1.02 2,340,000 (2,340,000) - - -
B8 “ZERELA=TH 1025 7T
Employees December 27, 2007 HK$1.76 100,000 - 100,000 - 100,000
E& “ETHETZAZTLA 1765 7T
Employees April 1, 2009 HKS1.114 100,000 - 100,000 - 100,000
B8 “EENEMA-A 11487
Total 5,540,000 (2,840,000) 2,700,000 - 2,700,000
@t
Weighted average exercise price 1.50 1.02 2.00 - 2.00

MEFHTHEE
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 41. LURHBREBSRNRS (&)

(Continued)
BRERE (&)

Number of share options (Continued)

ARRHNBORER _TTRFL

189

(a) The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately (a)

before July 30, 2005, December 27, 2007, April 1, 2009 and
October 22, 2010, the dates the options were granted, were
HK$1.02, HKS$1.76, HK$1.114 and HK$2.05 respectively.

A=+8 - —2Z+F+-_A-++
A —EThFMA-HR-_2—%
F+A-+t-B(BERERLEBE)
ATEI U T B 2 Bl A1.028 7T - 1.7678
JC 11438 7T K 2.058 7T ©

(b)  The share options are vested in stages as follows: b) EBRESEEREBNOT:
On or after the second anniversary of B H HEAE
the date of grant 50% FEoRFH 2B 50%
On or after the third anniversary of % B E e
the date of grant remaining 50% F-RAFR 2% BRTN50%
Options granted on July 30, 2005, December 27, 2007, April RZEZERFLA=1+H ZZTZ Lt
1, 2009 and October 22, 2010 are exercisable until July 29, F+_AZ++tBH ZTZTAFMA
2015, December 26, 2017, March 31, 2019 and October 21, —BHE_ZE—ZFTFF+A-_F+_BE
2020, respectively. HHERES TR —RF+H
—thB - ZE—+FF+ZAZ+R
A ZZE—hEF=A=+—RHEK=Z
—EFE+AZ+—HAITTE
© All the share options has been vested and no share options (@ BEAARAREERE PTG BARE

expenses recognised during the years ended December
2016 and 2015 in relation to share options granted by

the Company. The share option scheme was expired on
March 16, 2015, however, all outstanding share options

are exercisable at the end of the year until relevants dates
detailed in note (b). The Company has no new share option
scheme as at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

ERE BREEZE_T—RFR-F
—hFE+-ALFE UERRBK
X -BRESENR_FT—1F
= RAtRBER AWM A RARTT
150 B A A T Y 5F R B ZE P R (b) T 51U 48
BEHAITE - AR BR T —RF
M—ZE-RF+-_A=+t—BLEE
o] 7 R8 B B AT &
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees

are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution paid and payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF
Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income represent contributions paid and
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the scheme.

The employees employed by the operations in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The PRC operations are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes operated by
the PRC government is to make the required contributions under
the schemes.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company in foreign
countries are required to contribute amounts based on employees’
salaries to the retirement benefit schemes as stipulated by the
relevant local authorities. The employees are entitled to those
subsidiaries’ contributions subject to the regulations of the relevant
local authorities.

42.

BT RS

AEEREEERBAEREERIBESS
g RELFEAMBURTAZEGNESE
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SRR AR IRE A B DAKER
AERAFTANEERZEESEENEN
R AR o

AEENPRELXBGEANEED BT
B IR A AR 32 ) B 5 3R AR AR AR R R B 9 B
B-HBTEREXRBEAXNEEF SN —
ELE - ERERBNEENER REH
BARHES - AKEH P EBFRILAER
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43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 43. BEATHHEEER
()  Transactions i) X5
The Group had the following related party transaction: REEGETUTHEATRS:
Relationship Nature of transaction 2016 2015
B & REME —E-XRF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FHET
Associate Sales of goods 71,777 37,533
FA NG HESMm
Interest income 2,185 2,136
B A
(ii)  Balances (i) #ER
Details of the Group's balances with related party are set REBEBEA TR BHRE
out in the consolidated statement of financial position and & B AR R LA R M 5E20 K% 22 ©

in notes 20 and 22.

(iii) Compensation of key management personnel (i) FEEBAESNMHE
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FRNEZRFEFTEREEMKE KB
management during the year was as follows: TWT:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —ET—-hF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTET T
Short-term benefits %2 HRTE A 12,497 10,612
Post-employment benefits B8 RIKEF 244 236
12,741 10,848
In the opinion of the directors, the remuneration of EERBE EERTETHABHMH
directors and key executives is determined having regard to SREBEFXRBELTSBEME
the performance of individuals and market trends. SE °
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44. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 44, EBEEIEKH
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were RBERR ANEEEETIEERF 1
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group: RFTERITEENER:
2016 2015
—E-KRF —T—-h%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Bank deposits RITF R 14,925 18,022
Trade receivables & W E Z 8RR 104,626 64,889
Property, plant and equipment W BB K& E 44,658 48,356
Investment properties AWM 146,648 124,241
Inventory T8 103,082 -
45. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 45. TEFRERS

HE_T-—HAF+-_A=t—HILFERN"

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company issued ) N
ARAR_E-—RF-A+T_HEERER

the executed payment instructions to direct HXCH to make

=] $7T AL 2% NEN /—\ .S < N
payment of HK$30,000,000 to NUR on January 12, 2015 and on the & %:Hxi-( Hiﬁlrma ) Lﬁi 4-}3(1000,000,5
= 4A R S B ACESE - KNS A E [ 22
same date, the Company subscribed HK$30,000,000 bond issued by LA i %s"’ = /ﬁ ZA EIELH H “E%
NUR (note 27). F B 5K Bt & R 3 1730,000,00078 TTHO (& 2
(HIEE27) o
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ARBITRATION 46.

On September 29, 2011, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement (the “Agreement”) with an independent individual third
party (the "Original Shareholder”) and Technosat Technology JLT
FZE (“Technosat”, a company incorporated in Dubai, which was
wholly owned by the Original Shareholder), to subscribe for 375
new shares in Technosat at a cash consideration of US$7,500,000
(equivalent to HK$58,170,000), amounting to 15% of Technosat's
enlarged capital. Technosat is set up to be engaged in operation of
digital TV and radio platform, pay TV channel, and sales and supply
of TV set top boxes.

As at June 30, 2012, the Group had paid a deposit of US$2,500,000
(equivalent to HK$19,467,000) to Technosat to acquire new shares
in Technosat which was fully provided for impairment in prior year.
Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Group is required

to pay a further US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription

of this 15% equity interest in Technosat. The subscription is

not yet completed up to the date of approval of this report as

the conditions precedent of the subscription of new shares in
Technosat including the consent and approval by government
authority in Dubai has not been fulfilled.

Despite the Group's repeated request for information, there
were no satisfactory response from the Original Shareholder or
Technosat (“Counterparties”) regarding the current status and
the procurement of obtaining government approval from the
government authority in Dubai. The Group has engaged legal
counsel to act for the Group and started dispute resolution
proceedings against the Original Shareholder and Technosat.

ik

R-E——FNA-+IB KNEEER—
HZEUERE =77 ([RIRE]) KTechnosat
Technology JLT FZE ([Technosat ] * — R £t
FAMKIMW AR ARREE2EHESF)E]
B GEHFSEE ([ZBE])  LBEeR
187,500,000 7T (18 E 158,170,000/ 7T )
ff Technosat 3750% #TR% + Bl TechnosatAZ #& X
% A E#915% ° Technosatfy A SZ B B At F &
BHTEGREETYE HEERBBEUR
HERMHEERIES -

RZE——FXA=Z1+H A£BEEM
Technosatsz 1~ 5] 2,500,000 7T (FE R
19,467,000/ 7T ) + LAUK B& Technosat A 7 % -
ZEMRENEZFRBEGTIRBERE - BRI
Z B E IR NEE AR R TechnosatiZ
159% % A #E 2 3 — 25 52 °15,000,0005E 7T © BB
52K 52 i Technosat 3 I& &9 5 R A& 4 (‘B FEER
BHBEBTEFIERE RIE) M ARER -
HRBEEREEAREEIEZARMAKT
ﬁjz o

BEAEE—BZKRKEHTechnosat
([EF A1) R ERBE AR F BT 6P
RN R RERSEBEIE BHFAFR
BLAMERNDE AEEDZEEREMN
IARAEBITE - I & ¥ RAX R K Technosat
RAAUGABREF -
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46. ARBITRATION (Continued)

On January 21, 2013, the legal counsel of the Original Shareholder
and Technosat served a notice to the Group's legal counsel for a
claim on the further payment of US$5,000,000 in relation to the
subscription of this 15% equity interest in Technosat.

The Group's legal counsel has replied on behalf of the Group

on February 11,2013 in response to the claim of the Original
Shareholder and Technosat defending the claim as the directors
of the Company consider such claim invalid, as the conditions
precedent of the subscription of new shares in Technosat had not
been fulfilled and constituted a breach of the Agreement.

The Group's legal counsel had repeated request on the Original
Shareholder and Technosat to commence the next step on
mediation, but there were no satisfactory response from the legal
counsel of the Original Shareholder and Technosat up to the

deadline set by August 2014. At the date of approval of this report,

the Group's legal counsel is in the process for arrangement to
submit for the next step on arbitration.

46.

hE (%)

R-E—=F—A-+—H BEREX
TechnosatAy )% 2 B8 8 7 2K S [ A A 2 R S ik
E—@A - BERA @R ETechnosata%15%
& 7 e % ) #E — 2P FRIE5,000,0003 7T, ©

NEENEFEBERN -_Z—=4"/A+—H
REAEBE D BRI M Technosat A ER
REAERREENE RRALRRRESRAR
R EE Technosat#7 A% B 55 SR M6 M AR EERK
AR ERZWE NZEREEES -

NEFAEZBRC B RRRER M
TechnosatiZ IR T — MM Ek - HH
EE-—NFENAMNBRERBE DRERR
& %R K Technosat#) /A 2 EE R )i B 01 78 - B0
AFFEEIEEH  AEERNEEBMIRIE
EERE T E RN
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at December 31,
2016 and 2015 are as follows:

47.

ARABWEEZHE AR

R_E—RFEER-_T—HF+-_A=1+—
B ARBITEMBABNFEBNT:

Issued and
Place of incorporation/ fully paid share
establishment/ capital/registered Proportion of nominal value of issued share/
Name of company operations Class of shares held capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AREL/ BRIRAR ARABECRTRAESR/
NAER RY/ e BERHER By /ERER ARERNLAH IEXE
2016 2015
ZE-RF “Z-0F
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# A% E# &
Top Peaker Group Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
("Top Peaker’) ('BVI")/Hong Kong
EERRHE EER 1000057 REBR
([XEERER])/
i
Sandmartin (Zhong Shan) PRC Registered capital 1/5519,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of electronic goods
Electronic Co, Ltd.
MUEFTEFAHERAR  PE HMEx 19,500,000 TC HEETHE
SMT Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Trading of electronic goods
ERRBERAA ) LaER biio EfEmE
SMT Electronic Technology Limited ~ Cayman Islands/Taiwan ~ Ordinary Usé1 100% 100%  Trading of electronic goods
Reks/ /21 EBk B3 51ERES
SMT (Macao Commercial Offshore) ~ Macau Quota capital MOP100,000 100% 100%  Trading of electronic goods
Limited
4 CRFERAE RSB BRAT EM RERA 10000025 7T 51ERES
TRT Business Network Solutions, Inc. -~ USA Ordinary US$100,000 100% 100%  Trading of electronic goods
3] el 10000037 51ERES
PBT Cayman Islands/USA Ordinary/Preference 15$20,000,000/ 59.1% 59.1% Investment holding and trading of
15$9,759,203 Satellite TV equipment and antenna
ReRs /%8 LR/ BEHR 200000007/ REBRNRERERRBRAEES
9759203% T
PBI USA Ordinary Uss1 59.1% 59.1%  Trading of Satellite and trading of
Satellite TV equipment and antenna
X EBk B3 ERESNREEERRERKEE S
Sksteck Inc. Taiwan Ordinary NTW225,000,000 59.1% 59.1%  Design, manufacture and trading of
Satellite TV equipment and antenna
Kk £ EBk 225,000,000 BEERRBRARF: HERES
GEL
FLT Hong Kong Technology Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$450,000 100% 100%  Trading of optical fibre products
AERUHE/BE  LBR 450000% T rEERES
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47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 47. ERATNEENE LR (&)
(Continued)
Issued and
Place of incorporation/ fully paid share
establishment/ capital/registered Proportion of nominal value of issued share/
Name of company operations Class of shares held capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
ARAL/ BRARAR AAABEERTRAEE/
ARER Y/ EEnY BERHER BE/ERER ERERNLH IEXE
2016 2015
“E-RE Z5-1fF
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# [ E# %
BCN Distribuciones, SA. Spain Ordinary EUR412,102 100% 100%  Research and development and trading
of electronic goods
3% el 412,108 5TERMERES
DS Germany Ordinary EUR31,250 100% 100%  Design and manufacture of
electronic goods
EH el 31,2508 7T EfEmRAREE
Sino Light Enterprise Limited Hong Kong/PRC Ordinary HK$12,600 64% 64%  Inactive
ABLEERLE B/ 18 LRk 1260087 UEEH
E-passing Co, Ltd. Taiwan Ordinary NTW100,000,000 100% 100%  Service of integration system of public
program
REARAERAA E) Lk 100,000,000%7 £ BALERRHEAZGRE
Aggressive Digital Systems India Ordinary INR30,000,000 51% 51%  Manufacture of electronic goods
Private Ltd.
9E ERR 30,000,000 HEEFEM
HEEL
My HD United Arab Emirate Ordinary AED 50,000 51%* N/A Satellite TV broadcasting
MufEsaERE LBk 50000178 TER BEERER
* Newly acquired during the year ended December 31, 2016 * REBEZZZE-—A"F+A=T—HLEFEHNK
i

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets

and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at any

time of the year or at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

EHRALRATHARANBEL
1ty 4 S A

REIEN S

%%@Eﬁ°%$%%

FIREMH B A RN FEEEHATH

go

FREAKRIR -F
TZTA=t+—HHENEL

TTIEBES -

—RER-ZT-HF
ﬂ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%
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47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 47. ADQFRNETEMB AR (&)
(Continued)
During the year, PBT has issued its share capital of approximately RER PRIEMARERFRABEREHS
HK$52,548,000 to its existing shareholders in the same proportion TR 4 2w 9 4R (R L 191 3% 17 £952,548,0007% T HY
of their existing ownership interest. Therefore, proceeds of A& A o BRIt - #921,492,00078 TR FR 1S IR E
approximately HK$21,492,000 have been received from the non- B I i =35 A AUER o 2517 PRTAR AN 30 &
controlling interest holders. The issue of share capital of PBT did not NEXRREE RSO RAAF A
change the proportion of ownership interest of each shareholder HlkE - BIEERER AR eRED RE
and control of the company and there is no difference between the WAFEzHETEER
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of consideration received.
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEXRFEZEREENIFZENBE LT
material non-controlling interests B3
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of TRHEHEBEEAREERESNHAEEIESE
the Group that have material non-controlling interests: BB ARMEE:
Place of incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal place of interest and voting rights held Profit (Loss) allocated to non- Accumulated non-controlling
Name of company business by non- controlling interest controlling interests interests
NAEH EMALBER FERERFANERE PEREFERERN
FRERBE BERREEMNLA A (BR) Rt FERES
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-Xf —T-1F ZB-XE _—T-hF ZB-xf _T-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET TAT FHET TR TET
PBT Cayman Islands/USA 40.9% 40.9% 16,567 (6,413) 82,536 44,370
MeRs /%8
Ocean Oasis Group United Arab Emirate 49% | N/ATNER (42,453) - (163,966) -
B R E S B R E
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries (3,817) 663 (13,040) (9,295)
AR E AN E LA
Total (29,703) (5,750) (94,470) 35,075
@t
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47.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of PBT and Ocean
Oasis Group that have material non-controlling interests are set
out below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intergroup eliminations. Since Ocean Oasis Group
is acquired during the year, summarised financial information on
its assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2016 and summarised
financial information on revenue, loss, total comprehensive income
and cash flows for the period from July 5, 2016 to December 31,
2016 were presented.

—E-AF+- A=+ ALFE
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 47. EKRQATNETERB LT (&)
(Continued)

BAEEARFERESNHFZENBELT
=15 ()

WA B R IEIE AR #E %5 AIPBT &2 Ocean Qasis
GroupR) B #5 & BB A T « A T BA 5 & B
BEDAKEEANRAFEHENSE AR
Ocean Qasis GroupF F R W iE - B E R
—E-RNF+-A=+—HMEERAEHN
PHERBTUAEE T "FtARHEE
—TE-RNFt A=t BHMABRE
BB e EeE RS RENBAT S
BEREBE 2%

Ocean Oasis

PBT Group
2016 2015 2016
—E-XREF —E—HF —E-XREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET FHT
Current assets MEEE 497,326 342,392 13,481
Non-current assets IERBEE 110,926 116,884 698
Current liabilities mEEE (390,542) (329,795) (348,789)
Non-current liabilities EREEaE (17,536) (21,050) -
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(ARF)FE 200,174 108,431 (334,610)
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47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

47. BATNETEMEB LT (&)

BAEEARFERESNHFZENBELT
=15 ()

Ocean Oasis

PBT Group
For the period

from July 5, 2016

to December 31,

2016
B=F—AF
For the year ended 31 December tAERZE
BZE+-BA=1+—HLEE —E—-RE
2016 2015 +=A=+-—H
—E-XEF —T—AF &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx FHET FExT
Revenue g 1,193,787 1,011,224 11,586
Profit/(Loss) for the year/period KNEE AR
wmAL (EE) 40,486 (10,630) (87,065)
Total comprehensive income THEW =BT 40,486 (13,692) (87,065)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REUTEENNRS
WA () F5
Operating activities KETEY (72,587) 16,329 (134,365)
Investing activities KA EE (31,559) (15,426) (249)
Financing activities BEEE 125,653 2,484 188,972
21,507 3,387 54,358
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BE=F-AF+=A=+-BLFE
48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 48. AT BN &
COMPANY
2016 2015
—~RE —hF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FHET
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRRMIEE 197,818 345,367
Deposit paid to an associate BN —HEBEATMNE 2 46,306 46,306
Bond receivables &5 FE W FRTB - 59,971
Interest in an assoicate R—EBE AR NEDR 4,931
Loan to an associate LY —EEEQATNER 40,128 23,269
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE YR B A T # 5RIR 116,025 187,144
Other receivables H {th B UL 53R 3,464 27,653
Bank balances and cash RITH T&fﬁi 206 181
Total assets BEBE 408,878 689,891
Other payables Hh JE T RRIE (65,568) (1,812)
Borrowings BE (46,535) (58,000)
Amount due to a subsidiary FEA — R F B A R M FRIE (83,766) (83,766)
Total liabilities BEERE (195,869) (143,578)
Net assets EEFE 213,009 546,313
Capital and reserves B A K 5
Share capital [N 131,153 104,586
Reserves (note) i () 81,856 441,727
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR A% B A FEIh#E = 213,009 546,313
On behalf of the directors RERES
Hung Tsung Chin Chen Mei Huei
S E PREX
Director Director
EZH EZE
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

201

Note:

Reserves of the Company

48. ADTFMBIRREK ()

s : AR BIRE

Contributed ~ Share option Accumulated

Share premium surplus reserve  Special reserve losses Total

R EE BABH BRERE R FHER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

TR TR TR THER TER THER

At January 1, 2015 R-F—R%—HA—H 349,246 181,788 7,960 79,900 (176,365) 442,529
Loss and total comprehensive income  AEEBEREZENELE

for the year - - - - (43,425) (43,425)

Issue of share BITRID 29,258 - - - - 29,258

Issue and conversion of convertible bond %17 [z i AT R & 5 13,365 - - - - 13,365

At December 31,2015 R-ZZ-RF+=-A=+—H 391,869 181,788 7,960 79,900 (219,790) 441,727
Loss and total comprehensive income  AFEBERZEAREZAE

for the year - - - - (447,765) (447,765)

Issue of share BITR D 87,894 - - - - 87,894

At December 31,2016 RZE-R"E+ZA=1—H 479,763 181,788 7,960 79,900 (667,555) 81,856

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the consolidated

shareholders’ fund of Top Peaker and the nominal value of the Company’s

shares issued to acquire Top Peaker at the time of a group reorganisation in

prior years.

The special reserve represents the surplus arising pursuant to the
capitalisation of advances from shareholders as part of the group
reorganisation.

B BERIETop Peakert AR A IR E & BB T F
[EEE S E AR B AU Top Peakeril #1717

AR EE R R Z 58 -

FRIFEESRRBRBEER (REEEA

B — 8B 10 ) PEE £ B ik o
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49. LITIGATIONS
HCA 2948/2016

On November 29, 2016, the Company received a writ of summons
filed by Zhi, Charles as the plaintiff (the “Plaintiff”) against the
Company, certain executive directors of the Company and other
parties as the defendants (collectively “All Parties”) under action
number HCA 2948/2016 in the High Court of Hong Kong. Details
of the writ of summons are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated November 29, 2016.

In the writ, the Plaintiff claimed for (i) a declaration that All parties
have committed an offence under section 25(1) of the Organized
and Serious Crime Ordinance, namely they knew, or had reasonable
grounds to believe, that on multifarious and repetitive occasions,
and through complex “layering” vehicles mostly related to
investments in the Company, were dealing with the proceeds of an
indictable offence; (ii) a declaration that All Parties have committed
an offence under Part XV of the SFO which requires directors, chief
executives and substantial shareholders to disclose their interests in
the shares and debentures of the Company; (iii) a declaration that
Morton Securities Limited, beneficially owned and controlled by Mr.
Akihiro Nagahara, had aided and abetted in money laundry; (iv) an
order for the Company to exert its power under Section 329 of SFO
to investigate the holders of interests in its shares and debentures,
and (v) an injunction to restrain the Company to continue its
proposed open offer and specific mandate as announced by the
Company on October 24, 2016.

The Company has engaged legal adviser to handle the action, and
filed a defence to the High Court of Hong Kong on March 29, 2017
and request a further and better particulars from the Plaintiff.

49.

e
HCA 2948/2016

NZB—RE+—A=Z+AAB &XOFWE
i Zhi, CharlestEBRE A ([[READ) AR
B ARAETHRITEZREMA AWEA
(BBAIMBAL]) BLEBSEEMR
SR AR IR AHCA 2948/201658 BIEF S AR - (&
MEMNFBEN ARG AHEAE T —RF
+—A-+hBHAER-

EEASKRS  REA: (VBEAAALSE
LA MR B E FEITIRB 582501) I6R P AT 9
FiT B PIMBEBEAEEREE ES
BEENER ARBBEAFREREN
BHTDE] REAAFRENKE: (V8
AMA AT HELREE S R AEERHIFEXV
MARETEE BRRTRABREZREA
BEEAEA QAR R EEE A (i)
B BRRELELEEZERNZENOE
HEBFERRAHGRBLREEE  (v)is
SARRBRIERE 77 KB IRPIE320F1T -
High HAEEROEEEIERSFEA
KW ERIAZGISHEIEAR R BEEETH
E-RETA-THERAEFMERAFNE
& MR B ERCE D -

ARARERBEEBHEEERBFR R
E—tF=-A-TNBERABFESFTERER
W AEREABRIEHREHERFBHIER
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49, LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCA 3346/2016

On December 22, 2016, the Company received a writ of summons
filed by Zhi, Charles as the plaintiff against the Company, executive
directors of the Company and other party as the defendants under
action number HCA 3346/2016 in the High Court of Hong Kong.
Details of the writ of summons are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated December 22, 2016.

In the writ, the Plaintiff claimed for (i) a declaration that All Parties
have committed an offence under Part XV of the SFO which
requires directors, chief executives and substantial shareholders

to disclose their interests in the shares and debentures of the
Company; (ii) a declaration that executive directors of the Company
have breached their fiduciary duties to the Company; (iii) a
declaration that Yuming Investment Management Limited, willfully
and knowingly advised the Company to hide critical information
about the connected parties on proposed open offer and specific
mandate, announced by the Company on October 24, 2016; (iv)

an order for clarification announcement that the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited was not oppressive but not ruled based;
and (v) an order for the Company to exert its power under Section
329 of SFO to investigate the holders of interests in its shares and
debentures.

The Company has engaged legal adviser to handle the action, and

filed a defence to the High Court of Hong Kong on March 29, 2017
and request a further and better particulars form the Plaintiff.
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49.

HEETE (&)
HCA 3346/2016

RZE—RF+ZAZ+=H ARAFW
E|fZhi, Charles (1EA [REA]) ¥ AR
B ARRMTEEREME (fEA [#H%
A BEBEBSSARFARIRAHCA
3346/20165R M B2 M - FEE S AMRBIFFIBE
RARBRBHA-_Z—"F+_A=-+=H

WRERA -

EEMSHF - REAN: (VBEBEMBEALTHE
PLRBESFRAEEGEXNVBAETES
BEETBABREEZERRBEEEERQF
fgtn REEZRORER (VEBARAQRMT
EFERYQAINELERS (IR Yuming
Investment Management Limited il & N &
BEAQABEBERRNARR-Z—XRFE+
AZTHBEASEZE L AAEEREREEL
BEATZEEZER: (W SEHBEBES
REMBR AR ZEREA AT REK
Bl BEERE RV LARAIREES R
HRE RO 320 TR RS - HEHKR L K&
BREERIFAAC

ARBCRAERBERRERBFR R =
E—t+FZA-TNEABERFERER
WAREANBRKIEHEHRABRIER
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49, LITIGATIONS (Continued) 49,

HCMP 284/2017

On February 11, 2017, the Company received a writ of summons
filed by Zhi, Charle, Kim Sungho, Kim Kyungsoo, Lim Hang Young
and Joung Jong Hyun as the plaintiffs (the "Plaintiffs”) against the
Company, executive directors of the Company, the auditor of the
Company and other party as the defendants (the “Parties”) under
action number HCMP 284/2017 in the High Court of Hong Kong.
Details of the writ of summons are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated February 13, 2017.

In the writ, the Plaintiffs claim against the Parties for, among others,
the following orders: (i) the Parties produce the copies of all ledger
accounts of the Company, relating to the impairment losses of
loans and receivables of the Company, in its 2015 Annual Report,
caused by the operations in Nepal of the Company, through its
subsidiaries, associate companies, agents or connected parties; (ii)
the Parties produce the copies of all the corresponding and related
documents in paragraph (i) above; (iii) the Parties produce the
copies of all communications between the auditor of the Company
and the Company regarding among their directors and any of
their agents, pertinent to the alleged connected transactions; and
(iv) the copies of the documents be inspected by the Plaintiffs

and Financial Reporting Council, which will then make necessary
complaints as it deems fit.

As at the date of the report, there is no evidence from any of the
Plaintiff to substantiate such allegation.

HEETE (&)
HCMP 284/2017

RZZB—+F_A+—8 KAFKEIAZN,
Charles*Kim Sungho*Kim Kyungsoo*Lim Hang
Young X Joung Jong HyuntfE &R & A (TR
HEADEARRGE  ARFRNTES - ARQA]
R REMT (ERITEEAL) (AR
[FTBEAL]) BEHEEESSERF AR
AHCMP 284/20175% B {E < AR « A< R A
HEHRARRASR _E—+F_A+=
HERAEA -

EERSHRT REABRITERK (HHE
B)AT®GS: MBALTHEREE-F 5
FERPHREBBRNEL FRAAARBE
BEMBLAR BEAR RBHEESE
B R R ERM BN IRRER KRR D
BRRBMEIA: (VA ATHRID EBRE
()R P B AR e SR AR B SR RO BIAS - (iDFT B A
THRARBZEENRARNRE 2 HAA A
P9 B9 B2 58 B (o] it P9 ) A ZE2 BB 0 22 TR )
BR 5 RvRRE AR HE R DR A
B fFEy B A - B PSR MR AEE
TR

BEAREAH THRSALLAREE

TSR
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49, LITIGATIONS (Continued) 49,

HCCW 90/2017

On March 23,2017, the Company received a petition dated March
23,2017 filed by Zhi, Charles (“Petitioner”) against the Company,
directors of the Company and other party (‘Respondents”) in the
proceedings in HCCW 90/2017. Details of the petition are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated March 23, 2017.

Pursuant to the Petition, the Petitioner petitioned for (i) an order
that the Company be wound up by the Court under the provisions
of the Companies (Winding-Up and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Ordinance; (ii) an order that the Company identify all the shares
associated with and warehoused by the 2nd Respondent and
cancel them; (iii) an order that the Company identify all the loans
of the Company used for the money laundering purposes and have
the 2nd to 10th Respondents to make the loan repayments for the
Company; (iv) an order that the 2nd to 10th Respondents make
equitable and adequate compensation to the Company for unfair
and prejudicial, in amount no less than HK$250,000,000; and (v)
such other order and costs may be made in the premises as shall be
just.

On March 29, 2017, a striking-out summons was filed by the
Company to apply for an order to strike out the Petition in the
Court. Details of the striking-out summons are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated March 29, 2017.

The Company considers that all the above writs are vexatious,
frivolous and erroneous in facts/oppressive.
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B ()
HCCW 90/2017

R-TE—+FE=A-+=0 AQFEEHD
Zhi, Charles ([REAIR_ZE—tF=A
T =HAMERRERE  HARE  ARAE
ERHEAME ([HEADBELHHEFEEHCW
90/2017 - 2B ENFBHNR A QR A A
T—+FE=ZA-+=ZHHRAER-

EEHEF REAZRUTHS : ()BER
TRARFMKRB AR (58 RFEESO E
Pl SIERR (N ESRKA AR HERIFT A S
ZHEABBEARFORG - WHZRDE
$H (I ERARBRANAEIERLERERD
REER WHAFEZARE+THEABER
NE ((WMERAE ZEE+HEAERTAF
BEBRENTAE BEAFMEE /R KE:
KB & 58 T K 72250,000,00078 7T ¢ M (v)E A
MERMIEREREEATAENAIR N E
T

R-TE—tF=A-tNB ARFRZHH
FRASRERER - AAUSLERZNFBER
ARBEHR-_ZTE—LF=A-+TILEHR
A

ARFRA LRFAABRS R ERE B
5 0 R IE FRA -
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50. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 50. HEMBERBENSE
On March 20, 2017, the Group has published an announcement for RZZE—EF=A=+H AEERZER
a proposed open offer of 1,967,295,000 new shares on the basis of B 701278 LR AR B 1,967,295,0008% ¥
three open offer shares for every two shares held at HK$0.12 per B (BRESREBREMBRBRNHEZE=KRA
share. Details refer to the Company's announcement dated March REERG) FIE—MHRE - FBEAHL2HAE
20, 2017. ARIBRR_ZE—+tF=AZ+HHRE
51. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL  51. #tEGFSHBER
STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and BEVBHRERENRZE—tF=A=1+—8H
authorised for issue by the board of directors on March 31, 2017. EEFoEMRET -
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Six months
Year ended Year ended ended Year ended Year ended
June 30, June 30, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016
NA=TH ANA=tH +ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+-H
HFE tFE EAEA tFE LEE
—E-=F —E-NF —E-OF TR “E-XE
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET TET TER
RESULTS |
Revenue g 1,398,548 1,664,111 785,081 1,627,889 1,801,501
Loss before taxation PR A ES 1B (176,972) (87,110) (256,403) (97,936) (92,740)
Income tax expense FIEHRE% (43,454) (14,458) (14,191) (10,976) (14,618)
Loss for the year/period REGEEBN
from continuing operations REE/KAHEEER (220,426) (101,568) (270,594) (108912) (107,358)
Loss for the year/period from ERIEEEEBH
discontinued operation KEE/REHER (82,136) - - - -
Loss for the year/period KEE/ABHBR (302,562) (101,568) (270,594) (108912) (107,358)
Attributable to: 1k -
Owners of the Company ADREEA (271,424) (101,432) (264,543) (103,162) (77,655)
Non-controlling interests RS (31,138) (136) (6,051) (5,750) (29,703)
(302,562) (101,568) (270,594) (108,912) (107,358)
At At At At At
June 30, June 30, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016
ANA=ZTH ~NAZ+HB +ZA=t—8 +=ZA=+-8B +=ZRA=+-H
—E-=F —E-\mF —E-\mF TR “E-RE
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET TET ThARx
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
Total assets BERE 1575873 1,563,576 1,402,281 1282857 1,322,698
Total liabilities BEAE (894,594) (846,408) (989,958) (901,152) (1,040,580)
681,279 717,168 412,323 381,705 282,118
Fquity attributable to owners of AR AR AL EE
the Company 684,168 663,595 372314 346,630 376,588
Non-controlling interests FERER (2,889) 53,573 40,009 35,075 (94,470)
681,279 717,168 412,323 381,705 282,118
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